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30
PIMCO 2020-10
2022 10
) )
Las Vegas Sands Corp. 2.900 | 2025/ /25 6,410,546 6,400,000 5,800,055 .59
General Motors Co. 6.125 | 2025/10/ 6,298,315 5,700,000 5,679,898 .54
Pacific Gas & Electric Co. 3.450 | 2025/ / 6,275,716 6,100,000 5,673,037 .54
UniCredit SpA 7.830 | 2023/12/ 5,841,865 5,500,000 5,480,109 .45
BPCE S.A. 4.500 | 2025/ /15 6,054,292 5,700,000 5,353,485 .39
Gray Oak Pipeline LLC 2.600 | 2025/10/15 5,409,382 5,400,000 4,856,936 .17
Syngenta Finance NV 4.892 | 2025/ /24 5,019,171 4,789,000 4,586,856 .05
Credit Suisse Group AG 2.593 | 2025/ /11 5,225,207 5,100,000 4,531,226 .03
Ally Financial, Inc. 4.625 | 2025/ /30 4,788,372 4,500,000 4,332,881 .94
10 |AIB Group PLC 4.263 | 2025/ /10 4,448,580 4,305,000 4,106,942 .84
11 |BGC Partners, Inc. 3.750 | 2024/10/ 4,235,041 4,200,000 3,993,588 .78
12 |Radian Group, Inc. 6.625 | 2025/ /15 4,185,736 4,000,000 3,955,800 .77
13 |Hyatt Hotels Corp. 5.625 | 2025/ /23 4,193,857 4,000,000 3,932,125 .76
14 |SMBC Aviation Capital Finance DAC 3.550 | 2024/ /15 4,188,466 4,100,000 3,931,875 .76
15 |BNP Paribas S.A. 4.705 | 2025/ /10 4,059,605 3,900,000 3,834,172 .71
16 |Vistra Operations Co. LLC 3.550 | 2024/ /15 4,119,746 4,000,000 3,811,742 .70
17 |Boeing Co. 4.875 | 2025/ / 4,101,427 3,900,000 3,807,853 .70
18 |Standard Chartered PLC 3.785 | 2025/ /21 4,135,377 4,000,000 3,791,252 .69
19 Intesa Sanpaolo SpA 5.017 | 2024/ /26 4,109,447 4,000,000 3,777,525 .69
20 |NatWest Group PLC 4.269 | 2025/ /22 4,051,047 3,900,000 3,761,646 .68
21 |Societe Generale S.A. 4.250 | 2025/ /14 4,179,843 4,000,000 3,709,003 .66
22 Imperial Brands Finance PLC 4.250 | 2025/ /21 4,156,113 3,900,000 3,707,983 .66
23 |First American Financial Corp. 4.600 | 2024/11/15 4,012,022 3,800,000 3,691,898 .65
24 FirstEnergy Transmission LLC 4.350 | 2025/ /15 4,019,418 3,800,000 3,669,998 .64
25 |Credit Agricole S.A. 4.375 | 2025/ /17 4,148,995 3,900,000 3,662,061 .64
26 |Cooperatieve Rabobank UA 4.375 | 2025/ / 4,107,243 3,800,000 3,594,199 .61
27 |ABN AMRO Bank NV 4.750 | 2025/ /28 4,101,639 3,800,000 3,590,901 .60
28 |Bank of Ireland Group PLC 4.500 | 2023/11/25 3,605,916 3,500,000 3,432,586 .53
29 |Omega Healthcare Investors, Inc. 4.500 | 2025/ /15 3,212,676 3,100,000 2,988,888 .34
30 |Host Hotels & Resorts LP 4.000 | 2025/ /15 3,174,072 3,100,000 2,921,776 .31

2022 10
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2023 1

2021 10 364,985,104.69 47,619,607 102.93 13,429
223,760,417.46 29,194,022 94.98 12,392

2022 10
2022 326,590,195.88 42,610,223 100.36 13,094
308,570,590.11 40,259,205 98.47 12,847
289,278,292.74 37,742,139 97.61 12,735
279,395,810.61 36,452,771 97.84 12,765
260,410,994.18 33,975,822 96.11 12,539
256,933,189.51 33,522,073 97.55 12,727
247,329,910.46 32,269,133 96.72 12,619
233,169,606.91 30,421,639 95.07 12,404
10 224,151,894.86 29,245,098 94.98 12,392
11 222,530,403.07 29,033,542 96.52 12,593
12 219,662,607.83 28,659,380 96.96 12,650
2023 221,077,927.58 28,844,037 98.27 12,821

2.93
2020 10 15 2021 10 31

7.72

2021 11 2022 10 31
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2022 10 31 99.98
10

2022 21 2022 10 31

2022 10 31 80.61
10

2022 2022 10 31

2021 11 2022 10 PIMCO

13

14

US GAAP
2022 10 31

2022 10 31

15

2023 31

PIMCO
2022 12 15
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PIMCO 2020-10

2022 10 31

miER B E
1 F-uldT) (AL

T A 4 0.5

A=A LFUTEH 3,062
(BB 32121

1518

Parcasila Lad

52500 due 08112025 2,200 2059
Bacsnd Ltd

44500 due 0515025 1.250 1,200
ST o — G 3,288
(LIS $3531)

ety Lud

5.375% due 12/01,/3004 304 280
il gy 280

5.500% due D215/3024 2,100 2,051
Seagets HDD Cayman

47500 due D100/ 3025 3,000 2,859
I v WA 4950
(RCHEE 45.201)

Danske Bank A

53755 due 01/12/3024 1,900 1873
Frrr—2 i 1873
(BT $1.900)

BNP Parlbes 5.8,

4,705% due D1/10/3035 3,900 3834
BPCESA

4,5000% due 03/15/2025 5,700 5354
Crodit Agricela 5.4

4.375% due 03172005 3,900 3,662
Secietln Genorals 5 A

4.250% dup 041412025 4,000 ]
FFAAH 16,558
(R 518,440

|

Deutscha Bank AG
3.300% due 11716/2022 200

Eo b §
(R IE 01

g8
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PIMCO 2020-10
2022 10 31
mEER =
(B i) (R s 1
BarCagp lraland Capital DAC
6.500% cue 07/ 152005 § 1500 5 180
AR Group PLC
4. 163% due D4/ 1070025 4,305 4,107
Bank ol bmland Greup PLC
45000 due 11252023 3,500 3433
SMBC Aviation Capitsl Fisance DAC
3.5500% due 04/15/30024 4,100 3932
T A7 Fal 13,343
(IR $14,266)
Intesa Sanpanls SpA
3.250% due 09232024 200 187
5.017% due OR/26/2024 4,000 R
UsiCradit 5pA
TR0 due 12/0472023 5,500 5480
A F0TEN 8,445
(KR BE $10,157)
Nizzan Motse Co. Ltd.
3.522% due 09172025 2600 2,308
Nomurs Holdings, Inc.
LESI% due 07/16/2025 2,000 1,799
B 4,107
(TR s4.630)
AEN AMRD Bank NV
A.750% due 07 28/2025 3,800 1591
Cooperatieve Rabobank UA
4.375% dun /042005 3800 3,584
LeasaPlan Corp. NV
2.875% due 10,/24/2024 3,000 2,788
Syngenta Finance NV
4.890% due 04242025 4,784 4,587
F3 - 5EH 18,581
(RFHITAEE 516,280

2.503% due D9/11/2025 5,100 4531
2597 due 1201453023 1,950 1,892
A4 10T due D612/ 7004 250 243
U85 Group AG

41255 due 0F/24/2035 2,800 2653
A AR 8,318
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PIMCO 2020-10
2022 10 31
miEw i
| -4} (M
ETERIN
Barclays Bank PLC
TA25% dup 1142112032 (a) 5 1415 5 1413
HEEE Holdings PLC
1.803% due 03711720025 1,600 1529
42500 due DR/18/2025 1,900 1,768
Imperial B rasds Fimanos PLC
4. 250% dur 0702112035 3900 1,708
Lbeyds Banking Group PLC
4,450% dur 05/08/2025 3,000 2,877
A.500% due 11042024 1300 1,828
MaiWest Growp PLC
A4.269% due 0322/3025 3,900 3,762
Ralls-Raycn PLC
3.625% due 10/14/ 0035 1400 2113
Samtandar UK Group Heldings PLC
1.085% due 037152005 400 35T
475004 due 09/15/2025 2,900 2691
Standard Charisred PLC
3. TR due 05212025 4,000 3,791
PETEST — )
(R S48

Corp.
3.300% due 07/15/0025 2,000 1.845
Ay Financiad, Inc.
4.625% dus 033072025 4,500 4333
Mg Capital Corp.
43000 dhup DEFIO/3024 3,000 1,925
Abane Glsbal Funding
2.500% due 01/ 14730025 2,300 21318
Awtation Capiesd Group LLE
4.125% due 08012025 1631 1485
B&C Partnars, bre,
3.750% due 10/01/2024 4,200 3984
Beming Co,
A.875% due 05/01/2025 3,900 3.808
Chaniers Corpus Christi Holdings LT
1.000°% due 063072004 500 506
DE Funding LLC
2.625% due 032070025 1,000 a1
Dultn Air Lines, Iz,
2.9005 due 10,/28/0024 500 47%
Eneet Heldings, Inc.
6. 500% due 0815 0025 2,000 1975
Energy Transior LP
4.050% due 037152005 BOO 765
EPR Proparties
4.500% due D401/ 3025 1,300 1215
Firsd Amarican Financial Cofp.
4.600% due 117152024 3,800 3692

Transmizsion LI

4,350 due D1/15/2025 3,800 3670
Fertress Trassporiation & Indrestrueture lsvestiers LLE
6.500% due 10,01,/2025 612 589
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PIMCO 2020-10
2022 10 31
wFEH B
1 Faizh {Fmir)
Ganaral Motess Co.
6.125% due 10,01/2035 () % 5700 5 5,680
Ganesis Energy LP
6.500% due 10,01/2025 1,700 1,632
GLP Capital LP
5.250% due D&/01/2025 1,500 2413
Gray sk Pipelita LLC
2.600% due 10/15/200% 5400 A 85T
Hagt Hateds & Resorts LP
4 0005 due D515/3025 3,100 2922
Hynitt Hotels Corp,
5.625% due 0423720025 4,000 393>
Las Veges Sands Corp.
1.900% due DRFI5/2005 6400 5,800
Midwast Canmector Capital Co. LLE
3.900% due D401 2024 1925 14853
Rewmark Gaoug, Inc.
6.135% due 117152023 2,000 1396
WM Holdings, Ine.
T375% due 06012005 2,000 2,001
Deeadantal Patsoloum Corp.
B.000% due O7/15/2025 1600 1,681
Owaga Healthcars bnvestoes, Inc.
A.5000% due 01/15/3025 3,100 2989
Pacific Gas & Ebactric Co,
34508 due 07,01/2025 &, 100 5673
POC Evargy. Inc.
6.125% due 09,15/2024 1124 L1z
PRA Broup, Inc.
1.375% due 09012025 1,000 1916
Radian Graup, Inc.
BB25% due 03150025 000 3954
Saben GLBL, Ine,
9. 2500 due D4/15/2025 1,900 1,844
Santander Holdings WS4, Ine.
450006 due 07172025 500 478
Splrit AsroSystems, Inc.
5.500% due 01/15/3005 2,100 2019
75005 due D415H02% 1,200 1,169
Starwood Pregarty Tret, Ine,
5.500% due 11,/01,/3023 3,000 1977
Synehresry Financial
A4.500% due 072312005 1,000 S48
TripAdvisor, Ine.
7.000% due 07152005 1,400 1,386
United Adrkines 20021 Class A Pass-Through Trest
4.150% dun D4/11/2024 644 614
Usiiti Group LP
TEIS% due 03152025 1,400 1,368
Usshvizion Commusications, Inc.
5.125% due 02715720025 2,200 2129
VIC| Preporties LP
i.625% due D6/15/2025 2.100 1870
Vistra Opesations Co. LLG
35500 due 0715/2024 4,000 381F
'WEA Finance LLC
3.750% dun 097172004 2,700 2542
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PIMCO 2020-10
2022 10 31
W= s
[E 2 114 (R

Whaziinghousa Adr Ernke Tockalagies Cerp,
3. 20006 dun 06152025 5 3000 5 2,786
Wynn Las Vagas LLC
55000 due O0/2025 2,300 086
TF Weeth Amwdica Capital, e,
A.75008 due 04/25/2005 1,400 1,312
T A D EREEN 112,224
(AN $120,637)
LG D 1. 3%

7,300
Aesstratia and Wew Znslasd Bueking Greop Lid
2.5800 due 1101,/2022 &4 a1
Bank of Nova Scotia
3 5000 due 110072032 7 7
Cinilsaenie A,
2.580% diee 11,00,/2022 T4 4
DES Bank Lid,
2.580% due 11/00/2002 16 46
JPMorgan Chate Bask N.A
2.500% due 11/01/2022 o4 -1
Roysl Bank ol Casads
2.580% due 11)00/2022 97 a7
Somitees Mitssl Banking Corp.
2,580% due 11/00/2022 T4 7
‘Surnit oove Mitswi Trust Bank Lid.
2.580% due 11/00/2002 76 6

560

L R 2 B 2,880
(KL IR 2.880)
A A £ B 0.5 ¢ panhey
(E RS s241.628)
FOMORES LR, s 1.1m
T 1000 & a6

EREERIER T SR

oM. TRESRZEREA TR ERREERLT LD L8R,

o) RGNS,

#Bmn s R BUBERGIC e B
BiTHER sty (ASEAE  (AASHSE S S s ]
General Mators Ca. 6.125% 10012025 10/18/2020 S 6298 5 5680 T54%

fif A LR OO 5|

LR
&R A wiR (EE0 . s, Hdnd
bk HHeEH (ASB%) (A788F) EmER  HE Bl 54 e
TO® 10T 104312022 18012022 5 2,300 U5 Treasury Motes 0.750% due
oa/31/2026 s (n3sy 8 2300 ¢ 2300
LAt $ 2,353 % 2300 % 2,300
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PIMCO 2020-10
2022 10 31
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mEh SWE  OOIEES KRG  OhOENe BERIIAH (RN r—NKET

T_.flr o e N P ;H;E'I‘-_I
oM § 2300 3 o3 ) o_ % 2300 5 (2353 3§ 53]
HANE I EORORSIENIIGH 4 20 3 [ [ ]

" EWREE R,

By Ap— e — W, WETRTEO NS R e (R TRl OERE R, AR LT O RIS G o RS — i,
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BoiEs A =HRNE tEEsZE
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i 5 o 5 3052 H 0 § 3,052
AT e b

EEAN a 3,159 o 3,258
e -

FE [i] 280 il w0
brf L M

il a 4,950 0 4,950
o

HE i 1873 0 1873
TRER

i o 16,559 0 16,559
B

Hid | o 85 0 ot ]
FLAILE

i 0 13,343 i 13,343
£ F0T

il o 45 il 9,445
B

il | o 4,107 0 4,107
-

R o 14,561 0 14,561
A A

L a 53,319 a 9,319
£

iR | ] 25,858 0 25 858
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities wony Detober 31, 2077
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Statements of Assets and Liabilities wony Detober 31, 2077
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Statements of Operations jcom,) Year Ended Oetebar 31, 7622
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Statements of Changes in Net Assets com) Yuw Endad Detabar 18, 2022
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L L o Ml
[t Dafrebitans 11 N& Min KR |7.0861
Fund Unit Transactinns
Mat | det it nEaulteg Irams Rufd ofel st ont " 61781 B3 208 500 1] A 15 254
Total [Decrsase] in Neot Assets 43.751| 1M, 306 B4, 17| 4 L

Ket Assets:
Besirvang of v

" Bom vty Y i s Mstes b Pl Stmteeranty

T mremparyny min

Bl Raport | Oetela: 31, 237

154/378



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Financial Highlights jcom.) Yaur Endad Detaber 31, 2022
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. DRGANIZATION

Each Furd discussed in this repat {each & "Fund” and collectrely, the "Funds™), which alsa inclsdes each diass of units of that Furd {pach a "Class” and colfectively,
the "Classes™), is a series trust of PRICO Bermuda Trust i {the " Tnust™), an open-ended unit tnost established under the laws of Bermuda as a muls-series rust
pursuant b a et deed meeduted by Winchéster Global Trest Company Limited on December 1, 20032 (a4 dntnded leom tme o hime, the ™ Trust Daed” ) Effectve &
of the dose of Business (Eastenn bme) on Septembe 79 3017 Maphes Tngiee Sennges (Bermuda) Limiced {ehe * Trusoee®) was appoeried a8 nushes of the Teust
Paafic Imwestment Management Company LLE ("FIMCO®, the " Manager™ o the "lmvestment Adwiser” ) is the sponsor of and was responsible for stracburing the Trust

Thee Trurit 15 sadpect 16 requlanon and sopenvaagn as provided Tor in the Imesiiment Funds Act J006 and redated rubes melating 1o slandard funds

The veerms of the Trust Deed conder upon the Trustee, with the cansent ol the Manager, 1he powes, inthe future, to establmk further Tunds in addition to the Funds
cusrently in opesation as of the date of ths report

Refezences 1o wnithalders (each, a " Unitholder
who hald units, or clises of wriss (2 aoplicab

. vl collectrrely, the “Urnitholders™ ) i, or units of lor an imeestment i, the Fund shall mean Unitholkdes of the Fund
dad, whoch ane pthibutab b b That Fund

The Funds peesented in this repert ae listed below

AMC] Brerrecdly Basi oo Fusd A (fferned smly £ Forsck: work 3 “Frond ol Fusdy™ siruetone, i delead i O roles of v Dvesem Tross Adestaen
PAMCD Bormends Bask Lo Fund B Japan, or 0 any sther presdeion

AME] Buirsedts Bask Lo Fusd C

PAMED Bormends Bask Losn Fond 0

FIMECD Burrnets dacom Fend 0

ANC] Berrecdls Dysame Man-Beins gy Fusd
PIMED Bermmens Low Duraton lacome Ford

ANMCD Erargeg Bond frgoms Fusd I

M0 Emargng Baad legome Fasd 0l

AMED Berragedy Bk Logen Fusd (M) Ogrid pely 2 ot Fundh [0 SV B2 0 Wedidlye) el ol velagi dor 1ich hed
PINED Bermeds Eromgeng Markrs Band Fuasd 1M1

AMC] Bersects Globad Agerogats Ex-Japa Bocd Fusd (M
PME0 Berready bspgerss Fusd (M

PIMED Barrns 1 5. High Yiohd Fronad 1M1

ANED By 115 Fegh Yisid Fsd B W)

PMED Emargeg Bood frcore Fesd (W)

ANCD Barrmesdy Emargeng Martars Basd Fusd 3 O o Dpaniss ol GO St
PIMED Bormes Giobe! Aggrogate Evapas [Yen-Hedged: Baed fund
PMCD Beressds Global Agrregate Ex-Japan Bosd Fand

FAME] Burreodly koo Fond A"

PHMCD Bermos Mortpage Opportesites e *

FIMCD Gt brsiormay Corpertant Bioved Frsd 2020-10°°*

BMC0 L5 High Yield [Yan-Hedged) Foed I

PIMICO LS Mgk Yiodd Fue 11

AMCO U S Hegh Yadd Suwiegy hnd

PHAACD LS High Yeld St Fund Il

FINCD Warkd Hgh Isgamg™" "

PAMICD Stoet-Termn Mortgige lncane Ofarnd b Sapurume and athel memase Usis of the EUR, JPY ared U S0 Clatzes are sHeced do iotsd ovmizn in
b By iy of pibles ofer theough B dmtnbaner m Japan, wnd sy b effered 1o sthir ewesien ot the
et of e Mansger. Units of the FUR, JPY aad 05D Dlaevs will bow rerinactond it aly thoss imvesson wha an
B by e M

PAMCD Ervaprgng Do (Ver-Hedged’ income Fong O%ered ordy 22 Furd o Funh type Japusese rvmiment trests siganieed ender B Lanw conoerany |massirnand
ANC] Errgrgeg Bond frigreg Fand Trest deed Iewwereaet Compay ol gt Uit bovmtraent Tioatt"] whh wll cHee fhar orant 12 the bl 1
FIMICD LS Hugh iedd ['-Husped ] Foorsd s ithar by wary off pubdle ey or privece phesmest asdl which are managed by FUMCO Jagen Lod o o
PAMCO LS Hugh Yoedd Fored ety Igproed swetimaind tnnl EssgEn | cornpare andd pabact T B rules of the bvmtnest Tiots
Repgangs, Japs
= r e ’ r o x PR o K ir 5 x
' v r ; rer r ¥ F .
cr » 5 gt s, ¥ 5 E g
e Sy o T r
T » b i e iy o i r T
. b s i car

Aisnil Rapirtl || Detsbet 31, 2002
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is a summary of sigrefcant accounting polices consstently
followed by the Teust in the preparaticn of its financial statements i
conlarmity with accounting principles generally accapred in the United States
of America ("U.5 GAAP™) Each Fund is treated as an investment compary
under the reporting mquirements of LS GAAP The peeparation o Arancal
statemints in aoondance vath U S GAAP requines management to make
estimates. and assumpbons that affect the reparted amounts of assets and
ligbities and disclosure of contingent assets and labilities at the date of the
financial stasements aewd the reported amounts of mcneades and degreases in
net assets from operations dunng the eeporting period. Actsal results codd
diffier from those estimates

Is] Acwmired Funds The Trustes and Manager may apply all or a porbon of
thr st of (1 PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A, PIMCO Bermuda Bank
Loan Fund B, FIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund © and FIMCO Bermuda Bank
Laan Fund D i) FIMCO Woeld High kncome:, {m) PIMCO Bermuda Global
Aggregate Ex-Japan (Yen-Hediged) Bond Fund and PIMCO Bermuda Global
A!.rmr[q.m: Ex-lapan Bond Fund: () FIMCD Bersada Income Fund A and
PMACO Bermadla incomse Fund D (v} FER4C0 U 5. High Yield {Yen-Hedged)
Fund, FRACO WS, High Yield Fund, PIMCO U5 High Yield $trategy Fund, and
FINCO U 5. Hagh Yield Strateqy Fund I fa) FIMCO U S, Hagh Yield (Yen-
Hedged) Fund 1l and PIMCO LS, High Yield Fund II; {af) PIMED Emenging
Bond (fen-Hedged) Income Fund, PIMCD Emenging Bond Income Fund,
PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund Il, and FINCD Emerging Band Income
Fund Il {each redered to herein a3 & “Fund of Funds® of *Acguting Fund®,
which imvests in other Funds] to the respective oredit of () PFIMCO Bermuda
Bank Loan Fured (M (il) FIMCD Bermuda Emerging harkets Bond Fund (M)
[} FIVCO Bermoda Global Aggregane E;—Z-apan Bond Fund (M) (] PRICD
Bermuda Imcome Fund (M [v) FIMCO Bermuda U 5 High Yield Fund (M; ()
PINCO Bermusta U5 High Yield Fund 11 (M {v) PIMCO Emerging Bond
Incaere Fund (MY (refened 10 Berem a5 an " Acguiied Fundds)”® Adry B 0
applied will be held in sisdh Acguired Fundish as i received directly. Whese
assets are sa applied, the Acguired Fund(s) will recosd the issue of units to the
relevant Auoquinng Fund at 1he miwe pice pet unet of such wnits and val
reputchase such units at the repunchase price per unit of such units at the
time of repurchase Accordingly, the ability of the Aoguiring Fund to achieve
it ievvestment abpecteee wall depensd upon the ability af the Jﬁ:!lr..b!@
Acguired Fund 1o achieve ity evestment objecive Thete can be no asuance
that the imestment objectve of the Acguined Fund will be achieved

Ratios shown in the Finandial Highlights do rot indlude expendes of the
Acpired Fund(s), See Nate 8, Fees and Expenses, for Burther information
regarding fund fees, as applicablie

[b] Sacurities Transactions aad Investmant lncome Securities bansacions
are recorded ad of the trade date for financial reporting purpones Securties
purchased or wold on & wher-isaued or deleped-delrvery barsis mary be

settled beyond a standand sectlement period for the secunity after the rade
date Realzed gans and losses from sequsities sold are recorded on the
wentfeed coit basis. Deadend incame is recorded on the ex-dradend date,
encept certan diidends Trom faseign seomites where the ex-devidend date
may have parsed, which afe recorded a5 soon as a Fund & informed of the
ex-dridienad date, Intenes] income, adudind fiar the accretion of drcounts and
amertzation of premeums, is recoeded on the accrual basis from wetement
date, with the exception of securities with a forward starting effectve date
whene interest income & recorded on the accrual basis from etfectrm date. For
cofrertible secuities, peemiums attriutable 1o the comersion featune e not
amortzed Estmated tax liahilites om certain focesgn seouwities ase recorded
on an acorual basis and are reflected as components of interest income or net
change i unresized apprecation (deprecation) on imeesiments on the

Staterments of Operations, as appeopriate Tax habdities realized a5 a resuln of
such secuisy sides ae refected & a component of ret realzed gam (loss] on
ienestements an the Statemsents of Operaboes. Paydown gains and losses on
morigage-related and other asset-hadced secuities, d amy, are recorded as
compenents af intevest income o the Statements of Operations

Db obliganions may be placed on non-aocrual status and 1elared snenest
imoome may be reduced by ceasing current acouals and waiting off intarest
recereabde when the coflecnan of all or a portion ol interest has become
doubtful based on constently apphied procedunes. A debt obligation o
remeved from nan-acoual status when the issuer resumes interest payments
o when collectabaity of interest is piohable

] Cosh amd Forsign Commengy The fmandal statements of each Fund are
prosentng using the cutmingy of the primary dConomic ervarcnmuent & which it
cperates (the “functional cusrency™ ] The funchonal curiency lor each of the
Fureds is listed in the befow table

The market values of loerign secarities, curtency holdings and other assets
and liahines ane translaned inta sach Fund's functasnal currency based an the
cunent exchange rates each business day. Purchases and salies of seoities
and income and expense items denominated in foreign carrencies, if any, are
wranilated into each Fund's rispective functaanal curnency at the exchancge
rate in effect on the ansaction date The Funds do not separately repaort the:
edfects of changes i foeeign exchange rates from changes in market prices on
secunities held. Such chamges are included in net realied and net changes in
unrealized gain or boss fram imvestments on the Statements of Operations
The Furds may smiest in foreign curmency denominated secunties and may
engage in fedegn curmency rareactons sither on a 1008 (cah) bt at the
eate privading in the curency exchange marker at the time of through a
forevaed Foreign curmency contract. Realzed foeeign exchange gains o losses
arising o sales of wpot foreign currencies, currency gains or fosses resfized
between the rade and settlement dates on securines rarsactons and the
differere between the recorded amounts of daidends, interest, and foreign
withholding taxes and the lumcticnal currency equivalient of the amaunts
actaaily recenved of pand are included in net realized gaen o loss on foreign
curendy transactions on the Satements of Operatose. Net unrealined foregn
euchiange gains and kosses arsang from changes in doreign exchange rates on
‘.[m\qﬁ denpminated assets and hanlmes other Than rnestmen|s @ securdies
el at the end of the reporting peniod are indisded in net change in
unrealized appredation or depreciation on fossign cumency assets and
abilibes Gh 15 Stabements nH'Ip:'qu;r.«

Thae et Aozt Value [ HAYV" ) and total refurrs of cermam Funds (or Classes
thereol, as applcable) are presented in the curnancy for which the NAV is
repierted (the “MAV curiency”™) as detaled in each Fund's Qfenng
Memorandum (the “Oflenng Memorandum™) For the purposes of the
presantation of the NAY and the total return in the NAY aomency, the
beginning and ending NAVs are corwerted using the peviod beginning and
ersding exchange rated, respectnety, and distnbutions sre commened using the
exchange tate at the tme of the distribution See the followeng table for the

HAV currendy of each respective Fund
. Furetesal
s AN Doy &
FIWED Barrrusds Baok Loas Fund (W0 U5 doller U5 dodar
PIMED Bermude Bank Loan Fund &
*  FIGDH U5, dollr IS doar
= JiUm Jagoras yen UE dofar
= JRSD Sapur e U5 dobr
I LR | ot pan L5 dokar
s viEn Japariess yn IS doflar
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FundTa MV herctionl P~ NAVE Furctiosal
PSMCTD Bermuuda Btk Lean Fund B FIMCD Barrrus LS. High Yistd Fundl 1 (M dagureta e S dobar
= Fikum hastralen defler 5. dollar IPMCT Core incoma Conporme Beord Fund 20010
= YA Japarese yen UE. dolar L 1) U 5. ol L%, dol
LI Japarese ven 5, dofer PMCT) Ermeeprg Bond Ten-Hecged | income Fund Japoens e U5, dolar
LI apanass yin S dolar PIKCD Ernergng Bond brome Fund Japuness e % dolar
= YiAE Jeparess yen 5. doller PN Ermacgreg Bored boree Fund N0 U5 dollr IS dobsr
LI 11 S Jniecs yn CER:2 FINET Emeepng Bend income Fund [
PSMCTH Earmenta Bk Lean Funel ST Japeress yan U5 dollar
R e Jagucdas po Lbn 2 = JiEn Japunese o0 1S detar
PSMCTY Birmda Bk Loan Ford O v JICAD Jappnese e WE. dollas
" Y [¥verldi Jﬂrm 5. dolar . JIChE* Japanecs yen US dolar
PIMACT) Eurmucda Dymaic Mults Asun S2ingy Ford «  JiDE Japanace g U5 dolar
= P Jagatess yen 5. dllar «  JENRI Sapurei e 5. dobwr
= IE0 L5 dollar L5, doker = JiERN Japaness yan L5 dob
H‘EI}EGMEHMMHMFUEIM- U5 dollai [T FA] LI ] Japanese yen 1S doflar
PSNACTY Blermucda Emérging blarksts Bond Fund 11 o JITAY Japaniss e LS dolar
LI LY Jegnrase yen U5 dollr PIMED Ernecgng Bond invame Fund I
= b Y Hesiged ot vin U5 delar # JiEUA Jaganeca IS dolar
PAMCT) Bormcds Globad Aggragate Ex-Jepan {Yas *  JiGE Japanace v L5 dollar
Hespedt Bierd Fard —— ! . D Jngart e (15 dokar
PEMCT} Eermoda Blobad Aggrogate Fu-Jagan Bond IPMCT Shers:Term Mortigage income
Fard SACRS T S 5 e T [ U dotas
PAMCT) Bermuda Gobal Aggregate Ex.Jopan Bord LI | Japanas e 5. dollar
Fend 1] p— E5. dolr LYY, Hedped Jagarese 115, ol
PIMCT Eecrods income urd U LIS dallai HE. dollar = IED S ol 11 5. dollar
P Bermudy intome Fund A PIKLT LS. Hagh Vol { eri-H 1 hnd Jagenase yen 115 dolat
= Fiml Janes yen 5. dolar PN 15 Hagh 'rosid [ Yor-Hdged] Fund I Apanecs yin IS dodar
s FilEDi LS dollar WS dolar PIMED LIS High Vil Fund Japanen 115 cloflar
L] JLPY] Japaness yen UE dolier | PR U1 S Hagh Yield Fuedt 1| Japoress pen |15 dollar
= JjuEDi s yen U5, delar PINECH L5 Hagh osld Straesgy Fund
= KIS U5 dolae U5 deder = Jim Japer e U5, colat
LI ] Jeginenn yen 05, dollar » LY, Hedgedi Japanese yen 115 dollar
L M (50 Adesory] UE dolar 5. dolr . JOLED U35 dollr U5 dolar
= R Jgmnese yen U5 dollar LI 1 Japaness e 1S dollar
= WIS Jagmrese yen 5 dollar » YL, Hedend] S i LS dol
= N ED LS dollar 5. dofer PIMCO U5 Hagh Yield Stradegy Fund I
s PLFT Jaganese yen U 5. dolar = YALDI e 5 dolar
= UM Jegmrese yen U5, doflar »  YiBRU Japanets s LS ol
= R apaness yen U5, dolar = Y{NON] Japaness et R4
= RABEH 15 dolar 5. dela o Y{TRI Jagoness yn US dolar
= ELEN Jogarese yen U35 ok PN Werkd High ncorns U5, il L5 dol
= T Jagrese yen U5 dolir * Effuctivs April 13, 20173 the Dlasa changed s ram om J \PUE} fo J (LHH)
LI <J Y ] Japainese yon U8, dollar
W SO - o "
: ;_J‘g,_’ \lJI;ad'::m :g x ) Mubticlags Oparations Each Class of a Fund offered by the Trust has
. ¥ !FEI v '“a‘" WS deliar rights to the assets of the Fund equal to that of other Classes of the same
5 '|'|JF-'r' PR S dollar Fund, a5 apphcable. except for specilic asets and gains a0d lossed designated
. YIEED JRELLY B dollar 1 & Class relating 1o curtency hedging epratans. [roame, mon-Class specfic
L) Jiganess gon 15 dolar expenses, and noa-Class spedific reakred and uniealized capeial gains and
ALY Berrasds ncome Furd 11 lonses ane allocated to each Chass of wnns based on the relatre net assets of
5 RN deiradan defar 05 dollar each Class of the sespectve Fund, a5 apphcable Chis speafic expendsd
Y [ferddl Jinese yen 05 dolar cumently indude management, advisory, administratve, agency and
PMACT) Bermidy Lo Durartc dnoome Fund distribution fees, where applcable
o g S o) Diatribution Poliey The fofiowing table shows the anticpated freque
PAMCT Bermuda Morig 9 iy
) Berm 2gage Opportonities Fund A - -
% bt LJPY Halinel] e H 5 dollar of detnibistions for each Fund Distributices fram sach Fund iy be decaned
T ﬁhﬁ.&:‘m U5 dols and distributed to Unitholders anly upon the suthorzation of the Manager
= :|;[|5:|| Jsgmress a0 1% deliar which aushonzation eay be withheld at the Managers discretion
= |E0 LIS, dofiar 1 5. doliar
PMCT Bermcds U5 Hagh Yoald Fured M) U5 dolai U5 dalas
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PMACE) Baemods Hask Lo Fared &
PO Basssuds Bask Lo fund B
PIMAC Bermuda Hank Loan Ford €

PARC0) Bormesda Bask: Loan Fund [
PARACO) Bieemsids bncomma Fund A
L
" Rl
Ll JIF
= s
W
]
WM SN
& DLm)
L] X
= RS
" ¥ L)
L B
PIMEED Bermuds lecomea Fund O
FINECD Bermuda Morigage Oppernmstes Ford
= Jim
= JiUEn
LI 1]
PARC0) Bmargeg Band [Fen-Hudged| Income Fond
FIMED Erergng Bord incoma Fund
FINED Erergng Bend lncama Fund 1l

PR Emergng Bond Income fond Bl
PANCD LS. High ‘ield [Yien-Hedgad) Fund
PIRECD L%, Hagh Yield Fund

PINCD LS. Hagh 'fosld Strasegy Fund
FIMCD L2, High Vil Strategy Fund I
PINED Wearld High Income

Declared and Pasd Du d

i

PIMAC Beruda o Fund A
- o

»  RAEDI
PIMC] Bermuda Dyrarmc WMuft-Sizel Siratagy hund
PIACD Bermaxda bncowme Fund A

L] P LI}
[l LR
FIKECD Short-Tesm Mortigage income
« R
LI
= JIPY, Hadgad]
* =D

The Messger does not enpeet ts declsne distribwtions with respeet to these

Funés jor Classes thereod, if applicablel, but may, In its discretion, declars
wiiil pay devtibutises in the Unitheldees ai sy 0
FINBCD) Barmusds Bank Loan Fusd! (WG

FICO Bermuoda Emangng Mackets Bord Furd B

PHACD Bermuda Emerging Warkets Bond Fund 1|

PINCO Bermusda Giobad Aggregate Ex-Japan [en-Hedged] Bond Fusd
FINCD Berrruds (lobel Aggregnin Ex-Japan Bord Fund

The Manager does not expect (o doclare i tributioes with respeet 1o thess
Funds (or Classes therwol, W spplicablol, but may, in ity Sseeetion, declara

and pay distribwlinns to the Unitheldars at any tiem.
PRMCO Bermuda Giohal Aggregate Bo-bigan Bord Fend (W5

PEMLT Bermuda income Fund A

= KDl

w LY Advesaryld

L] U520 Achemoryi

. T

L v 1Y

= W0

CI-11 -]
PRMLD Bermeda Income Fund k8
PRI Bermeds Low Duratios Incom Fund
PR Bermasda Mermgage Diportursties Fued

vt LY Hedged
PINLT) Bermeda 11 5. High Yield Fond il
PV Bormieda 113 High Yield Fund B M
PRI Core bncome Dorparate Boed Fund 2020110
PRI Emsipeng Boad lacome Fund (M1
PIMLCT) 1L 5. Hagh Yiokd [YmeHedgedi Fond
PEMED LU S, High Yeeld Fond

“ By datriburtioes wath eespect tn Chss U2 (J9Y] Lt of the: Fund wall be deciared in
acxondancy with 3 fpther agreement betwom the Mansger and the meesior n such (aes

Distrbartiors, f any, will genesally be made rom the releqant Fund's {or
Cha's, |I'.:pp|-:..|{1||,': et imnstment oame. I additon, the Managet may
autherize the payment of net realized capital gains available jor dstribution
Additional dstributions may be declared a5 the Manager deems appropriate:
Destrbutions paid with sespect to any Fund {or Class shereod, if appicabile)
will reduce the NAY of such Furd {oe Class thersof, o applicabde) At the
descretion of the Unitholders, cash distnbations from a Fund (or Class thereaf,
i ipplicable) may either be rervested i additicnal units ol a Fund {or Cliss
thereal, if spolicable} o paid 1o & Ureetholder i cash Cash payments wall be
pand in the NAY currency of the Fund. Each Fund (or Class: theneod, if
applicable) may declare further distributions if considered necessary in ceder
16 martain 3 reasonable lewel of distribusans bor 3 Fosd o Class thensod if
applicable] In the event that there s inadequate net income and ret realized
capita gains to pay a distnbuticn of a Fund (o2 Class thereof, if applicable)
sequined by the Offering Memorandizn, the Manager may pay & deirbution
consssting of @ portion of the capial of sudh Fund [oe Class thensod, i
applicable). Distributions nat collected within six years from their due date
will lapse and wall aocrue 16 the beneht of the relevant Fund {oe Class thersc!,
l applicable)

i) kst and Reperchase of Usits Subsequent o a Fusd (o0 Class thereod i
apphicablel commendng business, Units of each Fund (or Class thereod, if
aphiable) may be ishoed by the Manager an a continudus basis at the Net
Aazet Value per Unit of that Fued {or Class thersof, if appheabile] at the teme
of such isse, subject to the right of the Manager o its appointed agens, in
thee sole discrefion of the Manager, to tempaoranidy suspend such issue. Unless
stated atherwise in the relevant Cifierng Memorandun, for each Fund (o
Class thereof, if applicable), the issse price per Linit for such Units wall be the
Blet Asset Value per Unit determined on each Dealing Day caloulated a3 51
{orth belosw undes * Determanation of Meq Asast Valhoe: prownded shag il 3
request o purchase Urits in & Jorm acceptable ba BEH is mat recesved by BEH
pior bo 12:00 noon [Eastern time), the issue prce per Unil of the releant

Aisnil Ripirt || Detsbet 31, 2002
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Fund {or any Class thevecd, il applicable) shall be the Net Asset Value per Unit
ditermninisd o the rext Desling Day. In the G ol repurching of Units o
terminaticn of the Funds in the Trust which ase registered in Japan for direct
distribution in Japan, the Urits of such Funds shall be repurchased from
Unithokders in €ash No repurchase in kind may be allovwed in such Funds
Ewcept & otherwise previded in the relevant Offering Memarandum, payment
of the repurchase price wil b made by the Trustee o« its appointed agent by
bank trargler genesally within twe (2} Business Days after the Dealing Day
upon which the reputchate notce 1 received. of deemed 1o have been
recerved, by BEH, although under certain droumstances, payment may take
up i0 eight {E] Business Diays after such Dealing Day Unless stated otherame
in thir rebeear Offeneg Memorandum, the Funds ace not subject o
subscnplion of repurchase Tees; provided, however, a detnbautor apponted in
the parisdiction where a Fund is distrbuted may charge subscription o
reputchire foes in fuch amounts &5 agresd weth the Manager o the

Trustee

Il Nisws Aetausting Proasuncamonts sad Reguletery Updates o Maech
20200 the Finanoal Ace oURAIngG Standards Bosnd (" FASE™ ) ssyed an
Apcounting Standards Update (ASU™), ASU J020-04, which providis
optional guidance to exse the potential accounting burden assocated with
transitanng awiy foen the London Interank Offered Rate {“LIBOR "} and
other reference rates that ane expecied 1o be discontinged. ASU 2000-04 o
effective for certain refesence rate-relabed contract modifications that oooe
during the pencd March 12, 7020 theough December 21, 2022, In March
2021, the adesrssirator for LBOR anneunced the extension of the publication
of a majonty of the USD UBOR settings to June 30, 2023 In December 2022,
FASE issued ASU 2022-06, whch includes amendmends to mdend the
duraton al the US0R vansition rdiel o December 31 2024, after which
entities wall po langer be permirted 1o apply the referende rate reform relied
Management is continuously evaluating the pobential effect a decontinuabion
of LIBOR could have on the Funds” imvestments and has determined that it is
unlikedy the A5U"s adoption will have a material impact on the Funds’
financial statements

In June 3023, the FASE msued ASL 2033-03, Fair Value Measuremend [Topsd
EX), which aflects aF erlites that have investmens in equily SeCurties
measured at fair value that ane subject to a ontractuad safe restiction. The
amendments in ASU 2022-03 daify that a contractual restnction on the sale
of &n equity seaxiy & not comsidered part of the unit of accoust of the equity
sequrity and, therefore, is not considered in measuring the fair value The
amendments also require additional dedosures for equity seourites subject to
corriractudl sabe esrnction. that e mepored af far value in aocordance
wath Topic B30, The effectve date for the amendments in ASU 202203 ate
for fiscal years beginning atter December 15, 2024 and intenm periods within
those fiscal years A1 this tisme, managerment it evaluating the implications of
these changes an the finandcal stabements

3 INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

() Investmant Valuation Pelicies The price of a Fund's urts is based on
the Fund's NAY. The NAY of a Furd, or each of its Classes, as applcable, is
dhirtér i fisd by drading the tote value [:f[ql'.fp'lp rveslEnents g0d othid
assets atrbutable bo that Fund or Class, bess any abilites, by the total
nureber of units outstanding of that Fund or Class. On each Fund's Dealing
Dy (s described i the currest Offering Memarandum of the

Tiumth, Fund unats are and i ity wiued a5 of the close of reqular trading on
the Mew York Steck Exchange ["NYSE Close”). Information that becoemes
known ko the Funds. of thess agents afier the time as of which NAY has been
caiiulated on a particular day will not generally be used b retroactreely adjust
the pirice of a secutity or the MAY determined earher that day Each Fund

reserves the right to change the time as of which its NAY is calculated if
the Fund closes earer

For purposas of caloulatng NAY, portiolio securities and other assets for
which market quotations are readily avalable are valued a1 market vafue. A
market quatation is readily avalable caby when that quatation is a quoted
peice funadjusted) in actve markets Tor identcal ireestments that the Fund
an aooess 3t the measurement date, provided that a quetation will not be
readity avalable if 1 is not ekable. Markes valor i generally detemined on
thee baea of official diciang prices of the List repoited sales poces. The Funds
will normally use pricing data for domestic equity seowities received shortly
ater the NYSE Close and do nat nommatly take into account tradeng,
cleanoes o setthements that Take place afer the NYSE Clase. Imasiments
for whoth market quotations are nof 1eadily available are valued at far value
a5 debermined in good Faith at the Manager or persorns acting at their
deection. As & general panciple, the Tar value of & security or other 258t s
the peice that would be revesed to 56l an asset of paid to transfer a habadty
in an erdely transaction between market partopants at the measurement
date. The Marager has adapted methods for vafing securities and ather
Fssets i arcumstances where market quotes are nat readily available, and
has the resporsbility bor applying the Fair valuation methods. The Manager
vy vtk Fund pnrl‘.-:llh:l secrrilies for which markes UaTations ane fat
teadily seadable and gther Fund ssets utilzing inpas nom pracing senices,
quotation reporting systers, valuation agents and other third-party sources
{Iogether, *Pricing Sowrces”). A foreign (nonell 5.) equity secwity traded on a
‘.tsm:i;'l exchange of o mdde than ohe exchandge & I':,lp-;ul!', vialied wiinig
pricing inifermation from the exchange considersd by FINCO o be the
primany axchange. i marked value paicing is used, a fereign {non-L.5 ) equity
secunity will be valobd a5 of the dase of vading on the fareign exchangs, o
thee NYSE Close, if the NYSE Close ocours before the end of trading on the
{nresgn excharge. Domestic and foresgn {nom-U 5 J fixed incoee secunities,
nan-eichange traded demvataves, and equity aptions ane rommaly valued on
thie baead ol quates olitasndd Trom brokers and dealers of Pricing Soutces
wsing such data reflecting the prinipal markets for those secunties. Prices
obtaired {rom Pricing Sowrces may be based on, amang other things,
rilormaticn provided by matket makers of estenates of marker valees
obtaired from yield data relabng to Evestments or securities with smdar
characternbics Certan fined meome secunties purchased oa a delayed-
deinvery buasr a0 matked 5o markey daily ol senbemient 31 the Torwand
settfement date. Enchange-iraded options, except equity optons, futses and
options on fubwes ane valued at the settlement price determined by the
eetmvant exchange, quotes obtained from 2 quetaton reperting fystem.
established market makers or Pracing Sources. Swap agreements are vatued
on the basis of market-based prices supplied by Pricing Sowees or quates
chitaned fnom broters and dealers, A Fund's impesimenss in open-end
management imestment compacess, ather than exchange-raded funds
{"ETFs™), are valued at the MAYS ol such investments

H a foreign [non-U1.5 ) equity secunity's value has materially changed after the
close of the secunity’s primary exchange of principal market but bebane the
MYSE Close, the seourity may be walued a1 Far waluse based on procedures
edtablished and approved by the Manage: Foceign [ron-42 5 ) equty
securities that do nat Trade when the NYSE & open are also vafued 21 e
value With respect to barsign (non-U 5.) equity secunties, a Fund may
detemine the far value of investments based on indomation peovided by
Pricing Sourges, which mury regommend {ain valye o adjushmienls with
reference to other securities, mvdices or assets | oonsidenng whether fair
valuation is required and in determining faiv values, the Manager may, amang
ather thcegs, congidier $q||||'|:un1 evends (euch may b consideied 1o include
changes i the value of U5, seoutites of seowines mdices) that ecour after
the chose ol the refevant market and before the NYSE Close. A Furd may
wlilize modeling lools provided by third-pary vendors 1o determine fair values.
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of foreign lnen-U 5 } securities. For these purposes, wnless otherwise
determinid by the Marger, any moveminl in 1I|-c‘.|pp':|;.:br relenence index
of instrumend {"2era trigges”) bebween the earlier dose of the applicable
feeeign market and the NYSE Close may be deemed to be a sgnidicant event,
promptang the application of the pricing model (effectvely resusing in daily
Fair valuations) Fareign exchanges may permit radeg in fareign (non-U 5)
equity securities on days when the Trust is not open for business, wiich may
resat in & Fund's portdolia imesiments being affected when Unithalders an
unable 1o boy or sell units

Senior secured fleating rate kaans for which an active secondary market exsts
1o .a reliable degree will be valued at the mean of the Last available bodfask
praces in the market Toc such loans, s provadied by a Pricing Serdce. Senior
sacured fipating rate loans Tor which an acthve secondany market does mot
exsst to a refiable degree will be valeed at fasvakue, which is intended fo
apprommate market vaiee bn valung o senior secured Roating rate loan a1
Fair value, the factoes considersd may indode, but ane mot limited 1o, the
Tellowing: (a) the ceditworthiness of the bommower and any inbermediate
participants, (b the teemes of the laan, (<) recent prices an the market for
similar haans, iF amy, and {d] recent prces in the market for instruments of
similar quakty, rabe, penod unbl next interest rate reset and matunty

Imeesimends valued in cuenencees othed than the functonal cur PRy

of & Fund ane corvered to the funchional cutrency wang exchange ra1es
ochiained from Pricing Scurnces: As a result, the value of such investments, and
in tum, the BAY of the Fund's units may be allected by changes m the value
of curtences in relation 10 the funcional curnency. The valpe af imeesiments
traded in Boreign markets or denominated in cumencies ather than

the functional currency may be aflecied significantly on a day that the Trust is
nod open for business A5 & nesult, %o the exnent that a Fund halds Teeeign
[mon-U % ) invesiments, the vatue of those investreents may change af times
when you cannat purchase, redeem o exchange units and the value of such
imeestmenss will be pellocted i the Fund's net caloulated WAy

Fair vauation may require subseciive determinations about the value of a
secuity. While the Trust’s poficies and procedures are intended fo resuftin a
calrulation of a Fund's NAW that farly reflects security values a of the time of
pracang. the Trust cannol emure that Tair values detemined by the Manage:
of persons acting at ther direction would accoratety refieat the price that

a Fund could obtain far a security o it wene 10 depase of that seawity a5 of
the time o prceng (Bar indtance, i 3 forced or destressed sale] The piced
used by @ Fund may difier from the value that would be realzed if the
secuities were sokl

[b] Falr Valos Hisrarchy U 5 GAAP descnbes fai value as the proe that

a Furnd would recenve 1o 26l an Bset of pay to transfer & habikty in 20 ondely
transaction between market participants at the measurement date It
establshes a lair value heraschy that prieitizes inputs to valuation methods
and tequires drichosse of the Lae value hieraichy, separately for each magod
cateqory of ausets and liabilties, that segregates Tair value measuements into
lewels (Level 1, 2, or 3} The inputs ce methodelogy wsed for waluing securdties
afé pol tisoiEainky an indicaton o 1he ks saciated with wmeting in thods
spcurines. Levels 1, 2, and 3 of che Tair value hierachy are defined as faliows

= Level 1—Quated peices (unadjusted) in actave markets or exchanges fal
identecal assets and labikties

= Leved 2—Significant other cbservable inguts, which may indude, but are
not limited 1o, quoted prices for similar assets or habilities in markets that are
actiee, guated prices lor sdenitical oo similar assets of Babilies in markets thas
are el Bcthve, nputs other than quated prices that are obsanable lor the
assets or Babilitees (such as interest rates, yield ourves, volatlities, prepayment

speeds, lous sevenities. cradit risks and default rates] or other market
comoborited mputs

& L ‘.—E:grn‘mul unabservable: mpots bided on the best inlesmatan
Feailable in the arcumitances, 1o the eten cboerale imputs are et
available, which may indisde assumptions made by the Manager or persons
acting at their drection that ane used in determining the fai value of
rrlEish i

Assets of habilities calegonzed as Level 7 or 3 as of penod end have been
transfened between Levels 2 and 3 since the prior period due 1o changes in
the meshod utilzed in valuing the svessments. Trandlis from Leved 2 to Level
3 are & result of a change, in the noimal course of business, from the use of
valuateon methods wsed by Priong Sources {Levsl 2) to the use of 3 Broker
Quote ar valuataon technique which uliles: e dicant unobssrvable inputs
due to an absence of curent or rebable market-based data (Level 3)

Transfess. from Level 3 to Level 7 are a result of the awailabiliy of cument and
reliable markel-baded data p:w.-:h,d Rry Pricireg Source o ather valiaation
techengoes which ulilze significant cbservable snputs

I acnordance with the requirements of U5 GAAP, the amounts of transfers
inand out of Level 3, if matenal, ate disclosed in the Notes to Schedule of
Ievoiarnents for each respectnae Fund

For Fair valsations wsang significant unobsensable inputs, U5, GAAR equines
1o desclose bransiers info and out of Level 3 of the Fair value hierasdhy and
purchases and sspes of Leved 3 assets and habilites duning the pencd
Additicnally, U5 GAAP requeres quantitative infarmation reganding the
ssgnificant uncbrservable inputs used in the determination of fair value of
assets of habilities categorzed a5 Linngd 3 inthe far valoe kagranchy. In
Bocpedance with the tequirements of U S GAAF, a Tair value hietarchy, and if
matena, details of significant unobservable inputs, have been induded in the
Bates 1o Schedule of kvestments for each respectve Fund

{e| Waluation Technigues and tha Fair Yalue Hisranchy

Lawal 1, Lowel 2 and Lovel 3 trading assats and trading liabilities, at

fair vabes The valuation methods (o0 “techrigues™ ) and significant inputs
used in detemining the far valses of portiolic seourities or other assets and
Trablities caeqgeeized as Level 1, Leved 2 and Livel 3 of the far valoe Feranchy
are i follns

Fived income securities mcluding ¢orporate. comvertible and municipal bonds
and nedes, LS. govesnment agendes, U5 teasury obhgations, sovesmgn
rsues, banke baans, oomeertible prefermed securities and non-U 5. bands are
nomally valued on the basis of quotes chianed from brokers and dealers ar
Priong Sources that wie bioker-dealer quotations, reported trades or
valuabon estmates feom thesr intermal pricing models The Pricing Sousces
siiemal models use inputs that are observable sudh as issuer detals, snferest
rates, yiekd oarves, prepayment speeds, credit nsksispreads, default rates and
quodsd prices {or similar 2ptets Secuntes that use amilar valuatsan
techmiques and inputs as desoribed above are categorized as Level 2 of the
fair value hierarchy

Fimed income sécunties purchased on & delayed-dilneny basis of 35 4
repurchase commitment im a sale-biyback trarsacton are marked 1o markey
daily untd setthement at the forward settlement date and ate categorized as
Ll 7 of the Fair walue bagrandy

Morigage-related and asser-backed seounties ate usually ssued as separate
tranches, or dlasses, of securities within each deal These secunties are also
namally valwed by Pricing Sources that use broker-dealer quotations,
eported rades o valuaton estmates from their intemal priong models. The
peicing madels for these seowibes wsually ooesider tranche-level attributes,
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current market data, estmated cash flows and market-based yield spreads for
each tranche, and incomponate deal collanenl performance, & aeatlable
Maongage-related and asset-bached securities that wse similar valuation
techniques and inputs as described above ane categonized as Level 2 of the
fair vahae higranchy

Commen stacks, ETFs, exchange-traded notes and finanoad deerratne
instniments, such a5 futures contracts, rights and waerants, or ogitions on
Tutures that ane Traded on @ nabions secuntes ul:h.n:_}{'_ ane stated at the
last repocted sale or sentlement prace on the day ol valuation To the extent
these securities are actrely raded and valuation adjustments are not applied,
they are categorized as Level 1 of the far value heerarchy

Imeesimends valued {dencemnatad) m cunences ather than the funcional
ourendy of @ Fund ase comveried bo the functional curency using exchange
rates (oumency spot and forward rates) obtaired from Prcing Sources. As a
resutt, the MRV of & Fund's units sy be aflected by changes in the value of
curencies in refation o the funcional curency The value of secunties taded
in Foreign markets or denominated in currencies other than the functional
sirrency may be afected signilicantly on a day that the Trust is not open for
business Valoation adustments may be applied 5o certain securities that are
splely traded on a foreign exchange to account for the market movement
bebweeen the cese of the foreign markes and the NYSE Olose. These securitues
are valued wing Priceng Sources that consider the corelation of the 1rading
patterrs of the foreign security to the infraday tradng in the U 5. markets for
imeesiments. Securities wing these valuabicn adjustments ane calegorzed as
Lesved 2 o thee Tanr value histarchy. Preferred securities and other equities
traded c inactre markeds or valsed by relerence to smilar instruments are
also categorzed as Level 2 of the fair value herandy

Equity-hriced secuntss aie vadued by -'l'lHl:r.f.l:lu the lasl reported Lale o
serflement price of the inked referenced equity on the day of valuation
Foreign exchange adjustmenis are applied to the last reported price to
et the bokoed equ i‘p"‘.- trading curmency 1% thee contract's settling CUITEngy
These imestments ane catégeezed & Level 2 of the far vaiue beeraichy

Investments in registered open-end imvestmant comgpanies (other than ETFs)
wal be valued based upon the MAVYS of such imvestments and ane cateqonzed
a5 Leseel 1 of the fair value hierzechy Imvestments in eniegistered cpen-end
imeestment companies wall be caltulated based upon the MAWs of such
imestments and aee consdered Level 1 provided that the NANS are
obiervable, caboulabed dady and aee the value at whech both purchirses and
sales will be conducted

Valuation adpssiments may be apphied %0 certain exchange traded fulures and
optioni to account for markel movement Between the exchange settlement
and the NYSE dose These secunties are valued wsing quotes obtained from a
quotation reporting sysiem, established market makers or Priong Sources
Franoal demeatves using Sherse valaation adusiménts e I_.I:{‘?Qi-.’ﬁ‘: ]
Lesed 2 o thee fier value hiedarchy

Equity exchange-traded cptions and ower the counter finandal derrrative
instuments, such a5 Tooward foreign curency contracts and options contracts,
derrve their walue from undedying asset prices, indices, seference rates, and
other inpauts or a combination of these factors. These contracts ate narmally
waloed on the basis of quotes chiained from a quotation teponing system,
estabbibid market makiss o Pricing Sources (normally detesmined as af the
WYSE Chose). Depending on the product and the tetms of the transaction,
finanial dertvative instruments ¢an be valued by Pridng Sources (sing a
senies of techniques, mchyding samylation picing models, The pricing models
use inputs that are cbserved Tram actively quabed markets such as guoted
prices, issuer details, imdsces, biddask spreads, interest rates, implied
wikatibties, yietd cunvees dnadends and exchange b Foancal demvatne

mstruments that use wmilar valation techniques and inputs as described
abane aee cavegonsed s Level 1 of the i valye hieracchy

Centrally deaced swaps and over the counter swaps dertve thes value from
underying asset prices, indices, raference rates, and other inputs o2 a
combination of these factors. They are valued wwing a broker-dealer bid
quatation of on market-based prices provided by Pricng Sources [nommally
detarmned as of the NYSE Closa) Centrally cleared swaps and over the
countist fwapds can be valued by Pricing Sources wang 2 series of Sechnigues,
including samefation peicing modiels. The pricing modets may use inputs that
are pbserved from acteeely quoted markets such a5 the cvemaght index swap
rate, UBOR forwand rate, imenest rates, yeeld curves and credt spreads. These
sicuriies ane caleqocized a5 Level 7 ol the Rar value Beraicky

Witen a fair valuation method is applied by the Manager that uses signifecant
unohserrable inputs, imvestments will be priced by a mathod that

the Manager of pevions acting at thasir direction beleos reflects fair value and
ate categonted as Level 3 of the Tair value hierarchy

Py peicing procedures set the hase price of a fixed inoome security and
subsequently adjusi1 the price proportionally to markes value changes of a pee-
detemaned security deemed to be comparable in duraton, generalya U S
Treasury of sovereign note based on country of issuance The base price may
B & brgker -deater quete, thandacton phce, of an miternal value 35 demeed by
analysis of market data The base price of the secunty may be rebe ond
pevindic basis based on the availabikty of marker data and peocedures
approved by the Valuation Oversight Comemittee: Sigrificant changes in the
unohierrable inputs of the ploy priang process (the bare price) ol nesauht
in ditect and proparional changes in the fair value of the security, These
securities are cateqorized as Level 3 of the fair value Rerardhy

H third-party evaluated vendos pracing i5 mot avadable or pot desmed 1o be
ndcative of faw value, the Manager may elect to obiain Broker

Qucses directhy from the beoker-dealer or passed-through Broker Quote from
a third-paity vendar In the event that faor wahot 14 based upan a hn}f?
sourced Beoker Quote, thi=e securities are cateqocized o Level 3 af the Far
value hierarchy. Broker Quotes ane bypically recetved fram established market
partiopants. Although independently recened, the Manager does nal have
the eranspatency to view the underying inputs which support the market
quotation Sigrficant changes in the Braker Quote would have direct and
propartianal :I'-.m.]l:-g in the fairvalue of the wecunty

Relererce ingtmament valuation etimates Tair valye bry witihizing the cormelatian
of the seqeity to one of mone bicad-based secunities, market indaces, andior
olher financial instruments, whose priang informaticn i readily available
Unobsercable inputs may inchude these used in algositben Tormulas based on
percentage change in the teference instumenis and/or wesghis of each
reference instrument. Significant changes in the unobsenvable nputs would
result in dine) and progamignal changes in the Tair valyg of the ungy
Tt securdies are cateqorized as Level 3 ol the far value harandy

Common stock equivalent valuation estimates fair walhse by apphing an equity
adpustenent based on cbeenvable comparable companies” equity valoe
vananges. Significant changes in the vrobsenable inpuss would esult in
deed and propeetaonal changes an the fairvalue of the-secunty These
secunties are categorized a5 Level 3 of the Rer value ierardyy

The Descourted Cash Flovw madel i based on fubure cach Rows aeniabed by
the investment and may be nomalized based on epected imestment
pesformance. Fulure cash flows are discounted S0 present value using an
appropdiate tabe of retuen, typically cabbeabed 10 the inisial transaction date
and adjusted based on Capital Asset Pricing Mode] ard'or other market-
based inputs. Significant changes in the unctrservable inputs would result in
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direct and proporional changes in the Tair value of the secunty. These
SECuriles a0 Cabbgotinid a5 Level of the Lax value hstarchy

The Comparable Companies moded & based on application of valuaton
musdtiples from publicly traded comparable companies to the finanoak of the
subpect compary. Adjustmisnls may be made 1o the market-demed valsason
mudbples based on ddfenences bebween the comparable comparses and the
subject company. Segnilicant changes in the unobsercable inpats wiould resudt
in dinect and proportional dhanges in the Fair vafue of the security. These
spcuries are cabegotined &5 Level 3 of the Tae value hieranchy

The Comparable Transachons model is based an appfication of valuation
multiphes from cheervable tramacdions comparable to the security or
company, Adiusteents may be made 10 the implied comparable rantactan
mudbpies based upan differences between the obsened ransadions and the
subject company or secunity. Significant changes in the unohsensable inputs
waoild result in dineey and propostianal changes in the Tar value of the
security These securities are Cabbgonzed &5 Level 3 of the fair value hietanchy

Shart-term debt instruments (such a5 comemercial paper} having a remaining
maturity of B0 days or bess may be valued at amonized cost, so long as the
amortzed oost value of such short-term debt instruments & approxmabely the
same 3 the fair vabue of the instrument as detemened without the use of
amoricid oo valuaton. Thise secuntses ane categonded a3 Level 7 of Livel
3 of che Tair value hietaechy depending on the source of the base pice

4, SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

[a] Dedayed-Delivary Transactions Ceman Funds may punchae o sell
sequfities on a delayed-delrery basis. These transachons imobe a
commitment by a Fund to purchase or sell secunties for a predetermined price
or yiekd, with payment and delrvery taking place beyond the oustomary
setthement petiod When dilrped-delreery ransaction are outstandng

a Fund will designase or secene & collateral lngued assets & an amount
syfficient 10 mest e purchase price or respeciive abilgations. When
purchasing a seowity on a delaped-defivery basis, a Fund assumes the nights
and risks of cemership of the seousity, indwding the nsk of prce and yield
fluctrations, and takes such fuctuations into acoount when determining its
NAN. A Fund miy depose of o senegotiste a delayed-delnmny transaction
alves it entered into, which may result in a realized gain of loss. When

& Fund has sold & secunty oo a delayed-delveny basis, the Fund dees not
participate in future gaims and losses with tespect to the secuniy

[b] Inflatian-Indexced Bands Certan Funds may imvest in inflation-indened
bonds Infiation-indemed bonds ace fined mcome secuntes whose prncipal
w14 petiodically adjusted by the rae of mflaton. The mmerest rate on
these bonds & generally Toed at issuance at a rabe bower than typical bonds
Over the lile of an inflation-indexed bord, however, ingerest wil be paid
based an a princpal value, which i+ adpsted for sdlation Ay increase or
decrease in the principal amount of an inflaton-indexed bond will be nduded
a5 infevest intome on the $atements. of Operations, even though imeestors do
ol recerve their princspal unol matunty. Repaymnent ol the anginal Band
prncipal upon mabweity (a5 adpsted for inflatien] is guatantesd in the case of
U5 TIFS. For bends that do not provide @ smiar guarantes, the adjusted
prveepal value of the bond repaid at matunty may be less thim the anginal
prncipal

I} Lean Participations, Assignments and Oviginations Certan funds may
imoest in direct debt instruments which are interests in ampunts owed
lenders or lending syndicates by corposate, governmental, o ather bosrowers
A Fund's svissments o boans may be inthe farm of partcipasions in loars o
assignments of all or a partion of loans from thind parties or investments in or
originations of loans by the Fund. A loan is often administered by a bank o

other financial irstitution {the *lender™) that acts as agent for all holders. The
aqent sdminishers the 1em of the loan, a5 '\.r.r-::‘l{d i 1k hoan agreement

b, Fund may irvest in multiphe sesies of ranches of a kaan, which may ke
varying terms and caey different assocated risks When a Fund purchases
assignments foom lenders it acquires direct ights against the bomowers of the
hoans, These loars may indude participasions in bridge loans, which are boans
taken out by bormwears Tor 8 short peried (typically less than one year)
pending arrangement of mere permanent finanging through, S example, the
eauance ol bonds, Fequently high neld bonds msued fiar the purpose of
SGUISIHONS

Thee typeess o loars and related imeestments in whidh the Funds may smest
include, amane others, senior baans, shondnaed loans (including second
ien loans, B-Motes and mezzanine loans), whaole loans, commencial real
estabe and other commencial boans and structured boans. A Fund may
cigursdte boans of acguee direct infehests in lodns theough primadey loan
destributicer andian in private ansactions In the case of subordinated laans,
there may be signilicant indebtedness ranking ahead of the borower's
cbibigation 1o the hofder of such a boan, incheding in the event of the
benreowivet’s insobeency. Mezzanine baans are typecally sacuted by a pledge of
an equity interest in the morigage borrower that owns the real estate rather
Than an anbeniSt in & mongage

Iereeszments = koans may include unfunded loan commitmees, whach ane
contraciual chigations for funding, Unfunded loan commitments may indude
seecdving credit Tacilitees, which may obbigate a Fund 1o supply addibonad cash
10 thie boerower on demand . Urdunded loan commatments repdEsent a future
ohbligation in full, even though a percentage of the commitied amount may
ot be ublized by the bomower When imvesting in a kaan partiopation,

& Fund hag the rght 10 recetee paymients of pranapal, etenes and any fess 10
whach it & entithed anly from the lender seffing the loan agreement and only
wpon receipt of payments by the lender from the bomower. A Fund may
maciee 3 commitment Tee hased on the uwdrasn poafion of the ;Jnlj-FI|:,':.‘lg
firee of credit porson of a loan In cerain droumstances, & Fund may recenve a
penalty iee upon the prepayment of a loan by a borrower. Fees eamed o
paid are reconded a5 2 componen of interest income or interest expense,
espectively, an the Statements of Operatiors. Unfunded loan comemiments
ate reflected 26 a lisbdicg on the Statements of Assets and Liabdites

{41 Mortgage-Ralated snd Other Asset-Backed Securitions Cerman Funds may
irnvest in mortgage-retated and other asset-backed securities that diracthy ar
indtectly represent a panticpatan in, of ase secured by and payable from,
Foans on real propery. Mortgage-related securities are created from pooks of
residential or commercial mongage leans, induding mongage foans made by
arangs and loan irSUiulions, morlgeps bankes, eommeraal banks anad
oithiers. These secanties provide a mosthly peayment which consists of bath
imterest and principal. Interest may be determinad by fied or adjustabbe rates
The rate of prepayments on undertying mertgages well aflect the price and
vodablity of a morgage-refated seouty, and may have the efled of
shartening or extending the effective duration of the security eelative to what
war anticipated a the time of purchase, The Smely payenent of prncipal and
intenest of cemain morigage-related teouites B quarasieed waith the full Tath
and credit of the U 5. Gevernment Pools created and guasanteed by non-
gavernmental isuers, including governmen tspanscred corperations, may be
appocted by vanicws Torms of insurance of guacantess, but there can be na
assurance that private insuners of quarantors can meet their obligations under
the insurance policies or quarantee amangements. Many of the ks of
irneting in mortgage-related seounies seouned by commencial mongage
bevarnes redflect the effects of local and cther economic conditions om 1eal estate
markets, the abifity of tenants to make lease payments, and the ability of a
proprty 10 ottt and netan tenants. Thise secuntass miny be leds bgusd and
may exhibit greater proce welasdity than other types of mortgage-related or
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other aset-backed securities. Other asset-backed securities are oeated rom
Ty bps of ey, including, but nat b sed 1o, auta loans, acounts
recenvable, such as credit cand receivabbes and hospital agtount recetvables,
home exquity loars, student dnans, boat loars, mebile home loans,
recreational vehiche loans, manudactered housing loans, ainaft leases
cermputer leases and syndicated bank lparrs. The Fund may imvest in any level
of the capital steciuee of an issuer of mortgage-backed or asset-badbed
seouilies, mehuding the equity or “frst bos” tranche

o] Collateralized Morigage Obligations [ "CMWOs") ane debt obligavons of a
legal entity that ate collateralized by whole morgage loaes o prvate
mirtgage bonds and diveded into classes. CMOs are stnechured inbo mudople
classes, often referred 1o a5 “tranches”, with each dass beaning a diffesent
stated maturdty and entitled 1o a different schedule far payments of prinopal
and inferest, indwding prepayments ChOs mary be less hgud and may exhibit
greater price volatility than othes types of mortgage-related or asset-backed

siCunlhis

If1 Sirippad Mortgage Backed Sacurities {"GMBS") are derratee mult-class
miigage secunties. SMBS are usually stnectwred with two classes that receive
diffesent proporions of the imterest and principal distributions on a pool of
morigege aisets An SMES vall have one cliass that wall recemee all af the
inbeeest (iFe irenest-anky of "0 class), while the ot class wall recedve the
entice prscipal {the princpal-onldy or “POT dass) Payments received for s
are included in interest income on the Matements of Operations. Because no
principal will be recetved at the matunty of an 10, adjusteents ae made to
the cost of the sequrity on a monthly basis uni maturity These adjustments
ane included in inteiest incame on the Statements of Operaton Paymens
recenved for PO ane treated as reductions 1o the ¢ost and par value of the
sacuities.

Ip Collateraliced Debt Obligatieas ("CD0s™) incude Collateralzed Bond
Obhgatsans (*CBOx™) Collmeralized Loan l:bl-;nlltm-:‘fll;'l';'l ard otk
similarty structured secursties. CBOs and CLOS ade types of asset-backed
sacuriies. A CBO i a trust which is backed by a diversified pood of high risk
below imestment grade Timed income seountses. A UL i a st opically
collateidaied by & pocd o lans, which mudy include, amang others, domdsnic
and bareign senior secured boans, senicr unsecured faans, and subordinate
oepocate loars, incuding koans that may be rated below evestment giade or
equivalens unrated foars. The mis of an evestment o a CDO depend kagely
on the type of the collateral secuntes and the dass of the (D0 in whidh

a Fund irvests In addition to the nonmal risks assoniated with fed income
st it chicysded eltevwhine i this cepor ansd the Funds’ D‘.ll,'unq
Mesnarandum (2, prepayment hik, eredit nak, Bousity ek, market ek,
structural nsk, fiegal risk and interest rate nisk (which may be exacerbated d
the mterest rate payabde on a stnachesed fingncing changes baded on
midtiphes af changes in iptene<y rates of imversely 1o chamges in interest
rates)), CHOs, CLOs, and other CD0s camy additional risks including, but not
limited %o, (1] the possibility that distributions. from coll aberal seourities will not
b adequate 1o make intéresl of other payments, (i) the quality of the
cofateral may decline in value of default, () the risk that a Fund may ivest
in CBOs, CLOs, or cther C00s that are subcadinate to other dasses, and ()
the complis sttucture af the seasfity miy sat be Tully whderitood 8 the time
of ivvestment and may produce disputes with the issuer of unexpected
imeestment nesuts.

[h} Payment lo-Kind Securithes Cetain Funds may imeest in payment svkind
secu ihes [T PIK™ ) PG mary ol B e this option a each inteiest
payment date of making interest payments in either cash andfor additional
debt securities. Those additonal debt securitses usually have the same terms,
including mabutity dates and interest rates, and assocated ngks as the
ongingl bonds The daly marker quotatons of the anginal bends may indude
the accrued inbesest {referred bp as a "dirty prce” ) and sequire a pro frata

adnstenent from the uneealized appreciation or deprediation on mvestments
10 imeeds recereabile on the Stasements of Aot and Liabilites

) Rastricind Sexurities Certain Funds say hald imvestments that ae subjec
1o hagal or contractual restnchions oe fesale. These securitses may be sold
puneately, but may be required o be registered o exempted from such
tigistatan beloee bixing) 508 10 the: pubile. Frraaie placement Secumties ang
genetally considensd o be restricted. Dispodal of restrcted imvastments may
irvedve lime-gonsuming neqotiabions and expenses, and prompt sale at an
acceptable price may be difficult to achieve. Restricted imvestments held by
the Funds st Oetaber 31, 2022, a3 appheable, are deicdated in the Nates o
Schedule of krestments

§ Structored Noter Certain Funds may imvest in struciured nates and othe
related mstruments, which aze prvately negotated debi obligatiors in which
the prinopal and! of interest 15 determéned by reference to the performance of
a benchmark assel, marked of interest rate [an " embedded index”], such a5
sefiecied seouribes, an index of seountes or specfied interest rates, or the
differential performance of hwo assets or markets, such a5 indexes rellecing
Bands. Stroctuted i mtramints sy be isoed by corporations, sncluding
banks, a5 well as by govetnmental agencies The feres of such sirucrured
Irstruments noemally prowide that their principal andfor intevest payments are
T boe arclpusted wpwands o dowmaands (hut ondinanky nat befew pen) ta
iellecy changes in the ervbddid index while the stnscheed instnements ae
outstanding. As a result, the interest andfor pancpal payments that may be
made on 3 structured product may vany widely, depending on a vanety of
Tactors, including the volatility of the embedded ndex and the effect of
changes i the embedded index on prancipal and'o! misrest payments

) UL.S. Government Agencias or Goverament-Speasared Enterprises

Cortan Funds may ivastin snourities of U S Gowesnmint aencies of
gavernment-spansoced enterpraes U S Government secunties ane
cbbgatiors of and, in certain cases, guarantesd by, the U 5. Government. its
agencies or instrumentalities. Some U S Government seounties, such 35
Treasury bills, petes and bonds, and securities quaramieed by the Government
Hational Mortgage Assooation (" GNMA™ or "Ginnie Mae™), are supported
by the full faith and credit of the U S Govermment; others, such as those of
the Federal Home Loan Banks, s suppaned by ke r|:|||!¢f thi (340t o
Esareowy from the U 5 Department of the Treasury (the "U S Treasusy™); and
olhers, such 36 those of the Federal Nasonal Mortgage Association (TFNMA®
ar "~ Famre Bae” ) ane supported by the dscretionany authenity al the LLS
Governmend to purchase the agency’s cbdigations. U5 Govermment secunites
may indizde 2era coupon secunties, which do nat dismbute interest on 3
curient huasis and tend 10 be subjict 102 gréater rik than slensl-paying
secursties of samelar maturites

Government-selated quarantors {i.e, not backed by the full taith and oedit of
the U5 Govemment) incude FRRA and the Federal Home Laan Mongage
Copocation {“FHUMC " or *Freddie Mac™) FRMA & 2 qovemment-spondoted
coiporation. FRMA puechases comventaonal (i e, not insued o quaranbeed by
any govemment agency) residential morgages from a list of approved
sellerafienacers which imchude state and federally chanered wnings aod loan
associations, mulsal sxangs banks, commercal banks and credit uniens and
miarigage bankers. Pass-through secunties issued by FNMA ame quasantesd a5
1o timihy payment of pringipal and mienest by FRMA, but ahe noq bahopd by
the full faith and credit of the U5 Gavernment. FHLME ssues Partiopation
Certificates (" PCs™ ), which are pass-through secunities, each representing an
undnidied ntenest in 2 pool of nesidential martgages. FHUMC guatantees the
timely payment af inbezest and ulomate colfection of prencipal, but PCs ace net
backed by the full faith and credit of the U 5. Government

I Bune 20715 EMMLA and FHLMC started imling Uretams I-.l'ﬁdg.agc-E-n:l ed
Secunites | UMBS" | in place of thelr current alferngs of TRA-shoble
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securities (the ~Single Security Initiative™) The Single Secunty Iritiative seeks
b2 suppait the overal I||;||.:||:|r,'n': 1 TE markes and dgre the
characieristics of FMMA and FHLMC certificates. The effects that the Single
Security Initiative may have on the market for TBA and cther morigage:
backed sequrithes ane underain

Refl-Deane strateges can be psed where a Fund seeks 10 extend the
expiration or matrity of 3 positon, such as a TBA saaurity on an underying
asset, by clasing out the pedtion bedane exgutabion and opemng 4 new
porition vath respect 1o substanzially the Lame underkang asaet with & Later
expiration date. TEA securities purchased or sold are reflected on the
Statements of Assets and Lishilibes as an asset or lability, respectreely

{1l When-lssued Transectiess Certain Funds may purchase or sell secunties
o wihenisgued basis. Thesr rantacmons are made conditionally because 3
security, although aighorized, has not et been issued in the market
Transactions to purchase oo sell securities on a when-sssued bass imoive

a commitment by 2 Fund to puechase or sell these seouities for 2
pridetemened poe of yeeld, wath payment and delreny taing place biyond
the customary satilement period A Fund may sell when-issued secuifies
before they ane defvered, which may result in a realized gain or loss

Im] Baak Dbligations Bark chligations in which 2 Fund may invest include
certificates of dipoy, bankers acceplances, and doed B diposats
Certificates of deposit ae negotiable cerificates ssued agairst funds
depesited in @ commercial bank for a defirte period of time and earning 3
spenfed retuin. Sankers SLoEplances aie m.‘w;cﬂl.]llll,' drafis of blls of
exchange, nedmally deawm by an impeites or expartes to pay Jor spedific
marchandise, which are " accepied” by a bank, meaning, ineffect, that the
bank ungonditsanalky e 1o pay she Tace walue of the indtrument an
maturity, Fooed time deposs are bank obligatons payable a1 a stated
maturity date and bearing interest at a foed rate. Feed time deposits may be
wathdraem on demand by the mmvestor, but may be subject 1o early
wathdearwal penaliies which vary depending upon markel condtions and the
remaining matuity of the abligation

5. BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

The Tellewsing desclosures conain information an the Funds’ ahiliny o lerd o
borrow cash ce seowtities 1o the extent peemitied under the Ofezing
Memararscum, which iy Eee vidssd a6 I,u;\m;wr\-g ar 1|n.m4:!"-g transactions
by the Funds The location of these instruments 1= described below: For a
detailed descnption of oedit and oounterparty nsks that can be assooiated
with Eamanwings and ather iranang transactaons, please see Note 7,
Prancipal and Other Risks

|a] Repurchase Agreamants Certan Furds may engage in repurchase
agreements. Under the terms of a iypical repurchase agreement,

a Fund purchases an underying debrt dbligation (ollaterall subject 10 an
oblgaten of the wller 1o repuichase, snd a Fund 1o resell, the obligason a5
an agreed-upon paice and time. In an open matunty repurchase agreement,
Ihere is no pre-determined repurchase date and the agreement can be
terminated bry the Fund of counterparty &1 ary time The sueket value of the
codlateral must be equal 1o of exceed the total amount of the repurchase
chligations, incuding interest Repuschase agreements, induding acoued
mnterest, &e included on the Stasements of Astets and Liabilmes. Infenesy
eamed i recorded & a companent of irenest inceene on the Statements of
Operaticns. In periods of inceased demand for collateral. a Fund may pay a
few for recespt ol cofiateral, which may result in intenest experrse to the Fund

[b] Revvmrse Repurchase Agreaments Cevlan Funds may enter oo mer e
repunchase agresments. [n a teverse repurchase agresment, a Fund deliers a
secustity in enchange for cash to a finandial institution, the counterparty, with
a Smuianeaus agreement 1o repurchase she same o substantiafly the same

secuny at an agieed upon price and date. In an open maturity reverse
tipurchins Spivement, There 0o pre-detemmaned nepurchake date and the
agieement £an be femunated by the Furd or counterparty at any time

A Fund is entitled to recenve principal and intevest payments, if any, made an
thee security defroened 10 The countesparty during the Sem af the agneement
Cash recesved in emchange far secunivies delered plus acciued inderest
payments ta be made by a Fund 10 counterparties ane reflected as a ability
on the Staterments of Assets and Liabilies. Infenest payments made by a Fund
1 counteparties are eootded 2 & companent of inetest opende on the
Statements of Dperations In penods of increased demand for the security,

a Fund may recene 3 fee Tor use of the secunty by the coanteparty, which
eyttt io imeredt inccene 103 Fund. A Fund waell sagregale Htels
determined 1o be bquid by PIMCD or will cthenwise cover its cbigations
under eeerse repuichase agreements

k| Sale-Buybechy Cestan Funds may enter into finanang ransactions
silirend B as “sale-binbacks’. A sali-budack ‘.rl.'uu.n'll; ransaction cansishe
of & sale al @ secunity by a Fund o a finandal insbtuthon, the counterparty,
with a simuitanesus agresment 1o repurchase the same or substantially the
samm security o an dgreed-upona pice and date A Fund 5 nat entrtled to
tecatie principal and inenest payments, i ary, made on the securty sol 1o
the counterparty during the tem of the agreement. The: agresd-upon
procesds for secunibies o be repurchised by a Fund e reflected a5 a habdity
an the Satements of Assets and Lighilties & Fund well recogrize net inoome
eepresented by the price differential between the price received for the
translered secuity and the agreed-upan repurchase prce. This is commonly
teferred to as the ‘peice drop’ A price diop corsasts of (i) the faregone menest
and inflasonary inceme adjustments, if any, a Fund woubf have otherwise
maceved had the secunty not been sold and (i) the negotiated financing Sems
etween @ Fund and cousiterpaty. Foregane intecest aed inflatianary income
adjustrents, f any, ae recofded &5 components of interest income on the
Statements of Operations Inferest payments based upon negotiated finanong
e made by a Fund o counterparties ane recoeded a5 a companent ol
rilefest experrie on the Statements of Opesatons. In periods of increased
demand far the seourity, a Fund may recee a fee for use of the security by
the counterparty, which mapy reseft in inbeeest income to o Fund A Fund will
seqregane atsets determingd 1o be lagquid by PIMCO or wdl othensse ooer s
obbgations under sale-buyback transactions

0 Shoat Salex Certain Funds may enter info short sales transactiors Short
sk ang tranddcticer in which the Fund $eils a securmty that it may neg cwn
4, Fund may make short wales of seounites 1o (i) offset potential declines in
long pesations. in similar seouwities, (il bo increase the Bewbility of the Fund

(i) foe imeestment, retum, () a3 part of a risk arbitrage strateqy, and () a5
pait of o5 ovinall portiolo management strasegies erchang the use of
derivative instruments. When a Fund engages in a short sale, it may bomow
the secunity scld short and debver it to the counterparty The Fund vl
ordnaily hkive 1o pay a fee of premium 3o bedrew 2 security and be cblgated
1o repay the lender of the security amy dwidend o interest that acorues on the
security during the percd of the loan Securities sold in shon sake transactions
ard the dindend or interest payable on such securities, if ary, are reflecind =
paryable for shiom sales on the Statements of Assets and Lishdites Shan sales
expose the Fund 1o the nisk that it will be reqaved to cover its shoet position
at a time when the security ar other asset has appreciated inovalue, thus
resultrng in losses 1o the Fund: A short sale 15 " against the bax” i

the Fund holds in its portiolio or has the right to acquire the sequrity sold
short, o secutites identical 1o the secunty sokd shoet, at no additional tost

A Fund wall be subject o addivonal rsks to the exten that i efijages in shor
sales that are not ° against the box”™ A Fund's Joss on a shoet sale could
thiegretically be unlimitad in cases where the Fund is unable. for whatever
meason, 10 close ouf its short postion
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{a] Lime of Credit AMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) entered o 3 364-
day senior unsecured revohing et agreement with the Bank of Toiyo-
Msusbisha UF), Lod ("MUFG") and other commescal banks oo be utdized for
temparany purposes to fund Unitholder redemgitioes ar for other short-tem
liquidity purposes. MUFG serves a5 both a bank and as an agent for other
banks that se pares 16 tha areement FIMCOD Barmgda Bant Doan Fund
(M) pays Bnancing charges based on a coebination of S0FR-based variable
plus a credit spread. The Fund also pays a Tee of 0.30% per annum an the
unused comeEtment amounts. The agreement was renewed on August 15,
02t aed capined onfugust 18 2023 unless extenced of renewed Thene s a
maxemum avalale commitment amount for PINCO Bermuda Bank Loan
Fund (M) equal to 515,500,008 Prior to August 19, 2022, the maximum
available commitment amount for the Fund was $4°5 000,000 and the Fund
paid a fee of 0.275% per annum an the unused comenitment amounts.
Commitment, uplront and interest fees of $137 270 paid by PIMCD Beirasda
Bank Loan Furd (M) aee included = intenes expnge i the Slatemsls ol
Dperations

Dunreg the pexiod, there were no bomowangs on this ine of oedit

6. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The fedlewnng desclosures comtain infomeation oo how and wivy the Funds e
finarcul dimedineg 1ngtnomints 208 how binanaal défacalne msluments
affiect the Funds” financal position, results of aperations ard cash Tlows, The
location and fair value amounits of these instruments on the Statements of
Aggets and Lighilities and the net nealized gain (loss) and net change in
unriahned apprecistion (depresadtion) an the Matemenls of Opeationd, gach
categarized by type of financial detivative contract and related risk exposure,
are included in a table in the Nodes to Schedule of imestments. The financial
derivatve inruments outitanding as of perod end and the amounts of net
realzed gaim {less) and net change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation)
on fnancal dervative instruments during the percd, as disdosed in the
Hotes 1o Schedule of Invesiments, sered 3t mdicatons of the wileme of
financial dedtvative actvisy far the Funds

|al Farvard Foreign Currency Conftracts Cerain Funds may engage i
forwarnd foreign currency contracts in connection with settiing planned
purdhds ar wates ol secunte, 1o hisdge th curfency aorsune dsocated
wath same o all of a Fund's secunities of & pan of an imesiment stransgy, &
forward foreign curnency cantract is an agseement between two partes 1o buy
and sl a curency at a set price on a lutwre date. The market value of a
Ferwand lonesgn aurrency conteact Nuctuates wath changes in Lonewys curiency
exchange rates. Foreard foreign cumency contracts ane marked to market
daily, and the change in value is recorded by a Fund as an unrealized gam or
loss Realzed quns of losses e sgual 10 the diffeence between the value of
the contract af the time it was apened and the value at the time 1 was dased
and ase reconded upon delivery of receipt of the currengy. These cantracts
Ty b market nik in i of e unneglized e o o el an
the Statements of Assets and Liabilties. In addition, a Fund could ke exposed
to nisk if the counterparties ane unable to meet the terms. of the confracts or if
the value of 1he currency changes unfaeorably ba the functional curenty. Ta
mitngate such nsk, cash or secunities may be exchanged as colateral pursuam
tor the temms of the underlying contracts

Cestann Funds, having a hedged Class, may also emer mio farward lecesgn
curreray caniracts desigred 10 offces the eflact of hedging at the Fund beeel in
order i leave the hedged Class with an exposwre to turrendies other than the
furtional cumency. There can be na quarantee that these Class speafic
fesward foresgn currency contracts wall be sucoesstul

[b] Futures Contracts Certain Funds may enter imlo fuluees contracs A
futures contract is an agreement to buy or sefl a secunity o other asset fora

se1 price on a future date and is traded on an exchange. A Fund may we
Tutues Conbacs o ranae i expaiund 10 1he secuntais matkels of 1o
miemEnis. in interest rates and cumency values The primaey risks associated
with the use of futures contracts are the imperfect comefation between the
chandge in market value of the securites held by 2 Fund and the prices of
futures conbracts and the passibility of am dliquid market Futunes comtracs
are valued based vpon their quoted dady setthement prices. Lipon entering
it @ futunes conteact, a Fund i reguared ba degrosit with it futures braker an
amount of cash, U S Gowermment and Agency Obligasons, oo select sovesegn
debt, in accoedance with the initial margin requirements of the broker oo
exihange Futures contracts are marked to market daily and based on such
mnowemdns in the price of the conreacts, an appropnate purpable o recenvable
fior the change invalue may be posbed or collected by the Fund [ Futures
Variation Mangin™h Futures Vanation Mangins, if any, are dischosed within
centtally deaned financal derrvatne instruments on the Matements of Aot
and Luabdlites. Gains ce losses ane recognized but not consadeced realized unil
the contracts expire or close. Fusures contracts involve, 1o vanyng degrees,
risk of bass in enznss of the Futures Variation Masgin indiuded within
exchange traded or centially deared financial dervative instruments on the
Statements of Assets and Liabities

i} Optiona Contraete Certain Funds may write o purchase apbors to
erhance retuims oo 1 hedge an exling pasition or Tuture imwestresst. Cerain
Fumds may weite call and put options on securities and financial derivatye
irstruments they owin of in which they may irvest Winting put options. tends.
1o increase a Fund's exposune 1o the underking instnament Witing <all
opbioe temds to decrease a Fund's expoduce 1o the underying instument
Vihen a Fund writes a call or put, an amount equal to the premium recefved is
recoeded and subsequenily marked to market to reflect the curment valee of
the cption wrilten These ameonts s includsd an the Statements of Asgets
and Lighilites Premiums recenved from writing cptions whach espare are
treated a5 realzed gains. Premiums recetved from wniting optians which are
exerored or chosed are added to the procoeds or offset agarst amounts paid
an the underying fulures, swap, Secunty of cuimendy transaction o determine
the reafized gain or loss. Certain options may be written with peemiums to be
detemmaned on a fulue date The premagmns for thisse options. ang based upGn
ienprhed volatifiny parameters af speclied teema A Fund a5 8 weiter of an
option has no control cver whether the undeding mstrument may be sold
{"call” ) or purchased ("put™) and as 2 resuls bears the marked risk of an
unfavoratie change in the prce of the instiament underhying the witten
option There is the nsk a Fund may not be able to enter into a dosing
trarsaction because of an Wiqud market

Certain Fundh may 250 purchade put and call options Purchiging call sphoas
tends 1o increase a Fund's expasure 1o the underking instrument. Purchasing
pul opticers tends to decrease a Fund's esposure to the underlying instrument
& Fursd pays a prevmum which s ncluded a5 an asset on the Statements al
Assets and Liabilites and subsequently marked 1o market to reflect the
curent value of the option. Premiums paid for purchasing options which
exping @ roated & realized lodies. Comtan aptices may B purchased with
peemiums 1o be detérmined on a future date. The presiurs for these options
are hased upan impled velatdity parameters at specified terms. The eisk
asspaated with purchasing pat and <all opBios is limited 1o the premium
pliid. Presoums pasd far purchiting aptioes which e embised of closed ate
added to the amounts paid or oifset against the peocesds on the underkring
irnvestment trarsaction to determine the reakized gain or loss when tha
underhysng 1Eansacnon s iyt

Cradit Defantt Swaptions Certan Funds may waibe or purchase credit defautt
swaptions to hedge exposure o the oedit risk of an emrestment without
mating a commilment b the underfying instrument. A credit default swapbion
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is an option 10 sell o buy credit protection 1o a specific reference by entening
1t a pre-defired e agreement by some spetcified date in the futune

Foreign Corressy Options Cetann Funds may wiite or purchase feeegn
ourrendy ephions 1 be used as a short o long hedge against possbis
wariations in foeeign exchange rates or fo gain exposure bo foresgn cusrencies

Intlation-Capped Dptiees Certain Funds may wiele o purchase inflation-
capped opfang b ehhanoe mehams of fiar hedging oppoitunitess The purpdse
of purchasing inflation-capped options is to protect  Fund from inflation
eroson ahove a cerlain rabe on a given noticnal exposue. A floor can be
usied o gpve dosndide peobiechion 10 ievestments in sllation-linked producs

Iminrest Rate Swaptiens Coamuin Fundg iy Wit e of purchate intenest rte
swap s which ate options 1o entet into 3 pee-defined swap ageement o
to shorten, extend, cancel or othersse modily an emsting swap ageement,
by same specrhed date m the futurs, The witer of the swapticn becomes the
counterpaty 1o the swap if the buyer exerdses. The ntenest rate swaption
agreement will specfy whether the buyer of the swaption will be a fmed-rate
receives of 3 fand rate payer upon exense

Dptinns en Exchange Traded Futures Contraets Certain Funds may wite o
purchase optioes on exchange-traded futures contracts {"Fuiures Option™) 1o
hedge an existirg position of futune evestment, for speodatie puposes o to
manage exposuse o market movements. A Fulures Option is an option
cesmiract i which the underkang instrament i 2 single futures contract

Dptions en Securitios Cértan Funds may snibe of puichase optons oh
securities 80 enhanoe returms of 1o hedge an ewsting position o lubse
imvestment. An cplion on a seowity uses a specified secwity s the undesking
insbrurmen for the O Coflra

[} Swap Agressmnts Certan Fumds may Brest in swap AFeements Swap
agreements are bilaterally negotiated agreements between aFund and a
counterpaity %o exchange o swap imvestment cash Fics, assiots, feewign
ournencats of marker-linked regures af spedified, fulue intervals Swp
agreements may be privately negotated in the OTC market or may be deared
throwgh a third-party, inown as 3 central counterparty or demvatives deanng
organizasion " centrally cleared swaps™) A Fund may enter inbo asset, credit
defaidy, cross-cumency, intenest rate, total reharn, vanance and other forms of
SWE AFEEMeNts 10 manage its exposure to oedit, ourency, inberest rate,
cormmodity, equity and inflanan eisk. In coprection with these aqreements,
secufibes of cash may be sdentified a: collateral or mangn i accoedance wath
the terms of the respective swap sgreements 1o prowde assets of value and
recourse in the event of defash or bankuptopfirsohency

Centrally cleared swaps are marked 1o market daily based upon valuatons &
determined fram the underlying contract or in accordance with the
requeements af the central counterparty ar dervatives cheaning crganization
Changes in macket value, if amy, a0e reflected &5 2 companent of met change
in unreakzed appreciation (depreaation) an the Statements of Dperanons
Diadly changes in valuation of cenirally cleand swaps [ Swap Vanation
Margin™), if ay, aee disciosed within centrally deansd fnancial dervatie
instrumenis on the Statements of Assets and Lisbdties OTC swap payments
received of paid at the begirning of the measurement pericd ane induded on
the Statements of Asets and Liabilties and eepresent premiums paed of
recetved upon entering into the wap agreement to compersate far
differences between the stated terms of the swap agreement and perevading
market condilions {credit spaeads, cumency exchange rates, interest rates, and
othé redevant Tacar] |.|p1|dn| pimuims tecenadd asdy ane imbally fecnrdisd
as ligbilities [assets) and subsequenty marked fo market to reflect the cument
wale of the swap. These upfont premiums are recorded a5 realized gains or
losses an the Statements of Operations upon lemmnation of maturdty of the
swiap A lngedation payment received of made at the termination of the swap

is mecoeded & realized gain o less on the Statements of Diperations. Net
petiodic piyments recerid o paid by & Fund aee included &5 pan of realzed
ganns o losses on the Statements of Operatioes

For purposes of apphang certain of a Fund's imestment policies and
restrickions, swap agreements, libe other derrvatve instruments, may be
valued by a Fund at market value, potional value or Tl exposure valiee bn the
case of a medit defiault swap, in applying certain of the Fund s investmant
pobcies and restrictans, the Fund will wilus the credi diedanh awap at ith
nationa value of its full expesure valoe (i.e, the sum of the motiona amaunt
for the contract plus the market valuel, but may value the oedit dedault swap
at market value for purposes. of applying certain of the Fund's other
irresbenint polcies and ntachions. For example, thee Fund miry vale crisdit
dedault seaps at full exposure value foe purpeses af the Fund's credit quality
quidebres {if any) because such value in general better reflects the Fund's
actudl ecanomic expodure duing the teem of the credit defaudt swap
ageement As aresult, a Fund may, attimes, have notional expasure 1o a0
asset dlass [before netting] that i greater or lesser than the stated limit or
restriction noted in the Fund's Offering Memarandum: B thes consent, both
the retional amaunt and the market value may be posithe of negatie
depending on whether the Fund is seling or buying protection through the
credit delault swap The manner m whech cerlin securnitees of other
iedtruments are valued by the Fund Tor purpodes of apphing imiestment
poboies and restrictions may differ from the manner in which those
irvestrents ave valued by other types of mvestons. Entering inta swap
gteements reobai, 10 g d-o:gn}ﬂ_ dements of mienesl oredie, makes
and documentation risk in excess of the amwounts recognized on the
atements of Assatsand Liabikties. Such nsks involve the possbility that
thisnd el be md bigund marked Tee these aqresments, that the counteparty 1o
the aqreements may defaulf on its obdgation to perfoem of disagres a5 1o the
meaning of contractizal terms in the agreements and that there may be
walreorable changes i inlened] rates of e valued of the et wpon which
the swap = based

A Fund's madmum risk of boss from countesparty credit risk & the discounied
net value of the cash flows to be received from the countesparty over the
contract's remaining life, 1o the extent that amound i3 pasitve. The nsk may
bse mitigated by having a master netting arrangement beteveen a Fund and
the counterparty and by the posting of collateral 1o a Fund to cover a Fund's
exposaie ta the coumermpaty

T the extent @ Fund has & peficy to keit the net amount owed 1o of 10 be
recefved fram a single counberparty under existing sevap agreements, such
fimitation only applies Yo counterparties to OTC swaps and dees not apply to
centally cheaned swagrs where the counberparty = a central counberpany of
derheatives ceazing ceganization

Cradit Defanlt Swap Apeamants Certain Funds may enter mio credit default
swaps on corporate, boan, soveresgn, U 5. muniopal or LS. Treasury issises 1o
provide 3 measure of prosecton against defaults of the issuess (e, to reduce
sk where & Fund o of has exposure to the referenced obligation) of 1o
take an active lomg o short pasition with respect 1o the likelihood of &
particular issuer's default. Credit default swap agreements involee one parsy
mating a stream of payments (referred 10 2 the buyer of protection) 1o
anather party (the seller of paotectian] in exchange far the rght 1o recete &
specihied return in the event that the referenced entity, obligatson or inde, &
spedhed in the swap ageement, undengoes a certain credil mment. As 2 seller
ol probection on ceedit default swap agreements, & Fund wall generally revene
freem the buryer of peotechon a fed rate of ingome thecughout the tem of the
swap prowided that thene is no credit event. As the selier, 3 Fund woukd
i.‘".ll.‘t'.rﬂ'l‘,‘.ll}d bevirage L0t portfals because, i sddmon 1o s total net
assets, the Fund would be sibgect io invesiment exposure on the notional
amaunt of the swap
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IF a Fured is a seller of protection and a cedit event ooous, a defined under
the terers of that pariodas swap agreemint, & Fund wall eithes () pay 1o the
b of protection an amount equal to the mational amount of the swap and
take delivery of the relerenced chligation, other delverable cbiigations o
underkaing securities compasing the referenced index or 1) pay a net
sertlement anount in the form of cash or seouritees equal to the notional
amounit of the swap less the recoveny vafue of the referenced chligation oo
un-ﬁrr?ﬂm] ECUITES ompdising the referenced index. If a Fund 15 a Enpyer ol
protection ed @ credit event ooours, & deflined undes the terms of that
particular swap agreement, a Fund will either (i) receive from the seller of
protection an amount equal to the notional amount of the swag and deliver
the referenced obligation, cther debwerable cbligations o undirhing
securities comprising the referenced indax or (i} receive a net settlement
ameui in the form of cash ar securities equal fo the notional amount of the
sweap less the necoveny value ol the refesenced abligation or undidyng
sagurities comprising the referenced index. Recovery valses are estimated by
market makers considening either industry standard recovery rates or enlity
spectic factors and considerations unbl 3 credt event occurs. If 3 credt event
has oeogred, the recovery value is determined by a facilaated aucton
whereltry a minimum number of allowable broker bads, together with a
speabed valuatson methad, are used to calculate the settement value The
ability 1o delrver other cbligations may resull in 8 cheapest-to-delver cption
{the buyer of protection's right to choose the deliverable obligation with the
lowest value (otlowing 3 credt event)

Credin default swap agreements on cradit indeoes imictve one party making a
stream of payments 1o another party in exchange Tor the right to recerve a
spedfied retum in the event of a write-down, principal shoetiall, interest
shartfall o delault of 8l of pam of the eferenced ennmes O ISinG the
redit index A credit mdex is a basket of credit instruments of exposures
designed io be representative of some part of the credit market a5 a whole
These indioes o made up of reference credts that e judged by a poll of
dealen to be the mest liquid entitied in the credit default saep market based
on the sector of the index. Components of the indices may indude, but e
nod limited to, investment grade secusities, bagh yiekd secunbes, asset-backed
sacutities, emerging markets, andiod vanous aeds ratings within each secies
Credit indices are fraded using credit default swaps with standardized terms
nclading a fixed spread and standasd matundy dates. An index credit default
s referenoes all the narmes in the sndex, and if there i a default, the cedit
event is settled based on that name’s wesght in the index. The compositeon of
Ihe indices dhanges penodizally, wsually every six months, and for most
indices, emch name burs an equal weight in the index. & Fund may use credit
default-swaps an cedit indsoes 1o hedge a portiobio of credin defauds swaps or
bonds, which is less expensive than it would be to buy many credit default
s 5 1o achive 3 similar eflecy Credit delaudy swaps on indices ae
instiuments B protectineg irvestors awming bands agaieet defaull, and
traders use them to speodate on changes in aredit quality

Implied credit spreads, represented i absolute terme, utdized in determining
the market value of credit defiault swap agreements on oompatabe, laan,
spvereign, US. murscipal or U5 Treasury issues as of period end, if amy, are
dischosed in the Moves 1o Schedule of Imveszments. Thiey serve as an indicator
of the curcent status of paymentiperlormance tisk and represent thee Belihood
o sk of default for the referenced entity. The implied credit spread of a
particatar referenced entity reflects the cost of buyingfselling protection and
may mcludie updion payments requred 1o be made So enter inta the
agreement Wider medit speaads represent a debericration of the referenced
entity's credst scundness and a greater likefibood oo risk of defautt or other
crisdit evenil CECurting b defined undes the weems of the agreement. For credst
defady swap ayeements on 3scel-backed secunties and credt indices, the
queted market prices and resulting valiees senve as the indicator of the current
statys af the paymentipedormance risk. Increasing market values, n absclute

tems when companed 1o the notienal amount of the swap, reptesent a
detenceation of the refeenced erility"s credit soundness and & greater

kelihood af ik of default or cther aedit event ooourting a5 defined undar
the tevms of the agresment

The man mum poterinal amew of future pyments [uhdiscounted) that

& Fund as a seffer of peotecton could be requered 1o make under a credd
dedault swap agreement equals the notional ameunt of the agresment
Motonal amounds of each indaidual eredit dedault WD dgneement
outstanding & of penod end Tor which a Fund is the seller of protecton are
disclosed im the Notes 1o Schedule of Investments. These potential amounts.
woukd be partially offset by amy necowery vallues of the respectve reberenced
clibgation, u[t.‘:l;ﬂ [ayenents secened upon entering o thr agresment, of
et amounts receved Trom the settlement of buy protection oedit dedauh
swap agreements enfeved inba by a Fund for the same relerenced entity or
erlites

Interest Rate Swap Agrosments Cenain Funds ae shpsct to inbeest ate
risk exporsure in the noimal course of pursiang their imestment objectves
The value of the foed rate bonds that a Fund holds may decrease if mtenest
rates e To help hedge against the nsk &0d 1o mainten &5 ability 1o
generate moome af prevaileg marked rates, a Fund may enter into interest
rate swap agreements. Interest rate swap agreements imvolve the exchangs
by & Fund with ancither paity for their respective cammitmenl 0o pay of
e e ienest on the netional amownt of principal. Certain farms of intesest
rate swap agreements may include: [} interest rate caps, under which, in
reten for a premium, one party agrees to make payments to the other 1o the
extent thal innenest rates exoeed & speafied rate, or "cap®, (i) nferesy rase
floors, under which, n return for a premium, ooe party agrees to make
paymenss to the other to the extent that inerest rates [l below a speciied
cate, of “Tooe”, ) intenes rate collaes, wnder which a party 684 2 Cap and
purchases a floof of vice versa in an atemnpl 1o prosect msell againgt intesest
rate movements exceeding given mEnimum o maximum hevels, (i) callable
inenest rate swaps, under which the buyer pays an updrom fee in
consderation for the right 1o eadly terminate the swap transaction in whoke,
at zern cost and ab a predesermined date and time poor be the matunity date,
) soreadiacks, whidh allow 1he inteest rate swap uiers o bock in the
Torwsed differennal (or spread) betaeen the interest rabe Swap rate and &
specified benchmark, or (w) basis swaps, under which two parties.can
exchange variable interest rates based on dilerent segments of money
makets

Total Ratwn Swap Agroemeats Ceitamn Funds may enter into tedal retumn
SWap agreements B0 gain o mitigate axposure 1o the undezhying reference
Tonal return swap .u"rm-mr'lli.'r-n:::'.v ommitments whise unghé of mutphe
cash fhowes are exchanged based on the price of an underying reference asset
and on a fed orvanable interest rate Total return swap agreements may
ENGtE CommIments 1o pay inehest m rl.:h.ml;r' for a maket-linked detum
Oine oounterpary pays cut the total return of a speqific undedyng relerence
asset, whach may endude a sngle secunty, a basket of seowities, or an index,
and i retuen receses o foeed o varble rase At the l.-.l.'.ur.?r'da:l'_ o bl cagh
floww i5 emchanged where the total reown i equnialent 16 the return of the
underying reference asset less a Bnancing rate, # amy As a receiver, a

Fund would recere payments based on any positiee Solal return and would
vl PN in the erent af & friscpaitivg 1088l refuim A% the paneés. a

Fund would cove payments on amy posithe total return, and would recesse
payments in the event of a net negative total retum

7. PRINCIPAL AND OTHER RISKS

fa) Principal Bisks In the noimal course of business, the Funds lor equined
Fundis), il applicable] rade financial instruments and enter imo financial

Al Ripirt || etibet 31, 2002
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transactions where sk of petential loss exists due ta such things as changes
in thie market (market mk) or Tailure o inabslity of the other paity toea
transaction to perform (credit and counberparty fisk) See below for a detailed
description of select pringipal risks

Fund of Fonds Bisk  To the extent that cemtam Funds imvest sutatantnslly ol of
theeir respective assets i Acquined Fund{s], the nsks assonated with investing
in these Fands will be desely related to the risks assooiated with the securities
and other imdestments held by the Acquired Fundis) The abil r,-qﬂ the Fumds
1o achweve their resprecinee imvestment objectnes iy depend upan the ability
of the Acquired Fund|s) to achieve ther respective imvestment obijectives
Thete can be no avsurance that the investmant chjpctve of any Aoguined
Fundis] will be achieved The NAY of an Acguring Fund will fuctuste in
respanse bo changes in the respective MAVY of the Acyueed Fundi(s) in which it
imvests

In ghe noemal oo of biines, Acgured Fund(4) prade financial insinaments
and enter info Fnancial transactions wheee sk of petential loss exists due to
changes in the market {market k), or failure or inabelity of the other parly to
a tansaction 19 perfoem (credit and coundesparty mik)

Markont Risley A Fund™s imeesiments o financal demat iriruments and
other Smancial instrumends expose the Fund to vagious risks such as, but not
limited ta, interest rate, Toreign [nan-U.5. ) curency, equity and commedity
nikg

Intexest rate risk is the sk that foced moome secuntes and other mstruments
held by a Fund may dedine invalue because of an increase in inderest rates. if
nominal imerest rates e, the value of certain ficed income secunties held by
& Fund would brely decrease. A nominal interest 1a2e can be descnbed a0 the
surm af a real interest rate and an espectad inflation rate Interest rate
changes can be sudden and unpeedictable, and a Fund may lose money #
Ihr{u"-:ll.'lr-';ra:-. Al il anscpansd by Fund enanagenment A Fund many not be
able ta hedge against changes in interest fates of may dhosse mat %o da so far
cost of okher reasons. In addition, any hedges may not work as inbended

Duration b & miasure used 1o determing the sensitvty ol & ssounty’s peice 1o
changes in interest rabes that incorporabes a sequrity's yield, coupon, final
matunty and call featuwres, among other characteristics. Comvenity is an
additaanal medsune uied 1o undérstand 3 wnnl-,':.nr Fund's interes] cate
sengitraty that measuses the rate af change of durabon i respoerse 1o
changes in interest sates. Fased inoome secunties with longer durations tend
ta be mere sensitave to changes in interest rates, wsually making them mone
welatite than securities wath shorter durations. & wede varety of faciors can
cause interest rates of yelds of U 5. Treasury seoatites for yields of other
types of bonds) to nse (e g, ceniral bank monetary polices, inflation rates,
generll soonomic (onddions, g 1 This i epicaiilly true undes curment
conditions because inferest rates and bond yields are near historically low
levels, Thiss, the Funds cwrently dace 2 heightened level of nsk ansociated
wath rising infeest rates andion bond yands This could be dmven by a varity
of faciors, induding but not kmited bo central bank monetary polioes
changmg inflaton or real geowth rates, general economic conditions,
incrigsang bond issuanoes of neduced market demand far low i )
imcestments. Further, wihile U5 bond markets have steadily grown over the
past theee decades, dealer "market making” ability has remasned relateedy
stagnant Given the impartance of intermediany " market making™ in creating
& robit and Eetve makel, med sfcome decuntes oe cuitely

fzang increased wolatikty and liquidity risks. Al of these factors, collectively
andior indwidually, could cause a Fund 1o lose value. If the Fund lost enough
walse, the Fund could face increated Unitholder iedemptions, which could
Turther impair is perfoemance Adso, the Fund may be adversely aflected
when 3 lange Unitholder purchases or redeems Large amounts of unsts, which
£an atut at-any time and ey impact the: Fund in the seme manner & a high

volume of redemption mequests. Large Unitholder transactions may impact
the Fund's bqudity and ret asdet walué Such raniectiond may 850 incréie
the Fund's transaction costs of otherwise cause the Fund 1o perfoem
ditferently than intended. Moreover, the Fund is subject to the risk that
ather Unithalders may make investment decsions based cn the choices of a
large Lnithalde:

To the extent that certain Funds may imest in seosities and instrumenits that
atr econgmically ted 1o Rusdaa, e Funds ate subisect 1o vanoos nsks such o,
but nat mited 1o polincal, economic, legal, market and curency ks, The
risks indisde uncertain political and economic polices, shat-term market
wilatifity, poor accounting standaeds, comuption and crme, an inadequate
eisquiatony syitem, and unpredictable Limation. Imvestments in Rubua ane
particularly subject to the sisk that further economic sancisons may be
impased by the United States andfor ather countries. Such sanctions, which
iy IMpECT COMpaniEs in mamy Jectoes, induding enérdgy, fmancial wenices
and defense, among athers, may negatreely impact a Fund's perdormance
andfor ability 1o achieve its imestment abjectrve. The Russian seouribies
market, a5 companed 10 U5 markets, has significant price volatility, bews
Fquedty, a smaller market capitalization and a smaller numbser of raded
secunties, Adverse oumency exchange 1ates are a risk and there may be a lac
ol reailable CUltEngy .‘m:l:]mq ingtremiits Imedstments in Russia may be
subject 1o the rsk of ratisnalizatan or expeopration of asters. O, natural
gas, metals, and timber account for a significant partian of Russia’s enpores,
leaving the country vulnesable to swngs in world prices

i Fund may have sgnilficant exposure to (ssusers in the United Kingdom. The
United Kingdom's withdrawal fram the Eurcpean Unica may impact Fund
retuens: This decision may cause substantial velatility in foreign exchange
makets, lead 1o wesknes i the exchange rate of the Britsh pound, resut in
asustaned pencd of market uncerainty, and destabilize some or 2l of the
wther Eurapean Union member countries and'or the Eurcoone

Foemgn {ran-Al 5.} secuntses i this seport ane classified by the-country of
imcoiparation of a holding In certain irstanses, 3 secunty’s country af
imcorparation may be different from its country of ecancmic exposure

o 3 Fund irwests |I||:'1;‘.f,':n‘.r||:15n-:nm-|.l 5 ] cugrencies of i siecurities that
trade an, and cecetne pevenues in, Toeeign (ron-US ourencies, of in fnancial
derivative instiuments that provide exposure to foregn {Ron-U 5 ] oonendies,
it wall be subject to the risk that those cumencies vall decline in value relatoe
1o the base curency af the Fund, of, inthe cine of hedging pesitions, tha
the Fund's base cumency will dedine invalue relative to the currency being
hedged. Currency rates in foreign countries may fluctuaze significantly over
shor periods of tme far & number of teasons, including changes i intenes
rates, intervention {or the failure o imenenel by U 5, of foreign govennments,
central banks oo supranational entities such as the Internatonal Monetary
Fund, of by the imposiion of ceenency conbiols of other politicsl developments
i the United Staes o¢ abeoad. A & resalt, & Fumd™s imwedtmenas in Fareign
cumengy-denominated securities may reduce the Fund's retums

The market values of equities, such & meman stocks and prefermed securities
of ety related imvestments such a5 futures and optons, have histoncally
risen and fallen in penodic oycles and may dedime due to general market
concisiong which are not specifically related 1o a partiodar company, such as
il of Pestoenaid achvsrie Beonomic condibong, chumnges in thi genersd
outhesk for conparate earmings, changes in interest or currendy 1ates, public
health emergencies, such as the speead of infectious illness or disease, or
addverse smaestor sentiment generally. They may absa dechine doe 10 facton
whach affect a panicular sndustry of industries, such as Labaor shorages of
increased production (osts and competitive conditions within an industry
Duflerern types of equity securities may react differently o thise
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developments. Equity securities and equity related imestments generally have
Qe e market price volatility than fimad meome secunties

The Funds may iméest in gestan astruments that eely in some fashion upon
LIBOR LEBOH is an average mterest rate, determined by the ICE Benchmark
Administration, that banks charge one anather foar the use of short-term
mivey. The United Kingdam's Financeal Conduct Authonty, which regulaes
LIB0R, has announced plans to uitimately phase cut the use of LBOR There
e UnNCETLangy rn-.].un‘.’ g hgtune wtikzaton of LIBOR and the natuse af
amy teplacement e (2 g, the Secured Overnight Financing Rate, which i
intended to replace U % dollar LIBOR and measures the costof avernight
borrowings theough mepusithase agreement transactions collateraloed with
U5 Toeasuny securities) Any patential effects of the ramition away from
LIBOR an a Fund or on certaim mstruments in which a Fund imvests can be
diffecult te: ascertain, and they may vary depending on a vamety ol factors. The
Trandtan My abR0 réal in  reduction in the valoe of certan irdiruments
held by a Fund e a reduction in the effectivensss of relsted Fund rantacsons
such as hedges. Ay such effects of the transition away Irom LIBOR, as well
ars other unforeseen effects, could result in kosses to.a Fund

Beyreung in January 2020, global finamcial markets have expetienced and
may continoe to expenence significant volatility resuting from the spread of a
nevel conananarys knewwn i DONIR-12 The outheeak of COVID-19 has
resated in travel and beeder restictions, quarantines, supply cham
disrugboes, lower consumer demand and general market uncertaingy, The
global ecanomy, the economies of certain nations and indridual ssuens have
been and eay contme 10 be adversedy affected by COVID-19, particulary
light af the interconnectivity between economies and financal markets, all of
which may negatively impact the Funds performance: In addition, COVID-19
and gowernmental tespores o COVID- 19 may negainy impac) he
capabditie of the Funds' senvice providers and desupt the Funds' cperatons

Candit and Counterparty Risks A Fund will be exposed to oedi rsk to
parties with wham it trades and will alse bear the risk of sattherment default
A Fund meferepes contentranons of credit msk by undertating tramadians
wath a lasge nurmiber of customers and counterparties on recognized and
reputable ewchanges, where applicable. OTC dervatie transactions are
subject to the ik that a coumtemanty 1o the tramacton will nat fullill it
cositractual obligations 1o the ether pamy, & many of the protections aflerded
to centrally deared demvative transactions maght not be available for OTC
dervative transactions. For dermvatives traded on an exchange or thiough a
central counnesparty, credn ek sesides with the creditwerthiness of

the Fured's dieaning broker, oo the deannghouse itsed], rather than waith a
counterpaty in an OTC derivative tramsaction. Changes in reguiation refating
a4 Fund' s uie of dereates a0 relaned anstrumenss oould potentially limit
of imgact the Fund's abslity 1o wmeest in dersvatives, limit the Fund s abibry te
employ certain strabegies that use dernatives and'or adversely affect the value
of periamanee of demvaties and the Fund A Fund could lote mrmr,'l‘ tha
issuer or guaranior of a foeed imcome seounity, of the couerpanty o a
finandial derivative instruments confract, repurchase agreement or a loan of
portiobo ceourries, 15 whable of urraling 16 mui.r'llln['h- principal andor
interest payments, of tootherwrse homot ity obligatens. Sequrties and
fimancial denivative instruments are subgect 1o vanying degrees of cedit sk,
which may be reflected in credit ratings

Similar to cedit risk, 3 Fund emay be exposed to oountespanty sisk, or the sk
that an stibution or other endity with whech a Fund has unsettled o open
transactions will default PIMCO, as the Manager, minimazes courtermpaty
risks 1o the Funds through 2 number of ways. Prior 1o enering smo
ransactions with-a new counterparty, the FIMCD Counterparty Risk
Committee conducts an extensave credst review of such countesparty and musst
approve the e of such counterparnty. Furthermone, pursuang 1o the femmsg of
the underbying coniract, to the extent that unpaid amounts cwed 10 3 Fund

eaceed a predetermined threshold, such counterparty shall advance collateral
1 Furd in the Torm of cash ar secunties equal in vaioe 10 the unpasd
amount awed toa Fund A Fund may imeest such collateral in seooibes of
other instruments ard will typically pay intesest 1o the counterparty on the
collateral recerved. H the unpaid amount awed 1o a Fund subsequently
decreases, & Fund would be tequired te rebum 1o the untermanty all of a
paortion of the collateral previously advanced. PIMCORS attempts bo minimize
courterpaty fisk may, however, be unsucoesshd

A pramsacnons in hisoed secunmies ane settedipaid for uprtn defreeny wing
approved countesparties. The risk of default & considered minimal, as defery
ol securites sold is only made once a Fund has recernved payment Payment &
made on 3 purchise oooe the decunties hing been detowenid by the
counderpasty The trade wall fail il either party fails to meet its sbligason

) Othar Risdes In geneval, each Fund may be subject to additonal nsks,
mcluding, but not heited to, nsks melated to govermment requlation and
imerventicn i financd markets, operational reks, ks assocased with
financal, economic and global market desnsptions, and ofberseurity nsks
Please reler 1o each Fund's offering documents for @ more detaded
deserption of the nks of imasiting i the Fund

Market Disuptions Risk The Funds aoe subject 1o rvestmint and
operational nisks assoedated with finandal, economic and ather globat market
developments and disruptions, including those ansing froem war, termorism,
maiket manipulation, gewsnment interventions, delaults and shutdowns,
pobtical changes or diplomatic developments, public health emergencies
{such as the spread of infectiows diseases, pandemics and epidemics) and
nalaliemaronmental disasters, whach can afl negatively impact the secuntes
natkets, iENEST Fated, Suctiong, secondany trading, ratings, credit nisk,
inflation, deflation and ather {actors relabng to the Fund's imvestments or the
Manager's operataons and cause 3 Fund 1o lose value. Thete events may have
Sdhadrbe kang-1enm allects o e 10 S and wodld economies and markets
generally. These events can also empan the technology and other cpesational
sysbens upon which a Fund's service prosiders, including FIMCD a5 the
Funds' imdiment advise, iy and could Al d:'.:t.p1 & Fund s detnce
perowiders” abikry to fuffil thewr obligatiens to the relevant Fusd. For example,
the spread of an infectiows respiratory illness caused by a novel strain of
corangarus (krdwan o5 COVID-1%) has caused volatilty, sevene market
dedocatons and bqudity constraints in many markets and may aderssly
affect a Fund's imvestments and operations

Gevarnmant latarvention in Fisancial Markets Feceral state, and other
gamerniments, thes requlatony agences, of :.{'l!-.:l.h‘jl:ld'.-:k:" OGN At may
take actons that affect the requlatsan of the instruments = which a Fund
irvvests, or the issuers of such instnements, in ways that are unloreseeable
Legislaticn ar regulation may alsa thange the wiay in which a Fund itself 5
requlated Such kegislasan o regulation could limit o preclude a Fund's
bty b achieve its investment objective. Furthesmore, volatile finandal
markets can expose 3 Fund to greater market and liguidity risk and potential
difficdty in valuing partiolio instnuments beld by the Fund The value of &
Fund's haldings is also generally subject 1o the sk ol future local, national, oo
giohal economic disturbances based on unknown weaknesses in the markets
i which & Fund ervedts IR addition, it is nat cetain tha the U5, Govermment
will inbervene in response 1o a Tuture marker dsturbance ard the effect of amy
such future inbervention: cannot be predicted It & difficult for isswers to
ptepane Tor the impact ol Bubwee findncial dovnturms, altheugh companies can
seek 10 kentdy and manage fulue uncertainties thicugh ek management
piogiams

Regulutory Risk Finanoal entities, such as imestment companies and
irreestniat dcdbvisierg, aie genrally ﬂJ:;-c'ﬂ o et goeriment segqulaten
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and internvenbon Govemment requlation andfor intenvention may change the
wiiry @ Funed 15 requlined. aslect the expienies incunéd dinectly by a Fund and
the value of is investments, and limit andfor predude a Fund's ability 1o
actieve its investment objective. Govemment regulatbion may cthange
Teequently and may have significant adverse comsequences Moregwer,
gevernment requlation eay have unpredictable and unintended effecis

Dperationsl Risk An imeestment in a Fund, Bke any fund, can imoive
cperaticnal rsks ansing from Factors such as processing emors, human emors,
inadequate or Tailed stemal or external processes, Tadunes in systens and
technology, changes in personnel and efrats caused by thisd-party senvice
providers. The corurrence of amy of these Failures, erors or breaches could
resait in @ boss of information, requiatory souteny, reputational damage or
athes evenits, afy of which could have & mateial adverse effsct on a Fund
While a Fund seeks 1o minimize such events through controk and eversight
these may still be failures that could cause ksses to the Fund

Cylar Secarity Rink A3 the e of technology has become mese prevalent in
the course of business, the Funds hive become potentially mone wscep thie
1o operational and imformation security risks resulting from breaches in oiber
secyrity. A breach in oyber security refers to both intentional and
uninzintionad cyber enents that may, among othes things, cause a Fund 1o
lose peoprietary information, suffer data comuption andfor destruction ar lose
operational capacity, result in the unauthorized release or cther misuse of
corhidental infrmaman, of othenarie drupt nocmal butineds aperations
Cyber securimy Tailunes or beeaches may result in financial losses 1o a Fund and
its Unitholdess. These faibures o breaches may also result in disruptions 1o
business aperations, potertially resulting in financial lossey; interference wath
a Fund's atibity 10 caloulate its ned psel value, process U nithalder
transactions of othersise transadt business with Unitholders; impediments to
trading; violations of applicable privacy and other kaws; requlatory fines;
penstes, reputabons damage; reambeirament of GO COMPENLILaN ook,
additional compfiance and cyber security risk management costs and other
adverse consequences In addition, substantial costs may be incumed in order
o present sy cybet inddents i 1 futge

B.MASTER NETTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Funds may be subiject 1o vanows nefting arangements (" Master
.ﬂ.|||(+ncr1-.']wu|1 $4lect counterpanties. Master Agreements govem e
terms of certain transactions, and ate interded to redisce the counterparty nsk
associated with relevant transactions by specitying credd protection
mechansms and providing standardzation that s mlended to improve begal
certaingy. Each type of Master Aupleement ginerns certain Types of
transactions Diffierent types of transachors may be traded out of different
ligal enntes o alilates of a particutias prganization, rﬁulllru] A the reed dor
multple agieements wath a sevgle counterparty As the Master Agresments
are spedfic to wnique operations of dilerent asset types, they allow a Fund to
close out and net its total exposune 10 a counterparty in the event of a default
wath eespect to all the ransactens govemed under a single Master
Agreemant with a counterparty. For Tinancal reporting purpases the
Statements of Assets and Lishilities gemerally present derivative assets and
liatkinies: o0 & gross Busis, whach reffects the full risks and expotiuses priod 1
netting

Master Agreements can also help imit counterpasty sk by speciding
collateral podting arrangements & pre-amangsd expedune levels. Under mast
Master Agreements, collateral is routsnely transferred o the 1p2al net expoase
to cenain transactions {net of exnting collateral already in place) governed
undier the fedevand Master Agresmend with & courtieipacty i 3 gasen account
excteds o specified threshold, which typically ranges from e 1o $250,000
depending on the manemparty and the iype of Master Agreement. United
States Treasury Bilis and U 5. dollar cash are generally the predered foems. of

collateral, although other securities may be used depending on the terms.
-:'.Jlllrﬁ.’lr.1|'¢.|-|:1:-'|l:.1-ir B Agreemient Securitass and Caih rlh"dl}l.‘i' &
collateral ae reflected a aoets on the Sacements of Assets and Liabilites s
either a component of Investments a2 wafue (securities) or Deposits with
counteiparty Cash collateral recetved 15 not typacally held in a seqregated
acppiant and as swch is reflected a5 a habibty an the Satements of Assets and
Liahilties as Deposits from counterparty. The market value of any seouities
received as collateral 5 net reflecied as a companent of NAY. The Fund's
ouer il exposure 1o counlempaty msk can change subdtantially wathin & thon
peviod, &s it is affected by each tansaction subject 1o the relevant Master
Agreement

Mastes Repurchase Agreesneris snd Global Master Ripurchase Agreesments
{individually and colectvely " Master Repo Agreements™ ) govern repurchase.
reverse repuichase, and sale-buyback transactions between the Funds and
selec countespartics. Master Repo Agriements manlain pronvsions fiowt,
amaong other thergs, initialion, income payments, events of default, and
mantenance of collateral The market value of transactions under the Master
Repo Agresment, collateral pledged or ecersed, and the net experure by
counterpacty a5 of pencd end are diclosed in the Notes to Schedule of
lrvesiments

Master Securities Forsaed Transaction Ageeements {”Master Fonward
Agreements”) govern certain forwand setthing wansactions, sudh as THA
secunities, delayed-delvery or sale-buyback transactions by and

between the Fonds and select counterparties. The Master Fooward
Agieements maintain provisions Tor, among ather thengs, intiation and
confirmaban, payment and iransher, events of defadly, erminasion, and
maintenance of collteral The market value of forwand settling trarsactions,
collateral pledged of mcewed, and the net expodarne by courterpatty a5 of
petiod end are disdosed in the Notes to Schedule of Investments

Custommer Acoount Agreements and related addenda govem deared
desreations rarsactions such as futures, options an futures, and cheand OTC
desneatives. Such transactions requre posting of initial margin as determined
by each relevant dearmg agency which is segregated in an acoount at a
futures commission merchant {"FCh" ) registaned wath the Commediy
Futures Trading Commission ("CFTC™) |n the United States, counterparty risk
may be reduced as creditors of an FCM cannot have a claim to Fund assets in
the segregated account. Portability of expasure i the event ol an FCM
delault seenara furtker redoces mk 1o the Funds Vananoa EnaGn, of
changes in market value, are generaly exchanged daily, but may not be
nethed between fulures and cieared OTC deriratives unfiess the parties have
agieed 1o & sepatate arrangemnent in respedy of fund margnmg, The markey
value or acoumnulated uniealzed appredation {depeeciabion], iitial magn
pasted, and any unsetthed variason margin as of pencd end are disdosed in
the Nates to Schedule of Imestiments

Iriternational Swaps and Denvatives Asseoation, Inc Master Agreements and
Credit Support Annexes {504 Master Agreements ™} gowvern bilateral OTC
derheatnnt braractions entened inta by the Funds with bt UL
FDA Mater Agreements maintain piovisions far genedal obligations,
representations, agqeeements, collateral postng and events of default or
termnation: Events of termnation inckude conditions that may entitle
OURtBa e 10 elect 1o teisindte caily and cauth soltlement of all
outstanding ransactons under the applicable 1504 Master Agreement Ary
election to berminate early could be matenal to the finanoal statements. The
B0 Mt Agresment miy contain s3ditonal proviaons that add
courtedparty protection beyand coverage of exiting dady exposure if the
counderparty has a dechne i credit quaity below a predefined level oo as
g uned I.'r,' rngulallpn Sarrolarhy, |."'|:q|,;|ri:d by eegulaten, a Fund may be
eequined 1o past additional collateral beyond gmverage of daily expersure
These amaunts, if any, may (oo if sequined by law, willl be segregated with a
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B, FEES AND EXPENSES

i Fund 5 subypect & e payabie a alloraseeg annial rabes (stated as a percentage of the average dally net assets of each Fued, o Class, if
18
Foes
Fund Managssant Advisary Administrative Agency Destr ibution
MMCO Bermmdas Emerging Markets Bosd Fund |l
s gl LPY) - 5% 0 -
® gt JFY, Hedgad} = 035% 03 = =
FIMCD Bermuds Global Aggregats Ex-Japsn Besd Fund (M) = il 020% =
MMCO Bermda Income Fend &
s FLUPYi - = = -
= FRED - -
& JLUPY]
& J{Ushi - - - —
= K USEHN
& W UPY Rdwivory ) HTEN - - 4 065 %
»  BUSD Bdvisargd BT5% 0% QES%
= NP
& s - = = =
= NN S0}
= PP ES% - - - 065%
= QU - -
s R UF
& s eSS - 020 % -
= GLIFT)
- TUmE 0T0% - - - -
= U usmeEn -
= U2
= W ush} = il 020% =
= KUPTY DED
= NS - - - - ~
= Y UPT - -
= ¥ S0
& IR - = = =
MMCO Bermuda Merigage Dpportunities Fend
o last PV Hedged 025 ~ = = —
= JUPY] - -
s J{UsDi
- USD = - - -
MMCO Bermeda 1.5, High Yield Fend 1| (W] B3N AN
PIMCO Core Incoma Corporate Bond Fusd 2020-10
= UsD [&0% 010%

Ml Ripirt | Detsbet 31, 2002

173/378



Notes to Financial Statements cu

at } Octaber 31, 2022

EDINETOOOO
o o =X RS0 723
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Fans
Fund Masagamant Afvivory  Administrative  Agescy Distiibution
PIMCD Short-Tarm Merigage lncoma
= R QA5 5% L
& JUPY, Hedgsdi
. JFY Ddi% 05 D)%
L] UL i IR

PIMCO World High lncema
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s noted in the table abave, certain Funds and Classes of Funds are not subject to management, adw
Lid, PRACO s aftfiate wn hapan, 14 pasd & {ee Tiam the Laoanese |msestment Trusts of other ew
such fee is then allocated to PIMICO to compesate it for its sendces, as apphcabile

oy, admenstratve, agency of destibiation fees. PIMCO Lapan
| imeisgl i S s o Classers and & gl

asses thereof, as applicable) may bea
(=} I'l-1". !

ther axpenses related to thair cperation that are not covered by the management, advisary, adminéstrative,
i) Raomed B govemimental Tees, fis &l olhed po
g Inberest expense! (i) extraondng ""j..?"l'ici ncluding costs of bngation and indemnification expenses; and (v any experses
i {Tass of units. PIMCO has paid the ceganizational expences assodiaied with the oeation of the Trust, except for PIMCO 'Er st Tem
id P organzatonal expenses. asocated wisth the creation of sach Fund

bingker i Ha h'.-o' gl COrE RN

el 1 HArRRChON EXpenisy

it ey

allocated or afocable to a spag
M je Income. PIMCO ke

FINKCD) Bermuda b
Maorigage Incom

come Fund & {the M UFYT Adviiong and M {USD Adaiony) Clides), PIMCD Core Ingdime Coiparae Bord I‘J' i 10, FIMOCO Shawt-Term
the ELIR, IFY, and L'SE Classes) and PIMCO Woeeld High Income pay cr-goang expenses related to the public offening of their units in Japan

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Imvestment Adviser is @ related party to the Funds and is a maj mid subrsidiany of Allianz Asset Management A Fees paid to the refated party, i any, are
disdcied in Hote 9, and acoued relxled party Fée amounts, if any, are disclosed on the Slatements of Assets and Liabikities

the Trust, owaed 0.008% of the ret assess of PICO Ber
o5 Furd and 06785

1 Dynamic Mul-sset Srategy Fund, 0.013% of the
& of the net asets of PIMCO Short-Temm Mortgage Income a5 of October 31, 2002

Alkare Asset Management A5, & relsed pasty of
net assets of FIMCO Bemaada Mortgage Opport

Cestan Fu

riain related alhated funds under speofed condiSians cutlined in r m 15 au:-_'ulﬂn. by the
Irmaet v 7 aie of sale of secunties by a & h
cormsideded an affili I'-L:.- rive of having & common sdaser (or affliated ieestment adhdsers), is effected at the cusrent marke
31, 2022, the Fund(s} below engaged in purchases and sales of sequrities among affilated funds (amounts in thousands)

Fared

PMCT Bermeda Bank: Loan Fund [Mi

AL Bermwrh Emergeng Markets Bard Fund (M

fBiand Fund Il

-Jepeas Hord Fond (M)

-

PO Bermeds Low Doration: eoeme Fundd
PR Bormiads 11 5. High Yopld Foned FMJ

PCED) Bormieads U S Hagh Yopdd Fared W [

PAMCTE Covm Income Dorporate Bond Fusd 7031-10
PMCT Emsipng Baed kecormd urd (M

11. GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATIONS

Tl

Unsder the Trust's crganizational documents, certain parties {induding the Trustes and PIMCO) ate indemnified agaist certan lisbilities that may aise out of
pertammance of their dutses 1o the Funds Addibonaly in B normal cousse of Business, 1he Fumds enter into contracts 1has contain ety of ind ation claurves
The Funds” maamurm gxpodunt under ) r i chams thad may be made againgt the Funds i i il el
pocurted. Howeves, the Funds have not had prics daims of lesses pursuant to these contracts

12. UNITS OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST

e

The Touest may issue up o 500,000,000.000 units. Tha h.m:s may have a sgndicant concentration of risk, as certaim Unithalders own mote than ten percent of the net
assets af each respectsve Fund. Such concentraton of Uin inferests cowld haw & amaten -E"ﬂ on '“e- F '1_15 in 1|'e event these Linitholders request
wilhk ey b '.Jr il amounts of ¢ ' HAY ourency and

vesried ta the Funds' f e Teustes, wath the comenl of
the Manages, may in the fiture areate ar'-:l

ditional Fund or Class or Classes of units.

Changes in units af bereficial inenest were a5 lollows [units and ameunts m thousands” )

Yoar nded Year Endeet Yaar Hnced
Octolsr 31, 2022 Oeiober 31, T0EF Octotssr 31, 2132
[T e I 8 wME [T R S T KA ¢ MR ME OB WA

Bl Raport | Oetsbed 1,
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Year Erched Yo Endied Year Endet ¥ear Enced

Oeiober 3, 202F Octokar 3, M2 Celober 3, TIEE October 1, 2032
Wity Aemount unitz Amaount Wnits. Amecant Units Amaunt
[Ty Hik N His L] s Wa i
NIk Wik ME 1364 Wik Kk Wi Ky
NIk Wik i ni Wik A Mg W
M Wik LF] LI Wik [ M Wik
L1 Kik R LY 13 an Wi Wik
ik Wik N N Wik WA [ 1
NIk Wik ] 1 KiA KA Mis NIk
Wik Hik NE LI i 413 L Wik
Wik Wik Nk Nid ] 1EH Wik Wik
ik Wik N WA T 183 W ik
ik WA £3 144 Hid L b NiR
L1 Kik R Wi Kk A HiK Wik
ik Wik N N i te) Ny Wiy
NIk Wik T L1 KiA A Mis NI
Wik Wik WE N 15 B3 Y NIk
Wik Wik Nk Nid 14 1ET Wik Wik
ik ik N WA Wik L] i) ] 1,28
NIk Wk ] ] Wik LY LY NIk
NIk ik N N b o] Hik Wi
Hik Hik L LU} ] 2505 HiL Hig
NIk ik N N 154 1565 Wik Kik
¥ (LS| WA Wik 4] 1833 WA WA Wiy Wi
Cort of unta redeamad Lp o] 50, T8I N LI Hik LT Wi Wik
Wik ik N ek 11,130 15,3171 Mk Wi
FiUS0j Mk Wik 088 (= Wik KA MK Wik
| LIPY m Wik i 56 Wik A ML N
| LI NIk Kk 1] & L LT Hik Wik
! Wik K WA N L] [EE=H] R L)
WA L] N M (k2] 110, 105 Hi WK
WA Wk N s WA KA 13 WS
L Wik Ll a.1e Kk [ Hik (111}
Hik Hik A L L (2B Hil Hik
Wik Wik N ML L] 13,50 Hin ik
¥ TR NIk ik N N =7 4.0 WA Wi
¥ (=) Ik Wik 153 25550 Wik W Mik NIk
it |incrmas) rmulvrg from
Furd ot THnRE T mIg  F i v e, B S ] 186 ¢ 6L s ¢ (1]
Year Enuded Yess Ended Wear Ended ‘Wear Ended
Ociober 3, 2022 Octobser 1., 222 Colober 3, 7022 Cclober 1, 2022
Lraky Ammount Uit Amoun Un#s Amcunt Wi Amaunt
Facwpn o cnmy poid Wk B Wik N8 NI 5. ¢ L T Wi
NIk ik T s Wik KA M
Rl Fapirt | Detsber 11, 2903
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Year Ended You Ended Year Ended Year Ended
Oclobes 34, 2022 Octokeer 31, 2022 Cctober 31, 7022 Ocober 31, 2022
ity Amunt Units Amount Units Armeunt Units Amsurt

Wik Wik [T Ty Wik WA ] 7
Wik WA 25 3.3 KA A LE Hi#
] Fa] ML Mix Hik Wik ' Wik
Wik Wik ML WA Wik ik Wik
I ¥ MR Mik, Hik L Hik
T} [T [T Nk 163 115,565 Y
Wik Nk N ik Wik WA 151
HIK Wik N8 Wi Kk KA (]
ik Wik Qi [T Wik [ ik
[ e M ML ik WA ML NIk
1k 579 % (RN B % 05 Wi 8 EASH
Year Ended Vs Ended Wear Ended Year Ended
Dciobes M, 7022 Oclokuer 1, 2022 Oclober 11, TH2E Oclober 1, 222
Uhsits Ascunt Units Amoum Uinits Amcunt Uity Amsunt
Fucagrn tee prmy e @ g L 1. 1587 ¢ MRS TS B LBERT
Lot of usin redeamad 11,1661 M5 569 245 5 455 13000 1S3 1250331 B EAEEITI
Hit ircrossa Fdierasl
ressiting e Fund uat
mirasstens B naEm B B T TR T R 8 L
Year Ended Yo Ended Year Ended Year Ended
Ociobes 31, 2022 Octokeer 31, 2022 Gtober 31, F0Z2 Gctober 31, 2022
FEEE oY Asrunt Uriits Bumain Units Amcunt Uit Amount
FRacwpt for oo od
B sl Wik ¥ Kk N& ] L 430 i AE LU i LIL]
F LI 1518 157,560 N'& Wik Wik L Wik Hik
F 22401 14273 [T ' Hik KA W Hik
Hazgad Hik ik iz ik Wh [ ] F
J L o 754 [T N Wik KA ] A7
; "5 12189 N Mik Wik b ] i
1 5760 L3 Wi Wik L4 Wik Rik
1857 WATS N W WA WA m N
15,751 9507148 M Y Wik WA Wk Ik
105 A28 MR Hid Hik WA Mik Hik
Mk Wil 1 (] Hil [ Wi L1
13% 1250 M Hit Wik A s Hit
5] LEIE ML ML Wik WA M &
2,000 e N HiE Wik [T mr Hik
Py m 1815 i Y Kik [ Mk ik

Ml Ripirt | Okt 71, 2070
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Year Enced Yoar Endied Year Endet Wear Enced
Oetober 3, 202F Octokar 1, M2 Celober 3, TIEE October 3, 2032
Wity Armount unitz Amaount Wnits Amicunt Units Amaunt
T |5 853 FPRE [T Wik Kk WA W Wik
L2 Py B 52 08 N iy Wik [ Wi Ky
’ 81 1516 T My Wik [ Mg (1}
[ 3 N W Wik [ Wi Wik
bl ] 1618 LU Wi LA A HiK Rk
T 5008 e N Wik WA Wiy Wiy
= E5357 N Mix KA 1] Mis Nk
Wik Hih 12 5% Hik Wi A Hik
Wik Wik N iy Wik KA Wi Wiy
) WED T My Wik L1 Mg Wy
[ g3 i N'A W L A LU Hi#
JURT 1 TE MR Wi LA A HiK Hik
X |Lrs0) m 5 E58 N N Wik WA Ny Wiy
¥ 1P = gim N iy KA KA Mis N
3 137 12682 N'& LU Hih A LU LIL]
Wik Hik 1 108 Wik Kok Mik Nl
E ik Wik N M I 1187 A0y Wi Wik
F LIPY {2180 ME, 74| N N HiA WA Mg N
Fiusn 13860 B2, 50 N N Wik Kk Wik Hik
et LY 1 WA Kk NE LY} Kk L i 181
J LIPY 11] W3 B NE W Wik L (1 11] 11,280]
J EUISE (] msn Na U ] Wik L] 16 [5,686)
[ 1] (1] T s Wik [ M NB
1100 17,2851 WA, L] L A Hik Wik
13,8500 135,340 W Hig Wik [ Wik Wik
(k)] M1, N N Wik KA MK Wik
135 T BE na N Nik KA ML W
MK L] 1) &, 16 L L Hik Wik
(LENR] W2 B L N Wik L LY Wik
0 LIFY) [1:21] (L] N M Wik KA Miy WK
SUPY] 170 155,581 N Mg Wik KA Wiy ik
T Lm 11,763 13357 A Hia Lo A Hik Wik
AR1E T 25T L2 Na L L1 L Y Wik
1Em i 883 T Y Kk [ Wik Hik
1 [ra] N N Wik WA WL Wiy
X (=0 |BETE B30 N MiL WA KA Mis NIy
¥ 19 BT 2040 N Mik Hik Nid ik Hily
¥ R0 {5081 W15 LEY LI Kk L Wi Wik
¥ [Wearld ik ik 150 [k Wik L0 Wiy i
T [} (kik ] NiE (1Y Wik LT (Y HIA
Mt increas (decroasel
remsiing frem Fumd et
rarasctora 128 ¥ LISER {121 i RSN L3N & 1150 o8 L]

Ml ipint | Detsbet 31, 2002
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¥aar Ersted ] Year Ended ‘ear Endid
Octaber 3, 2032 Ochobear 11, 2022 October 39, 7022 Cctober 31, 2002
Lhsing Mot Units LT Lirite LR T s Al
Rty for onim noid ) 4340 = 8835 LT L 4 § 75
i it o
FERE HIA WiA MR WA Wik WA ] 186
ot of wain redeamed TREL] 2246 (i) 158,540 LI R ] 15551
LE0 WA Wik N WA 11,198 117,04 s His
Mt |{ereme| cmuiting from
Fordd urst tammctien WIS § EEE vt (O] 180§ N5 ol B VI8N
Yoar Ended ¥iese Ended Year Ended Waar Enced
Oetaber 4, 2022 Oeteltar 3, 222 Shetaber ¥, 222 Oietobssr 3, 2022
nity Amnount units Amaunt Units Amaunt Units Amournt
it Tor oo id Tk k| L o4 183 WA & A T R | N
JEAUD oA Wik [T KA ] 45 Hi& Hik
J UBRL HIA L N i L] B Hin ik
JiCAD HiA Kid e N 4 = e Wi
Ik KA MR Nis ] -1 Hia NIk
NiA Kih N& L) Kih Kid B 54
ik Wik NR LU} Wik L B 5
OR ik Kk N NI i n NI Kk
J iR HEA Wik NiE nie 4 b1t (Y WA
¥ ik Kik NA N § IH iR Wik
Wik Kk W Hu, 1 16E He Ki
NI NiA N Nin T 174 NiA Wik
HIA Wik N WA Wik WA ] I
n B2 N CHY Wik L Wik Wk
ik ik N NI L] 280 NiE Kk
HEA WA N Nis L] ki HiA Wi
NiA Kik N'A NI& 3 11 ik Wik
Wik Wik NR Y ;| i Wi Wik
Wik LI N N Kok L 2 e
! WA HiA N 1Y KA L 2 12
J 8 NIk NrA A NIA 3 164 MK NIk
JEMA Ty ik MR N 1 bl Mg Wik
JEIR NIk ik NE W, ¥ 11 Wa i
Wik WA L] Mis 121 1819 Wi, Wik
| HIA WA ] WA k. o A WA
J HUED HiA WA A W& [ A 2 1
e ot e redeamnd 11781 (12085 B SEN [l =] L K Wi NiA
(LTI Hrk WA 1] N 11641 LR Mg ik
NIN Kk N Ris '] [1.558 A Rik
J Wik Wik [ KiA 1] Hi ik
J N HiA WA A Hin &h Hin ik
J FEUA HiA ik L N Hid KA na (E]]
J R Ik Kk MIE Nig Wik L il 1]
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{ctaber 31,

Year Enced Yo Endied Year Endet Wear Enced
Oelober 1, 2072 Octobar 3, N2Z Celober 3, TIE2 October 1, 2032
Wnity Arnount Units Amound Units Amocunt Unéts Amaunt
| HDA Wik Wik NE L) 151 [ITE| Wi Kk
| N Wik Wik LY ] U] (1] (i3] Wi Wi
| HIK Wik N N 1] [+ iy WK
J Nk Wik N Wi (i 111,978 Wi NIk
J Wik Rik N N 1143 11,785 Wiy Wi
| §USD Wik LH] L W Wik WA 1 L]
Hit | dormuizl rendtng o
Furd il ta=mc o L I 783 5,550 L 3 % D436 14 8 ]
Year Encled Yoar Ended Year Ended Year Encied
Ociober 1, 2022 Octobar M, H2Z Cotober 3, 7022 October 1,
Uity Ammgunt Units Amount Unite Amount Units Amaurt
P o oy d TR Wik 1 ! 7] IS 1 LI ]
JEIPY, Hodged 1 x N U1 Wik WA Nk Wi
Ll AE3 5,18 L W Wik L Hi Hi
[ T ik ik na i 5] 05171 1534 [3T]
I, Hudged (1] 123 e N Wik L ML Wi
JP L] 11,188 N N Kk Wik LU Wi
LD 1 fl N CU ) Wik WA W Wity
Nt i roase [decraanal
resslting fam Fund st
s lana 8 m ni 8 Tl ] [ R (LT 1]
Faar Enced Yieas Ended Yaar Ended Year Encled
Oetober 3, 2022 Octokar 3, N2Z Colober 3, FF2 October 1, 2022
\nits Armgunt Units Amaount Units. Amunt Units Amaount
% OV EE L n TR WA L fil]
L] Kik 530 31582 Kik Wik Wk
Wik L1 L W 1 Wi Hily
NIk Wik N W 1 b Wiy Wi
17 Wik Wik ] L] Wik WA N i
] NIk Kik ] ] Kk KA ik Rik
Wa L] NA LE) 1 133 W4 Wi
il ik Rik N N ra 2D Wiy Wi
Wik Wik [T} Wi Nk WA WL Wik
Hik Kik 100 ™ Hik (1) K Rk
Wik Wik NE Wi 21} 154 Wi ik
Wik Wik N U] i) L] Wi Wi
Py NIK Wik k] 1483 Hik WA Mg N
xdl Wa Wik &0 1.3 L] L W Nk
Wik Kik N N 1 X Wik Wi
A Wik L N W a 187 Wi WA
Bovngil Plapin® | Oetaler 113
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Notes to Financial Statements co Octaber 31,

Year Erced Yoar Endid Year Ended Year Encied
Oetober 3, 70EF Detoar 31, 2022 Oelober 3, MR Octobsr 31, 2022

iy At Units Ao Units Ayt Uniis Amsaurnt
(15851 5 EOS LY L1 L] L 3sn 8 EE
L] Kid 1V ¥ EA Hik A Hig Wik
HiA ik ) (7461 Kik L W i
Wik L1E] 1LIE BME Hik L Wik Hiy
Hi WA L2 CHY 127 ¢ Nos HL N

ik WA KA Hia 128451 132,085 N HiA
Wik Kk LU [ LU L Wi Rk
m m ] 51 KiA [ m M
A HiA Nia s 21 1817 W Hik

Hid Hid L L 4t 1] (185 Wiz Hi&

& 8 0L T 8 CN00E (1 T S T v 11 2o 8 7 2051

13. REGULATORY AND LITIGATION MATTERS

The Funds ace not named as defe

thealened aganst them

wdants. in 3y masenal Iitigation or arbitration proceedings and are nat aware of any mate

gation or claim pending of

The feregaing speats anly as of the date of this repant

14, INCOME TAX

The Tnsct is

D RFUSE OF
A . i
F5 sl T

15

uire discloss

Al Papint | Okt 71, 2070
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Sehedule of Investments PIMGO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10

ML
At L

AP Infrastructers Lid

Pk
AT WAL
LLELT] 00
Tetal Gerrramy ) LEL]
Casn 3301)

42005 dow 03237025 5 ames 18
Weadside Fusarch L84 HaeCap Insland Capital DAC
TS0 doa OGS ) i B0 dos [7/YS/HIZ5 1508 1501
Tatal Australia 1,082 AIE Growg PLE
West $3,372 4253 don DA/HIVHITS 035 4107
Bank of Instasd Group PLC
peraunates TP 150 343
AINEFUIRATE BURUS & NI Es 135 ¥ SMBE Avi Capital Finance DAC
”fﬂl_'“'“‘-W 3 35507 don DUIEE 410 150
52507 doa D81 1720125 210 1158 S e
Bacards Lad Cont & 14.266)
44500 dow DS/TSINITS 1,258 1700
Tatal Barrmuds .t I
(Caat $2,531) CORFEAATE BONDE & NOTES 4.7% |
Istasa Saspacle SpA
1250 dos DSYHIU b 187
S57% dos DS 400 378
UniCrmdit Sp
S37S g 120172024 W W 7530% b 204D 553 5480
Tatal Canads 80 Tiotal Haby 3445
[Caat $305] [amt $10.167)
AYHAN ISLANDS 224 T
CORFOHATE BONDS & NOTES 2.2% S iFAATE BONDS & NOTES | 9% |
Park Aarsspace Heldings Lid. Missan Mabor Ca, Lid
55000 dow (SN i el 151 e DE1IH0S T Ea 230
Seagute HOD Cayman Nomirn Holdingd, (ne.
4 TS0 don 001207 1S4 don O7/HEE 2000 1.8
Tetal Carpman Inkands 4,950 Total Japan 4,107
Ceat §5.281) Casi 14,6357
m ETHERLANDS 5.5%
CORFOAATE BONDS & ROTES D8% COMPORATE GONDS & NOTES 0L 6%
Oanske Bark A/S KEN AMRD Bank WY
5.375% dos DU EH | B 1LET3 & TS0 don 07287025 150 581
Tatal Denmark 1471 ooy Pababank i
Coan §1,958] 4375% dos DROATIZS 1pm 358
EETT e
‘ ATE BONDS & KOTES 70% FEPEY don 10240 300 e
CORPD INDS & KOTES 7A% PR
BNF Paribas 5.4 - .
&T057% don OV a0 TR Al
BPCESA.
§500% dow OVVEO00Y 2100 L
Crwdit Agricols 51
LTS don OV 2025 350 38
Cecaiia Generals 5.4
L0 don /HIHDS 4,100 310
Tatal Franca 18,558 29575 don |MATEE) 1958 180
st 108430 4 07% dow DS 50 i
UBS Group AG
4.125% dos DSAINIZS
Tatsl Sevrtzecland
sat HI0.463)

Ter mremparymy min
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] AN % 1413
HEBL Holdings PLE
307 do 02012023 .60 158
4 50% doe DRTRHDS 1,500 118
imparial Brands Firance PLG
4 50t 021725 1800 14
Lleryds Eanking Group PLE
4 500 dow D50BTS 100 i
4 SO0 o 100472024 | 18
Matiuat Graug PLE
4 655 dow 0XZHDS 15m 118
FRslls-Reryea PLE
1 R25% do 1VHZDZS Z4M 213
Santandes UK Greup Haldings FLC
T35 doe DFHERDTE A3 E
4 756 do OTS0DS 25m TE
Stardaid Charterad PLT
1 T85% due DF212025 4.0 1l
Tetsl United Kingdom %458
Cosn $28.483)
CORPONATE BONDS & NOTES KLY |
HES Corp
373000 o DNYST025 20 1.E45
Aty Finaraial, bec.
4 G5 o 02307025 50 4
firoe: Cagital Corp.
& 200 duw DERDTM 200 1553
Aitwan Ghzhal Fending
2 500% doe 0ULHDS 230 213
Awiation Captal Groep LLE
4 KI5% doe 030172025 LEH ]
BEC Parinars, Ine.
17505 dua 1G04 420 ko
Bowing Co.
4875 dob DHU1202S im LEm
Charimtn Corpus Chiisti Holdngs LG
T 000% dos DEOGM 1) 1
DRE Fynding LLG
RIS don D32HE2S 1, Eil
Dalim Adi Lines, Ine,
215000 due 102E024 500 i1
Enact Haldings, Inc.
6500 dos 052025 200 1805
Energy Transhor LIP
4 D50 dow DTS ] -
EPH Propesties:
& SO0 desy 001G 1,200 1215
Firat Amarices Financial Corp.
& B doa 1 RSO 180 1
FirstEnangy Trammisason LLE
4 T50% dow DUFSEIRS 16 18
Fortrass Transp & Il 1 (11
G500 don 112025 BRE £
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10 (Caat)

Genesal Motors: Ca.

B TS dot 10015005 &1 ]
Gansais Energy LP

B SO0 e 1M1

GLF Captal LP

5 250% don 05117225

Gray Oak Pipshine LLC

2500 due 1HESH2S

Host Hatuls & Resoris LP

4 00 dob DS/ESED05

Hyati Hotwls Corp.

5 ETS don QAT

Lax Vogas: Sands Coip,

2 908% do DE2STS
Mishevant Cansecter Capital Ca, LLE
15005 due DAT2024
Nt fir g, Ine.

B KI5 dun 1UESEE2Y

MM Holdngs, Inc.

7.315% dos DET12025
Decidental Patrolsum Corp.

B 00ERS dos OIS

D=nga Healthcans bevastos, Inc.
4 SRS dow DTSN

Pacitie Gai & Elesteic o,

1 £50% dow 074172075

FOC Enmrgy, Ine.

B 75% doa DHYSIM

PRE Group, Inc.

1.315% dod 03012025

Radian Greup, Inc.

B RIS dew DV ISTIOS

Sabin GLEL Inc.

850 dow 0TS0
Santandss Haldings USA, Inc
4 5000 doe OT712025

Spirit Aarefystems, Ine,

5 500 dun D VIS5

7 5005 dos DAVESTEOYS
Starwosd Proparty Tral, Ing.
§ 5005 oy 10072023
Synchreny Fisancial

4 5000 dow (237005
Triphdwisar, Ine.

7000 doa DVESRD25

United Airkines 3082-1 Class A Pass-Threugh Truss

4 S0 dot DUNTGD4
Uniti Group LP

FETS% dos OUVSTINS
Unirision Commumicstions, Inc.
5 EP0 dow OVS20OG
VICI Proparties LP

§ EYSH doe DEITSDS
Viutra Opsvutions Cs, LLC
1550 due OVESDM
'WEA Finance LLG

3.750% con DHE72004

Tee mrempary ey win

500

2100
1.0

200

1,00

| 400

B84

| 40

L
AT ALLLE
O LR
‘Westingh Air Brafm Tochsologies Corg.
00 o DR BTTES ¥ apmi i
Whynn Las Vegas LLC
§ SO0R dow 0201720028 2206 200
IF Neith America Capitsl, Ins,
A T50W doa DU2SHDS 1,400 1312
Total Unitsd States 112324
Cast § 120637}
AT-TERM IS TAUMENTS 1.3%
- L]
Auwivalia and New Zealand Baakisg Greup Lid
15300 doa 10072022 [ L]
Bank of Nova Scatia
25505 dew 10O [
Catibank NA
2580% dos 1001702 M E]
OBS Bank Lid
25800 dow 100772023 ck ']
JPMargas Chass Bunk NA
25307 dua 1AO1202E a8 L]
Foyal Bank of Canada
2 5505 dod 1U0N2D2E W 8
Sumitoma Mitsw Banking Corp.
1 580 due 1002022 M b
Fumiloma Mitsui Trust Bank Ltd
1586 dog 1001720077 1] I6
560
Tistal Short: Term Instrements 860
et $L.EE0
Tatal lmvestments in Sscurities 30.5% § FELSED
Gt §247.538)
DOt Asrate and Lishilities, et 0.5% S A r{
Nt st 100.0% § 1R
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10 (Caat)

NUNES [0 SZCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT S

*  Azerobalance may refhect actual amownts rourding to kess than one thousand.
ja) Contingent conmeestible ey,

i

Markst Vel as

Maiuishy Aeguiaitan Marksi Peecantige ol

Tusuar Oesenphion Lraipan Cuate Dats Ceat Vel Nat Assets
Goraryl Mz C R [T A28 4 B2 [T 254

BORAOWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

Fepnchass
A grmstent
Callataral Paspurchass Precesds
Lending Sottiasent Matyrity Priscigal Faceryd, fgresmants, e bm
Ceunisiparty Raitn Dats Datn Limaing Cal laterakired By at Valm ut Valus Hocmived "
oM I B T B L0 U5 Tomery oo 31501 don B531TINE L] XS & 23 & 230
Tstal Repurchase Agresments # 2353 % P 1,380
T Folleowiny = & someray by cosetwpamy of the murket valoe of Bormowings and Dther Franeog Travsactons snd colatensl pledgedTraesedi s of Doisber 1, 00
Repuichazs
Agresmant Payable fo Totad
Procesds Favecm Popwkln for Bonowings and
(1 Repirehass  SaleBuyback  Paysbleler  Other Flnaneing  Coluteral
Courterparty Recaived Apresmanty Traraactions Shart Sales Transactions hecnived Kat E et
Globus i Marw Rwpurchass Apreermans
ToM ] .78 % § ¥ '] 1 1] [ 3| ¥ 12353 ] 53
Total Berreveings and [tk Financieg Traneactlions & 2.0 ] 1] ] 1] § 1]
FAlR WALUE OF FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
The Effect of Firanciad Derivative | eirumeats on the Statemants of Operations Tor the paried snded October 31, 20023:
Datiyastives nat sccounbed for ax Bedgng imstiumants
Ferrgn Imtesrest
Commadty Cradn Equaty Cuipemcy Rate
Caniracts Canlracts Cantemet (s 5 [ Tatal
Nt Faalernd Gain [Lead) o Financial Denvation batramens
v e coumir
Lo ¥ & ¥ 1 5 1] i 1] !- g | ] 1

AR VALLE MEASEIREASENT 5

Tig Billeweg o 3 parverary o (hip L wploong pciordeg (o e wputt wbed ot ol Orober 31, 2072 o vakeng the Fund's aisnts 40 udsbing

Fair Valus it Fair Yalua 1
Catsgery snd Sub-category Laval 1 Laval 3 Loval 3 103082 Cataary and Sob-catigedy Laval 1 Lirwail 2 Lewsl 3 10[312022
Iwvestmants in Securities. a1 Valon IAvearments i Seculitied, a1 Value
Carprran Iska
5 & % A0 I R ) Tergaty 4 & Nt ¥ D3 4% 1 1 b 4550
Denmark
- ER b 1358 Corpoeatn Boredr & Mstes 0 1473 0 1813
Frarc
Cerpira Borch & Nt : fct o I Corpasyia Bonds & Notes 1 18,558 o 95,559
T mremparyay min Bl Raport | Detabar 38, X112
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10 Ceat)

Faii Vaha at
Catngaiy and Sub-catagery Laval 1 Lavwal 2 Lewsl3  10/31207F
| vaments i Setuwite, af Valus
Gerram
o b Boack & Mol B & 35
‘M
x e Boods & Notm 3 12343 D 313
5 9,445 s
5 &3 i
a 2551 s
" 93
G 5858 5358

Tew snmmpany oy wilem Rl Rt | Dcvidr 30, 012
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2021 10 31

PIMCO 2020-10
2021 10 31
362,567 47,304
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
TBA 0 0
0 0
3,918 511
0 0
366,485 47,815
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
TBA 0 0
0 0
0 0
1,075 140
0 0
127 17
0 0
0 0
32 4
60 8
206 27
1,500 196
364,985 47,620
356,424 46,503

0 0
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0 0

0 0

364,985 47,620
3,546

102.93 13,429
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PINCO 2020-10
2021 10 31

10,629 1,387

0 0

10,629 1,387

0 0

1,728 225

0 0

2,809 366

432 56

60 8

0 0

0 0

5,029 656

5,600 731

817 107

0 0

48 6

0 0

865 113

6,143 801

0 0

0 0

0 0

6,143 801

7,008 914

12,608 1,645

0 0

2020 10 15 2021 10 31
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PIMCO 2020-10
2021 10 31
5,600 731
865 113
6,143 801
12,608 1,645
352,377 45,975
364,985 47,620
0 0
364,985 47,620
2020 10 15 2021 10 31

12
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PIMCO 2020-10
2021 10 31
N

100.00 13,047
1.39 181
1.54 201
2.93 382
0.00 0
102.93 13,429

2.93
364,985 47,620

1.16

1.16

1.30

0.01

2020 10 15 2021 10 31
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2021 10 31

2003

29

BBH
BBH

PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO
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PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO

PINCO 2020-10¢
PINCO

PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO
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PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
2020 10 30 2021 10 31
2020 10 15 2021 10 31
US GAAP
US GAAP
US GAAP
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO

PIMCO
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PINCO 2020-10 2020 10 15 (
) 2021 10 31 2020 10 31
2021 10 31 2020 10 31
2020 10 15 ( ) 2020 10 31 2021 10 31
2020 10 15 ( ) 2021 10 31
2020 10 15 2020 11 1 2020 10 15
2020 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31
$ 32 3 5,568 $ 5,600
0 865 865
(1,511) 7,654 6,143
(1,479) 14,087 12,608
428,248 0 428,248
0 (75,871) (75,871)

$ 426,769 % (61,784) $ 364,985
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2020 10 31
2021 10 31
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) 2021 10 31

2021 10 31

2020 10 30 ( ) 2020 10 31
2020 10 30 ( ) 2021 10 31

2020 10 30 2020 11 1 2020 10 30
2020 10 31 2021 10 31 2021 10 31

$ 0o 3 837 $ 837

0 (6,722) (6,722)

0 (3,610) (3,610)

0 (9,495) (9,495)

0 0 0

24,690 177,059 201,749

0 (8,486) (8,486)

$ 24,690 §$ 159,078 $ 183,768

195/378



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
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PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
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PIMCO

B-J 1605

B-J 1605

B-J 1609

B-J 1609

B-J 1612

B-J 1612

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO 2020-10

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
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PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
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PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO
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PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO 2020-10
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO

201/378



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 FASB LIBOR

Accounting Standards Update
AsU 2020-04 AsU 2020 12 2022 12 31

NYSE

NYSE
NYSE

PIMCO

NYSE
NYSE

ETF

NYSE

NYSE

NYSE
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NYSE

PIMCO

NYSE
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US GAAP

US GAAP

US GAAP

US GAAP
US GAAP

204/378



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

ETF

NYSE

ETF

NYSE

NYSE
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NYSE

LIBOR
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US TIPS
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CMOs
CMOs
CMOs
SMBS
SMBS
SMBS
10 PO
10 10
PO
CDOs CBOs
CLOs CBOs CLOs
CBO
CLO
CDO CDO
CBOs CLOs CDOs
CBOs CLOs
CDOs
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PIK PIK

2021 10 31

GNMA

FNMA
FNMA
FHLMC FNMA
FNMA
FNMA
FNMA

FHLMC PCs

FHLMC

PCs
2019 FNMA FHLMC TBA
UMBS

TBA FNMA  FHLMC

209/378



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

TBA

TBA
TBA

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
CDSC

CDSC 0.20

PIMCO
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PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
UFJ MUFG
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LIBOR
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MUFG
PIMCO
0.275
21 2022 21 PIMCO
45,000,000 2021 21

55,000,000

PIMCO

236,435
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oTC
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PIMCO B-J 1605 B-J 1605 B-J 1609
B-J 1609 B-J 1612 B-J 1612
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. ORGANIZATION

Each Furd disoussed in this repon {sach a "Fund” and collectrvely, the "Funds™), which also inclsdes each diass of units of that Furd {pach a "Class™ and coffectively,
the "Classes”), is @ series trust of PAICO Bermuda Trust 8{the " Tnast” ), an open-ended unit trust established under the laws of Bermuda as a mult-series. trust
pursuait 0o b tried déed esduted by Winchestid Global Trest Company Lismited oh December 1, 2003 {3 amindid Teom time o bme, the ™ Trust Desd" ) Eflecne &
of the chose of business (Eastern tme) on September 19, 2017, Maghes Trustee Senvioes (Bermuda) Limited (the * Trustes”) was appesnited as trustes of the Trust
Pachc Imvestment Management Coempany LLC ("PIMCO”, the “Manages™ of the “lmvestment Adwiser” ) is the spomsor of and was responsible for stracturing the Trust

Beown Engthers Hamenan & Ca (T BEH" | kit entensd silo an el wilh State Sieet Corporabion § " State Street” | under which S3ate St will soguare BEH'S
Imeestie Senvices business: which incdudes its austody, Turd accounting and admesiiration, ransfer agency, depesitany, faregn exchangs, tnustee and secunties Jending
services. The tramsaction is expectad 10 be completed mn the fiest quarter of 2032, subpect to ustomary dosing conditons and regulatory approvals

The Trast is subject 10 regulation and supervision as provided Tor in the Imeestment Funds Act 1006 and relafied nales relating 1o slandard funds.

Thie tesmns of the Trust Deed confer upan the Trastes, with the consent of the Manager, the powet, i the future, to establsh further furds in addition to the Funds
currently in operation as of the date of thes report

References to undtholders {each, a "Urmthclder”, and colloctively, the *Unithelders™) i, of units of {or an investment inl, the Fund shall mean Unithalders of the Fund
who hiold units, of dasses ol umits (a5 applicable), which ane attmbigable to 1hat Fund

The Funds peesented in this repont are fisted befow

FINCO Barredd Bk Loan Fersd & Offurnd sy o forst weth 3 "Fund of Fusds™ sirctorn, i dulisad) i the ot of the estiman Tresy Amscanon,
PMCD Bermads Bank Loun Furd B Jegan, o in ay sthar prednon

PIMCD Barreeedy sk [ o0y Fusd €

AMOD Barmosty Bask: | ran Fired )

PAMCD Barreds bcoma Feed 0

PINCD Breeed iraioon Fond £

PIMCD Bermets Dynamc Mofo-8zmt Ssanegy Fund
AMC] Bereds Lws Doraton btom Fasd

AMCO Emargeng Band frzome Fiasd 0

PMCD Errargeng Baod fncome Fusd @

PAMED Bermes Bask Logn Furd (M)

PAMC] Borreods Erond g Marcets Basd ifund £EM1

AMO] Barmests Global Apgragess £ Japen Basd Fasd iM
PAMCD Berres bcora Fesd (W)

FINCD Batessety U 5. Fagh Vgl Fund (M1

PIMCD Bermeds 1 5. Figh Yinkd Fund B (M|

AMC] Enigug Baad frcorse Fuad 1

PMCD Bermosts Erergmg Marioets Bast Fund H Cfered o Jepanese and ster meman
ANCD Batrscety Global Agrrigins Ex-Japan [Yien-Hidgdl Bosd Fund
FIMCD Bormeds Global Aggrogas Ex-Japan Boad fuad

AMCD Bermeds bncoma Feed A°

ANCO Buiveesth Maitgi Oppartanto fusd" '

PAMED Core bncome Corporme Bond Fond 253105+

FIMED LIS, High Yisld | Yoo Hedignd] Fesd

PMCO U5 High Yisld Fonel

PIMCD 115 Hagh Yield Strtagy Fund
AMCD LS. High Yald Sentagy hesd |
PIMIE0 Wisrid High Incema™"**

Cefpred only £a b Funds 0o oerve a5 an weederyng evveaimem e Jo meh Fnds

AMECD Shom-Terrn Mermgige lecan Cfareed o pareics dend ovoel oot Usats of th EUR, 27T aeed USD Dtz ew siwend 1 evmll evoiieon
laguan fry wery of pable: p¥wing thveogh a detrbono m Japas, and oy be offersd e other mvesisn ot the
chatiitags i i Mickgai ssti ol tha DL, JPY ol KOS Cliciag wll b fsticlind 15 gy thesa wiilor whi bl
wppemnd by o Mg

PMC Ermargeag Boad (Fas-Hudgedl esore Fund e ooy 59 Funnd of Fumels it Japaitn Fvectoml Brsh Stpannd ude 1he Linw concerang sviitment
AMCO Emargeg Band income fund Trext ared Insermaen Campany ol Jsean 1 lapsne bwveiment Trosts”) which well ot S asesy 10 the poblc
AMCD LS Heh Yidd | Yer-Hadind ] Faid b vttt oy wiry of pobls Mg 6 piwite pliceme] atd wheh asi faruiind by PINED Jigi L5 o ot
AMDO S High Yisd Fared Arlr I Bnad e EITRENT [TUET PAEARETARS (oanpeil Bo8 fubpirt w8 e roles of the brommmser Treme

1 Bapxmtes, Jaga

il Rt | Dessbad 31, 2001 il
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The fellewing is a summarny ol sigrificant acccanting polices comsistently
folfcwed by the Trust m the prepacation of &5 brandal statements in
conleemity with acoounting principles generally accepted in the Uinited States
of Amenca ("U 5 GAAP™) Each Fund is treated as an investment compamy
under the teporting requiremnents af LS. GAAP. The preparation of finsncial
stalements in scoondance wath U S GAAP tequines management 1o make
estimates and assumpSions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
lighities and disclosure of conbingent astets and habdities at the date ol the
firanecwl stanements and the neporbed amounts of increases and deceases in
net assets from operations dunng the reporting period Actual results could
differ from those estimates

Ia} Acsmived Fumds The Trustes and Manager may apely all &0 a portion of
the assets of () FIMCO Bermiada Bank Loan Fund A, PIMCD Bermuda Bank
Loan Fund B, FIMCO Bermusda Bank Loan Furd C and FIMCO Bermuda Bank
Laan Fund O {s) FIMCO Werld High Income; (=) PIMCD Barmuda Global
Al]a]rrg.lu: Ex-lapan {Yen-Hodged) Bond Fund and PIMCD Bermuda Global
Aggregate Ex-lapan Bond Fund; () PRACO Beimuda Income Fund A, PIMCO
Bermuda Ingome Fund D and FIRMCO Bermmuda Income Fund E; () PIMCO U5
High Vield (¥en-Hedged) Fund, FIMOD LS High Yoeld Fund, PINICO LS

High Vel Sarategy Fund, and AMCES High Yeeld Strateqgy Fusd 1 [vi)
PINCO U 5. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund Il and PIMCO U5 High Yield Fund
I; Giih PRACO Emerging Bond (Yer-Hedged) Intome Furnd, PIMCO Emenging
Band Incame Fund, FIMCO Emeging Bond oo Fund 11, and P )
Emenging Bond Income Fund Il (each referred to herein a8 a " Fund of Funds®
or "Anquining Fund®, which imests in ciher Funds) to the nespective credit of
{1 PIMCD Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (8] (i) PRACD Bermuda Emenging
Matkets Bond Fund (MY {in} PIMCO Besmiada Global Aggregate Ex-lapan
Beend Fund (M]; (] FINKCD Besmada Incoene Fand (M) (v] FINCO Besmuda
U5 High Yield Fund (M) {vi} FIMCO Bermuada U.5. High Yield Fund 1 (M)
{va) PIMCO Emerging Band Income Fund (M) {refered to herein 2 an

" Aucquired Fundds)” Any assets so applied will be held in such Acquired
Fundis) 2 if recerved dinectly, Where assots are 5o applied, the Aoquired
Furrdfs) vall cecoed the igswe of unies 1o the selevant Acqienng Fund & the
tssue price per unit af such urats and will repunchase such umits at the
repuithase price per wret of such units at the tme of repurchase. Accardingly,
thr iy ol the Bcquirig Fund! to acherss it meestmient obesctneg vl
depend upon the ability of the applicable Acquired Fund to achieve its
imeestment sbjective. There can be no assurance that the investment chjective
of 1he Acquited Fund wall be achieved

Ratios shiran in the Finarcial Highlights do not indude expenses of the
Aogeed Fund(s). See Note 8, Fees and Expenses, for Further information
reqarding fund feet, a5 spphcable

[b] Securities Transactions and Invesimant lseoma Secuntios ransachions
are recoeded as of the trade date for financal reporting purpases. Securities
purchased or sold on a wherrisssed or delayed-delivery basis may be

settled beyond a standard settlement peniod for the secwity after the rade
date Realized gains and losses from secutioes sold are recoeded on the
identifeed cost basis. Dwvidend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date
except certan dindends fom Toceign seasities where the ex-doridend date
may hanee parised, which ate icanded o so0n a5 a Fund & mfeemed of the
ex-dividend date. Enterest income, adjusted fer the accretion of decounts and
amortization of premaums, is recorded on the acorual basis om setthement
dare woth the CXCERlIoN of secunites with & foswand SLArhineg eflecne dane,
whede interest income is tecoeded on the accroal basis from effectve date. For
forwvertible securities, premiums attributable to the conversion feature are not
amertned. Estmated ta liabilities on getain I'p'r::_ln gt fae e revgnded
on an accrual bas and are teflected as components of inferest income of net

change in unnealized appeediaton (depredation) on imestments on the
Staterments of Operations, s appeopriste. Tax hababties realized & 2 nesuly of
such secunty sales are refected & a component of et realzed gain loss) an
imvestments an the HMatements of Operatiors. Paydown gains and losses on
mongage-related and other aset-backed secunbes, o any, are recorded a3
components of inerest mcome en the Matements of Operations

Diebit obligations may be placed on non-accrual status and relabed interest
rrcome mary be reduced by ceasing cuntent accruals and waibng alf iens
recevable when the cofection of all or a portien of intesest has become
doubthul based on consistently applied procedures. A debt obligation is
removed from non-accrual status when the iswer resumes interest payments
af wien collectabelit of imlenest is prlobabie

The financal statements of PIMCO Core income Conporate Bond Fund 2000-
10 included in this report are for the persod from Dictober 15, 2020 {inception
date] 1o Qctober 31, 201 Accounting policies wene consistently spplied Tos
the peraad ended October 31, 3020 and through the year-ended October 31,
2021 Actiity of the fund duting the period ended Ociober 31, 2020 induded
capitad contribyfions, investments 3nd operating expenses inguited th Start
and operate the fursd The Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the pediod
from Ociober 15, 2020 (date of inception} through October 31, 2020, for the
year-ended October 31, 2021, and for the periad from October 15, 2020
{date of inception) theough Ociober 31, 2031 is as Tollows

) =

The financal staterments of PIMCO Bermuda Dynamic Mult-Asset Steategy
Furd includied i this teport are for the period trom Coinber 30, 2020
tinception dasel to ODctober 31, 2021, Accoanting policies were onsistenthy
Fpphied Tor the period ended Ocober 31, 2000 and through the year-ended
October 31, 2001 Actity o the fund during the period ended Ocober 31,
2030 incloded capital constbutons, Fvestments and operating expenses
incurfed to 4o and cpetate the fund The Statement of Changes in Mgt
Assets for the period from October 30, 2020 {date of incepticn] through
Oxctober 31, 2000, bor the year-ended October 31, 2021, and for the peviod
frem Chctobeer 30, 2020 (date of inception} through October 31, 2001 & &
Tollows:
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Fenetisnad
" Fuad $lass: MAN Carrency .
. - PIMED Berrrde Bark foss Fund (WG US dolbr WS doliar
L) FIKCT Bermuds Bank Loas Fund A
= IS0 U5 doller L5 dollar
= " : P Jpeneayen | U5 delae
s JIBE Japanese yen UE dolar
T DO Jpeoeeven | U5 dolw
- r v - viUEn Jaganems yen IS dollar
e FINCD Berrmuds Bark Loas Fund B
: ) +  FIAUDS Mumalan dolar | U5 dotar
. - = WAL Japunecs yen IS dolar
" « VBRI Iagmnmsa e | US dod
+ YTINOH| Japanese ! WE dofar
N 5 * YIRUBI Japaness yen 115 doflar
= ¥TRY apanime yen IS dallar
r E Lo PIKECD Beerrusa Bank Lis Fund
T *  YICALD dapnesayen | U5 dolar
PINCD Bermusda Bank [oas Fund [
® ¥ Wkl Japaness e U5 dollar
Ie) Cash and Forsign Carremey  The linancal statements of sack Fund an FINGT Bermuda Dynarmec Mok ket Stracegy Fund
presented wsing the currency of the primary economic emssonment in which it = U Jpeetyen | U5 dol
operates (the "functional curency”™). The Functional ourrency for eadh of the + U0 U5 doller LS. doliae
Funds i% isted in the belaw table | NGO Bermrusds Ermargng Markets Bond Fard (MI U5, dollar U5 dolar
_ PANCTH Barreasds Emeegng Markets Bond Ford B
The market values af Borelgn secunties, ouerency haldings and other assers s et P Jageress e S dollat
and liabilities are franslabed mix eadh Fund's functional currency based on the LY, Hladoed) Jaganese pn U5 dolar
current exchange rates each business day. Purchases and sales of secunties PN Bermudy Global Aggregate Ev.afan fen
and incame and Exgenie ibern denomindted in ‘d|r||||' G EacEs, '} iy, e MIMM Japanez v 15 dolar
translated into each Fund's respectve functional cumency at the exchange PIKCD Berrruis Giskal geregaty Ex-Japan Bond Fund | Japeness yen LS dolar
rate in effect on the transaction date. The Funds do not separately report the PN Berrrarts (bl Basnigate Ex-Japan Sind Fuesd
effects ol l:?'la"-'_ll.'s in ‘:I!i.“-i_lr\- enchange tates rom changes in makel pres on -_!.1! Lo WE. dolar
securities held Such changes are induded in net reafzed and et changes in PIMCT Berrrada moama Fusd (MU U5 doller | U5 dotar
unreatzed gain or loss from imvestments on the Statements of Opesations PN Barmasda o Fusd &
Thae Funds. may imeest in “.:lmr,". curmendy denominatied detuiteis and may - FLIY JIpaniE i 115 collar
engaqge in foreign currency Tansactions sither on a spot (cash) basis at the =  FIms U S dollar W5 dollar
rate prevailing in the currency ewchange market a8 the time or thicagh a = JLPY Jaganen e 115 doflae
Torward foresgn cutrency cantract Realized loreign exchange gains o loses = JIED Japaneos yen LS dollar
anurg from sabes of spat forelgn curenoes, curency gains of losses eealized = EiUSh U5 doller 115 dola
between the trade and settflement dates on secunties ransactions and the *  MUPY Advaoni Jaganesy yen 15 dofar
difference between the recorded amounts of daidends, inferest, and loreign = MLED Advasiy US dalke 15 dolla
wathbolding tanes and 1he Bunctaonal umency equvalent of te amoungs = NUM Japanese e LS. dollr
actually recenved or paid ane ind uded in net reaized gain of loss on Tereign +  MilEm Japinese e L5 o
curency transactions on the Statements of Operations. Met unrealzed foreign + MR U5 dollar US dotar
exchange gaing and losses amsing from changes in Toeesgn exchange rates on = P Japaness v U5 dollr
Toreign dencemnated aioets and habditses ather than imesiments in Securites + QU dpneeen | U3 dolr
held at the end of the reporfing penad are ndluded in net change in = RPN Japaneos i S dallar
unrealred appreciation of depeediation on boreign currency assets and 5P dpaneayen | U5 deda
liahikgies on the Statements of Operations = T4 hpnemeyen | IS dolae
. = ) *  UUSH U5 doller U5 dolar
The Wes Asset Walue ["NAYT) and tatal retusns of certain Funds for Classes - WiEn US: deller IS dolbar
theeeal a5 apphcable) ate pretented in the -;_.urr'm_,-!m wihisch the WAV i - X LB Jagantss % doliar
reparted (the " NAY currency” ) as detailed in each Fund's Olfierng = X[ED U dolk % doar
Memarandum (the ~Offering Memarandum™). For the pupeses of the . Y lnpariesa yen % dolar
preseniation of the NAY and the total netum in the HAY curendy, the . {USD| Japneseyen | US dodw
beginning and ending MAVs are comeerted using the perod beginning and . TUF g v U5 ol
ending exchange rates, respectively, and dstrbutions are comerted wsing the FINED Bermigda trcoma Fusd
exchange rale a8 the hime af the deitnbution. See the Id!nmm] Sable fod e » MM IALD} Aegveakan dodr | U5 dola
WA cumency of each sespecte Fund = ¥ [iordi Japanese e S dollar
PME] Berruda Incorme Fund E
® BJIES LI Japanese e Jparese yen
* B-J PE0S |0} Jafeness pen Jipanise yEn
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Fusctional
FusdiClass: NAV Curemsey e
& BJIBIELIF Japhtenin yoni JEpaTeE
o BJ1609 S0 Jpareae yon Japanems yea
u  BJFIGIZEIPT JSapateds yen s e
*  BJOEIZ RED Jeparoae yen Jnmanee ven
PEMCT Bermuda Lo Deration income Fund
+  BASH 115, dods U5, dofar
PEMCT) Barmada Morigage Ciportunties Fund
= w1 LIPY Hedged Japareas yen U5, dokler
w J 1P Jeparese yon 013, dollor
= JUsDl Jepatens yen U5 doliar
L 15 dollar US. doliw
| PMLD Bomada US Figh Yied furd i ] IS defee | US dollar

“PAMCT) Bermindh LIS High Yield Fund 8 M1

PACTY Corn Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020 KD

« Usd IS dallr 05, dollw
PAMCT) Emaeng Biond [Yien-Himdpad) ncomg Fusd Jparene yon US delar
PEMCTH Evmerpeg B o [Fund Jepaneis yen [15. dollar

| PUCT Emerppng Blond bacers Fusdd M LE3. detr W5 dofer
PEMCT} Emargeng Bond Inpome Foed 1

w JIAUDY Eyatens yon 05, doliar

- JIBAL Jopareas yen U3 dollor

»  JiCADS Jopanenn yen 05, dolar

- JUDA1 Bgarese yon U3 dollr

= J{MRI Japasens yin LS. doliar

s JiERM Japasme yen U5, dodlar

- JINGN| Sphdese i 05, dolir

= JiRug| Jepanese yen U5 doliar

s JIRF Jpatene yin kLS. doflar
PEMCT) By Bl Itrn Fusd (1

® JEL= Jeparese yen 05 doliar

»  JiGEF Jepareds yen 5. dodar

w Jjush Japaceme yon B 5, doliar
PEMICTY Short: Tenms kortgage intome

« HR Fwn U5, dollar

» 1 Japacene yin 5. dodar

»  JPVLIPY, Hedgedi ] LS dodar

= g0 LES. dofle 3. dollor

| PO U5 igh Yl ool Foed | Jopaseme o | U5, aolr _
PEMCTD 1 5. High Yield [¥en-Mecgad! Furd § Jegareme yen U5, doflar

PUMCT U 5. High Yaeld Fund

PRACT 11 5. Hagh Vaald e Il

PEMED L 5 High Yl Straingy Fund
& JUFY
o JLPY Hadged)
= iU % deflw 05, dolier
- ¥ LIFY) Joganame jon U3, dollar
5 T LIFY, Hedged Japatene yen k15 doli

P 5 High Yould Sorartugry Fued I

* Y [ALDH Jopatens jen U5 dollr
» YiERl Japarens ven U5, dodr
w Y RO JpanEs vin LS. doller
| = YiTAY] Japanme yen 3. dollar
[P0 Wi Figh ke U5 ddlar | IS ol

|d] Multickesa Dpsrations Each Class of a Fund offered by the Trust has
raghts o the assets of the Fund equal to that of other Classes of the same
Fund, except for specific assets and gars and losses designated 10 a Class
refating to cuerensy hedging aperations. income, non-Class specifc expendes,
and mon-Class specfic realized and unrealized capital gars and losses are

afiocated to each Class of units based on the relative net assets of each Class
al the netpective Fund Class specilic experses asrently include
management, advesoty, administratre, agenty, and distribution feas, whee
applicable

{a) Diaribution Paliey The following table shows the anbiopated frequency
of distributions for each Fund Distriutions from each Fund may be decdared
and disttibuted ta Unitholders anly upon the authanzation of the Mandger
which aushonzation mary be withheld at the Managers disceetion

Declared and Paid Mosthly:

FYMCD Barmccia Bank fioan Fund &
PMCD Bormead Bank Lnan Fund B
PIMCT) Bermuds Bark Loan Fusd G
PN Barrrstts Bk Loan Fus [0
PN Berrmidy Income fund &
FLIPTI
F IS0
J LI
JELED)
NP
. {i1=0)
NN 01
S19)
£ LY
X [LE D
¥
¥ LS|
PMCT Bermedls bngome Frd 0
PIMCD) Bermads Mengage Opsomerniss: Fund
= JUM
® JiUsD]
- {175
PINCT) Emergeng Bond [Yen-Hedged lresrma Fusd
FIMCD) Emaeging Bond Incoma Fund
PINLT Emeegeng Bond lncoma Fund I
AMCD Emerping Bond Incora Fund [
PINCD 125 Hagh Vil [on Hadged] Fund
PMCD LR S Fagh Yisid Fusd
ANCO S Hagh Vsl Sranagy Fusd
PIMCD LS. Fagh Yisld Stratsgy Fused Il
PINE 0 World High incoma

Deelased and Paid Duarterly:

PNCD Berrrotia Ingorms Furd A

& QLI
AN} Bermeadis lecome Fand £ {provaded that the dendend yiskd shall be r bigher than
L por e ol iy cone i pollng pened)

Declased and Paid Semiannualiy:

PIMCD Barmela Dynamic Maks- Az Sowingy Fusd
PMCT) Berrmads leeome Furd &

= PR

= AL
PIMCT) Shory-Term Mormgags incose

® 4 & & & & & & § & & @
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Thay Mapager dees not enpect to deg lare distributbens with respeet to thege
Funde lor Clazees thereol, |f applicablel, but may, in it discretion, declare and
pay ditlributians to the Usitholders at i,

PRACD Bermuda Bank Loan frend (M)

PIMC] Barmuda Emerpng Markits Bond Fund [ M

PRACD Bermuda Emerging Warkets Bod Fund Il

PRCE Bermuda Gkl Aggregane Ex-Japan (Ve Hixdgad Bond Furd
PO Bermuda Gobssl Aggregene Ex-Japan Bored Fured

PRCD Bermuda Giobal Aggregate Ex-Jepan Bond Fend (M)

PRCD Bermuda income Furd A

- (A1)
- M P Adewory]
- M LB Advanry|
& T LIF}
- {11711
- WD)
* 2L
PRACD Bermuda Incoeme Fund [WB
PRADD Bermuda Low Durmine bxcome Fund
PAAC0 Baemuda blorigage Deporiunities Fund
* ot LIPY Heged]

PIMCD Bermuda U 5. High Yiedd Fund )

PACD Barmerda U5 High Yiedd Ford B I
PRALD Core Income Corporate Bosd Fund 1070-10
PRAC0 Emergry Bond Incoma hard (M
PINICK U 5. Highs Wil (Yer-Hedgedsi Ford B
PACD 1 5: High Yinld Frd B

* Bavy streburians wth respect 1o Class U (LSTH Units of he Fuse well be dockewd n
pecordarce with B lrier sgsement beoween the Mirager snd the srveator n neh Gy

Distributsans, if amy, will generaly be made from the refevant Fund's {or
Class's, i applicable) net investment income. In addition, the Manager may
authonre the pepment of net realized capitd gairs available for dissnbanion
Additenal distrbutions may be dedlared as the Manager deems appropnate
Distributions paid with respect o any Fund (o Class thereod, if applicable)

wll reduce the NAV of such Fund (ar Class thereal, ||..|'p;||f.£||[': A1 the
discreticn of the Unitholders, cash disteibutians from a Fund {or Class theteed,
if applicabilel may ether be reimvestad in addtional undts of a Fund {(or Class
thereol, d applicable) or paid 1o a Unitholder in cash. Cash payments will be
paid in the NAV cumency of the Fund Each Fund {or Class thereal,
applicable) may declaee further distributions i corsidesed necessary @ onder
ta matntam a reaonatbe kel of dutnbanions lor a Fund (ar Class thereol i
m:h:.‘.‘:-‘r] In thip evint thal thene i inddegaate net indome &nd net tealed
capital gains to pay a distribution of a Fund (or Class thereal, if applicable)
requeed by the Offering Memorandum, the Manager may pay a distribution
consrsting of a potion of the capital of such Fund (or Class thereal,
applicabie) Distrbutions not collected within sat years. from their due date

wall lapse and wall acrue to the beredit of the relevant Fund (or Class thereaf,
il applcable]

1N New Accounting Pronowss smonts and Rogulatary Updates In March
2020, the Finandal Accounding Standards Board (" FASE™) issued an
Amountng Standards Update (TASUT), ASL 7020-04, which prondes
opnanal gudance 1o exe the potental soouring burden asocued with
transitaoning away from the Losdan Interbank Offered Rate {"LIBOR"} and
other reference rates that are expecied to be discontinged The ASL is
|l|'f-e~;|r~.'mr.'mdu‘.['.‘|r upan el of 1k update an March 17, 2000 through

December 31, 2027 At this time, management is evaluating the implications
al these changes on the inkrcal steements

3. INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

ia) Invesimant Yaluation Pelicies The price af & Fusd € units is baded an
thee Fund's NAY. The NAV of a Fund, or each of s Classes, as applicable, s
determaned by danding the total value of portlolio irvestments and other
asees attributabibe o 1hay Fund oo Class, less any liabilities, by the 1otal
number af wnits cuistanding of that Fund or Class. On each Fund's Dealieg
Doy (a5 described in the curent Offering Memceandum of the

Trusth, Fund units are ordinandy valued a5 of the dose of requiar tradng on
the Mew Yok Stock Exchangs {"MYSE Close™) Infaimation that becomes
Erscrvn to the Funds or their agents after the time as of which NAY has been
caloulated on a particular day wall not genevally be wsed o retmactvely adpust
the price of & security of the NAV detemined sarlier that day. Each Fund
resarves the night bo change the time as of which igs NAV 1s caloulated §

thae Fund closes. earfier

Fee purposes of cabiulating MAY, portfalia securities and ather assets fer
which market quates ane readily available ate valued at market value. Market
value is gererally determined on the basss of offical dosing prices or the last
reporied il prices, of d no Lpfies me repaitisd, baed an quiotes akrnned
fraim estabSshed marker makess o prices (ecluding evaluated peices) supplied
bry the Funds’ approved pricing senvices, quotabion meporting systems and
ather thed-party sounces (Rogether, ~Pricng Senvices” ). The Funds wal
narmaly use pricing data foe damestic equity securties neceved shorthy after
thie NYSE Close and do nod normally take inte acoount frading, dearances o
settlements. that take place after the NYSE Close. f market value pricing is
wsed, & fareign (non-L 5 ) equity security traded om a foregn exchange or an
more than one exchange is typically valued using pcng infosmataon from the
euchange considered by PIMCD to be the primary exchange. A foreign {non
[TE%! ety secunby will Be valued o of the dose of trad i 1 the rD'I.'I:]II
exchamge, of the MYSE Close, if the NYSE Close oocurs befeee the end of
trading on the foreign exchange Domestic and Soreign (non-U.5.) foed
o secunifes, non-exchange taded derratvis, and equity options ane
romealy valued on the basis of quotes chiained from brokers and dealers ar
Pricing Sersices using such data reflecting the principal markets for those
secunties. Prices obtained fnam Pricing Sennces may be baied on, amang
oitber thargs, information peavided by marker mabers or estimates of market
values obiained from yield data relating 1o investrents of secutites with
samilar characienstics. Certain foed income securities purchased on a

ey -Gl very bugrirs are mavked 1o market daily until seftbement & thi
forwaed settlement date. Exchange-traded options, except equety options,
futwres and options on futunes ame valoed at the settlement price defermined
by the relevant exchange, quotes abitamed from a guatation repating system,
estahlished market makers of pRoing sendces. Swap agreements ane valued
on the basis of market-based prces supplied by Pricing Services or quotes
otitared fnom brokers and deafers & Fund's imvesimenss in oprrend
manaqement svestiment compannss, alkes than exchange-traded Tunds
{"ETFs™), are valued at 1he MAYs of such irvesiments

H a fareign {non-L.5.) equity seamity’s value has materaly changed alter the
chose of the secunty’s pimary exchange o principal market but before the
NYSE Close, the secuity may be walued at far value based on procedures
established and approved by the Manager Foeeign (non-U0%5 ) equty
securities that do not rade when the NYSE & apen ane aiso valued at far
value With respect 1o foreign (non-L 5.) equity securities, a Fund may
deteimane the fai value of investiments barsed on information peovided by
Pricing Seveces and ofher Ihllcl-pa:r, verdors, which may recammend fair
value or adjustments with reference 1o other securities, indioes or assets In
considering whether ke valuation is required and in determining lair
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walizes, a Fund may, ameng ather things, condider significant events (which
iy B cordadedid Lo include changes m the value al WS, sequritied o
seurities indioes] that ooos afer the dese of the relesant mathet and belore
the NYSE Close A Fund may utilize modefing tooks provided by thied-party
weridans 1o determing fait values of fonegn {non-U 5. securibes. For these
purposes, any mevement in the apphcable refesence index or instrument
["zero trigger”] between the earlier dose of the apphcabde Toreign markes
and the NYSE Clase may be desmed to be a ugnifscant event, prompticeg 1he
applicasion of the peicong model (eflectvely resulting in dady Tair

waluations). Foreign exchanges may permit trading in Soreign fnon-U.5.)
equity secuities on days when the Trust i5 net open lor business, wiech may
reslt in @ Fund's portlolio imeestments being aflected whin Unithalders ane
unabfe to by or sell units

Senior secured fleating rate loans for which an active secondary market exists
1o & reliable degree will be vatued at the mean of the Lt available bidisk
preces in the market fos such loans, as pronadied by a Pricing Senice. Senios
secured fioating rate loans Toe which an acve secondary markes does not
041 1o a reable disgrasé wll b valoed at fair value, which it mtended 10
appronmate market value Invabung 2 semior secured loating rate lean a1
Faar valuse, the factors considersd may indhade, but are not imited to, the
Tekowing: (a) the creditworthiness of the bormower and any intermediane
participanis, (o) the teems of the loan, (¢} tecent prices in the maket for
similar loans, if any, and {f) recent prices in the market for instrements of
similiar quardy, ate, penod until nex mtened rate nifed and maturity

IrmvesTmens valosd in curmencies offer chan the functions Curtency

of a Fund are converted to the funchional ousrercy using exchange rates
ebiained from Pricing Senices. A5 a result, the value of such investments and,
in purn, thee KAV af thie Fund's unith mary be affected by changes in the value
of currendies in relation to the functional currency. The value of investments
teaded in Soneign markets or denominated in currencies other than

the functional currency ey be affecied sigmificantly on a day that the Tiet i
not open for business. As a resuli, 1o the extent that a Fund hiodds foreign
[ron-U% ) investments, the value of those imestrents may change at times
whin you <anrgl punchase, redesm or exchange unith and the vlue of such
imvestments will be rellected in the Fund's et caloulated WAV

Imvestmends for which market quotes or market-based valuations are not
readity available are vatued at fair value as determined in good faith by

the Manages o persons acting a1 thes direction The bManager hus adopted
methads for valuing secunties and other assets in ciroumstances where
market quotes arg nat readily available, and has delegated to PIMCO the
respansibility Tor apphang the s valosiion methads In the event that market
quenes or market-based waluations ate not readdy available, and the seourity
or asset cannol be valued pursuant to a Manager approved valuation
misthod, the valoe of the secuty o asset will be deteeminied in good fath by
the Valuation Committee: Market quotes are considened not readily available
in oreumstances wheve theve is an absence of nament or religdble markes
based data (e q. wade information, badfask infarmation, mndcative sarket
quenations [*Broker Quotes”), Pricing Services” prices), indudng where
events pocur altes the dose of the relevans market, but prior 1o the NYSE
Clase, that matersally affect the valyes of the Fund's secunties ar saes. In
additan, macket quotes aee consadered non readdy available when, due 10
extracedinary oroumstances, the exchanges or markets on which the
secutities Srade do not open for Trading for the entire day and no other
markeq praces are reailable The Manager i4 resporabie for monitaning
significant events that may matenally affect the values of the Fund's secuities
or assets and bor determaning whether the value of the applicable securities or
asgets should be resvatuatied in Bght of such significant events

‘When a Fund uses faer valuation io determine the vaiue of a portiolie seowity
or other asset for prposes of cakculating its MAY, such Evestments will not

be priced on the basis of quotes bom the primary market in whith they ae
rchisd, bt rather may be priced by ancther method that the Msnagit of
pessoers acning At thedr direction belieoe reflects Tair value, Fair valuaten may
require subjective determinaticns about the value of a security. While

the Trust"s policy i interded 10 result = o calculation of 3 Fund's NAY that
Tairhy reflects security valiees &5 of the teme of pridng, the Trust cannat ensuze
that fair walues determired by the Manager or persons acting at their
ditection would accurately reflect the peice that a Fund could obtann foe a
secunty i it were 1o dspose of that tecurity a5 of the tme of pricng (o
irestance, in a foroed or distressed sale}. The peices used by a Fund may differ
from the value that would be realized if the secunties were sold

%) Fair Valoe Hisrarehy U5 GAAP descrbes fair value as the prce that

A Fighd veoield ticinad ba dell an dided :xu.'rg‘.p'.rmﬂm & huselily 1n i gy
Transacton bapween maket patbopants at the measusement date
establishes a lair value hieranchy that pronitzes inputs to vaheation methods
and recuites. dischosune of the Fair value hierarchy, separately for each majce
cateqory of assets and babilites, that seqregates far value measurements imo
feels {Lewed 1, 2. o0 3) The inputs or methodology used forvaluing seourites
aie not necessanly an indation of the ks assoosted with Evesting in those
secutities. Levels 1, 2, ard 3 of the fair value hietanchy are defined a5 follows:

® Level 1—{Quoted prices in active markets or emchanges for identical assets
and liabikties

® Level 2—Significant ather shiencable inputs, which may mdude, bot ane
nat fimited to, quoted prices for smilar assets or Kabilites in markets that are
actrve, quoted prices for identical or similar assets o liabilities in markets that
&tk nod ek, inputs other than quoted prices that e obiereable far the
assets o Rabilities (such as interest rabes, yield cunves, wolatiities, prepayment
speeds, loss seventies, oredit risks and default rabes) or other market
conobatated mputs

# Level 3—Significant unobsenable inputs based an the best mnformation
available in the croumstanges, to the extent otsenvable inputs ane not
available, which may incude assumptions made by the Manager or persons
aching at their desctan that ae used in determining the fai value of
ivestments

Assets or hiabilites categorzed as Level 2 or 3 a5 of penod end have been
translened betwesn Levels 2 and 3 since the prior period due 1o changes in
thee meshod wtilzed in valuing the investments. Trasalers from Level 2 to Level
3 are a result of a change, i the namal course of business, Irom the wse of
vilyation methods wed by F!u;lrg Seraoid (Level 20 1o the ute of 2 brober
quobe o valuation tedhnique which utilizes significant unobsencable inputs
due to an absence of curent or refiablie market-based data (Level 3]

Transders from Level 3 10 Level 2 are 8 result of she avaslability of curent and
reliable market-based data paoaded by Pricirg Services or other valuatian
techriques which utilize significant chservatide inputs

In accandande wiih the requeements TR GAAF, the amounss of transfers
in and oot of Leved 3, f matenal, ate dischosed in the Nobes to Schedule of
Irivestments for each respactive Fund

Foe Far valuations wiang sigraficant unobservable inputs, U 5. GAAP iequires
1o dsclose pransfers into and out of Level 3 of the fair value hieraechy and
purchases and issues of Level 3 assets and liabilities during the penod
Additionally, L5, GAAP requres quantitative infrmation regarding the
sqnificant uncbservabile rputs used in the desermination of Tair walue of
assets of Rabilities categorized as Level 3 in the fair value hiesarchy. in
acnsdance with the requiresnents of LS. GAAR, a fair value hieracchy, and if
matenad, details of -.v:l|n||'||:.:1l yngbisenvable mputs, have been induded i the
Botes to Schedule of Ervestments foe each respactive Fund
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Ie] Valuatien Techniques and the Fair Valus Hiararchy

Lewed 1, Lavel 2 sad Level 3 teading sasets and irading labilities, a1

fair valon The vialuation methods (of " techniques™) and wm‘.l:al'. infuts
wed i determhing the Tar values of portiabe secunties of ather assets and
ligbisties cabegonzed as Level 1, Level 2 and Leved 3 of the fair value hiesarchy
ane a5 ollows

Fruid incoeme securilied inchpdang oompocabe, comsemble 303 muncipsl Bonds
and raotes, U5, govemment agenaies, U 5. treasury obligations, sovereign
1ssues, bank loans, convertibie preferred secunties and non-ll 5. bonds are
neemalky viued on the basis of quates cbtsined Fiom brokers and deders o
Priging Services that use broter-dealer quotations, repored trades o
walization estimates froem their internal pricing models The Pricing Senvices
inpernal models iee iputs that aoe obsenrale such ot nduer defals, intenest
rates, yield ounes, prepayment speeds, credd niskefspeeads, default rates and
quoted prices for similar assets. Secunities that use simila valuation
techniques and inguts a5 described above are categorned ot Level 2 of the
Tasr walue Bieraichy

Faed income securities purchased on a defayed -delivery basis oras a
repurchase comemitment in a s@e-buyback ransaction ace marked 1o markel
daily el serthement a1 the Teeward sertemant date and are categanized &
Leseed 2 of the fair value hiesarchy.

Moitgage-telated and assef-bached securities ane usually nsued a5 separate
panches, of dasdes, of secunites within each deal These securties ane 48450
normalky vaboed by Pricing Seraices that use beoker-dealer quotations,
reparted trades of valoation estimates from their mbennal pricing models. The
pricang madels for these securties usually consider tranche-level atinbutes,
ourrent market data, estmated cash flows and marker-based yield spreads for
eath tranche, and incomporate deal collateral perormance, as available
Mongage-related and dsset-bached securiies that e similar valuation
techniques and inputs a3 dedcribed aberve are cabegonzed 2o Level 2 of the
Taar walus hierarhy

Comman stacks, ETFs, exchange-teadied notes and linancal derreatnee
instruments, such as fugures contracts, nghts and waeranis, of ogitions an
futures that are traded on a national securities exchange, are stated at the
last meported sale or sestlement prce on the day of valuation To the extent
thesgis Secuntien ane oty traded and valyatan adjustments ang mol appled,
they are categovized as Level 1 of the Fair value hierandhy

Irvestmaents valued {dencminated) in currencies ather than the functional
OEnengy of a Fund 3¢ comened to the funclional cuinendy uhing exchangs
rates [curency sped and Sorward rates) obtaéned from Pricing Senaces. As a
result, the NAW of a Fund's units may be affected by changes in the value of
gurrencies in relation to the functional cumency. The value of securities traded
in fereign markets or denaminated i cumencies other than the functional
currency may be afected significantly on a day that the Trust is not open for
busiretid. Valudtion adpusiments may be dpplied 80 oorlain securties that ane
soledy maded on a foreign enchangs 1o sccount fal the market movement
between the dose of the foseign markes and the NYSE Close. These seouities
ane vatued using Priceng Services that consider the correlation of the trading
patterns of the Baetgn secunity 1o the intraday wadng in the U 5 markets for
imestments. Securities wsing these valuathon adjustments are categorized as
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. Prefesred securities and other equities
readid on inactae markest or valoed Ly rlaremoe 10 ereldr instpments e
also categorized as Level 2 of the fair value herardy

Equity-linked securities are valued by referencing the last reporied sale o
settlement price of the linked referenced equity on the day ol valuation
Foreign exchange adjustments ate applied to the Lrst repanted price to

comvert the linked equity's trading cutrency o the contract’s settling cumendy
Thadar vesbmienls afé categonted a5 Livel 2 ol he Tair valye hiesa chry

frrvestrments in regstered open-end rvestment companees (othes than ETFs)
will be valued based upan the NAYS of sudh imestments and are categotized
a% Level 1 of the Lan value hierarchy Imogstments in unregistered open-tnd
irnvestment companies will be caloulated based upon the MAYS of such
irvvestments and are considered Leved 1 providied that the MAVs are
oesenable caloulated ﬂ.]ll','a'bd are thevalue at whech both puechaset and
sales wall be conducted

aluation adjustments may be applied to certain exchange traded futures and
aptions to actount for market moverment between the exchange settlement
and the WY3E close, Thews sequnbes g valped using guales citaned froem a
quotation reporting system, estabdshed market makess of pricing services
Financial dermvatoes wsing these waluation adfustments are categoeized a6
Level 2 of the far walue begcaidy

Equity exchange-traded opbons and over the counter Bnancial dervative

resiruments, such as forwaed foreign cumency contradts and oplions. contrads,

e thesr value Tram widkerhang asset phoss, endiies, relprenoe fanes, and
ather inputs of a combination of these facioes. These contracts ane normally
valued o the basis of quates obtaned Trom a guotation reparting system,
edtablshed market makers or Pricing Senvices (nomally detemined i of the
MYSE Close). Depending cn the product and the terms of the tramacan
financial derirative instruments. can be valued by Pridng Sendces wsing a
etie ol techriques, indludeng amulatsan prcing modess The prcng models
wse inputs that see ohiered from actrvely quated maskets such a5 quoted
puines, ssuer details, indices, bidlask spraads, interest rates, implied
volatdities, yield amves, dividends and exchange rates. Financial dervatie
untruments that we airmila valuation Sechriguis and inputs & disenbed
abive aee categonzed as Level 2 of the fair value hierasthy

Centrally clearad swaps and over the counber swaps derive their value from
uniderhying aiset pioed, indices, relerenc rales, and alfer INpULE of a
combination of these factors They are valued using a broker-dealer bid
quokation or cn market-based pnces provided by Pricing Senvices (nomally
deteimaned o5 of the NYSE Clossh Cernral b cheated fwapd and over the
courter ywaps can be valued by Pricing Services wsang a senes of techniques,
including ssmulation pricing madals. The pricing models may use inputs that
ate observed from actvely quoted markets such a5 the overnight index swap
rabe {"06°), LIBOR forward rate, inbesest rates, yield cunves and credic
spreads These sequities are categotized a5 Level 2 of the far value hierarchy

Wihen a far valuation method i appled by thie Manages that uses sgaidicant
unobiercable inputs, evestments will be priced by a methad that

tha Manager or pedsons acting at their direction believe reflects fair value and
ane calegonzed as Level 3 of the fair value hierardhy

Pecey pricing prooedunes st the base poce of o fied EHOME ity and
subsequently adjust the price proportionally to market vabue changes of a pee
detemened security deemed to be comparable in deration, generaly a L5
Treasury o sovereign rote baed on country of issuance. The base price may
bee & broker -dealer quote. transaction price, of & internal value & derved by
analbysis of market data. The base price of the security may be reset ona
peviodic basis based on the availability of macket data and procedures
approved by the Valuation Oversight Comerittes Sigrafcant changes in the
unobsercable inputs of the prooty pridng process: (the base price) would resull
i direch and peopaitional thanges in the fair value of the secunty These
securities ae categorized as Level 3 of the far vale heraochy

H theed-party evaluated vendor pricing is not avallable ar pot deemed 10 be
inchicative of faic value, the Manager may ehect to obiain Broker
Quanes directly from the beoker-tealer o passed-through Broker Quote from
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a third-party vendor . In the event that Tair value is based gpon a smgle
spueced Broker Quate, these securines are catigonzed a5 Level 3 of the Tair
walise hieranchy. Broker Quates are typically recesed from established marked
participanss. Although mdependently received, the Manager does not have
the transpangngy to view the ||njrrh-1nf_| mpats which suppon the market
quedaticn Significant changes in the Beoker Quote weould have deect and
proportional changes in the fair value of the security

Shon-term debt instruments (such 3 comeneroal [apt] hamang a rsmaining
matunty of 60 days of less enay be valued at amonized oost, 56 long &3 the
amarted oost wafse of swch short-term: debt instruments is approximately the
same & the Fair value of the instument a5 determined without the use of
amoriged oo walsplion Thise scunties ang categonded as Lol J of Lisael
3 of the fair value hieraechy depending on the source of the base pice

4. SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

|a] Delaryed Dafivery Transactions Ceman Funds may purchase oo sell
seounities on a delayed-delsery basis. These transachons imoke a
gommitmend by a Fund to purchase oo sell sacurities for a predeterminad price
o yekd, wilh paymens and delvery 1aking place bepond the cuslomnany
setlement petiod. When delped-delevery ransactions. are utstandng,

& Fund wall designate or receive a5 collateral hgued assets in an amount
sufficient 1o meet the purchase price or respective obligations When
purchasing a security on & delaped-delivery bass, a Fund assumes the nights
and risks c-‘.qmrlﬁp{l!".h{' secunty, indud g thie iisk of pnce and yekd
Muactustions, and takes such fluctuations inte acoount when determnmng ils
MAN. A Fund may depose of of tenegetiate a delayed-delieny transaction
after it is entered into, which may result in a realized gain or less. When

a Fund hars sold @ secunty on a delayed-defery basis, the Fund does nat
partiopate in huture gains and hosses wath respect to the security

(b} Inflation-Endexed Bonds Covtan Fumds may st in inflasion-indensd
bords Inflation-indexed bands ace foed income secuntes whose principal
walloe is periodically adjusted by the rate of inflation The eterest rate on
these bonds i generally fooed a1 issuance at a rabe lower than typical bonds
Ot the Ie of an inllasion-indexed bond, however, intetess wal b-c-pad
based an a principal value, which is adjusted for inflabon. Amy increase o
decrease in the principal amount of an inflasson-indexed bond wil be incduded
a4 innedest scome on the Stamements of Uperabions, éwen though mmestons do
nid recere their prircpal untd maturity. Repayment of the angiral Bond
pricipal upon maturity (35 adjusted for inllabice] is quatantesd in the case of
U5 TIF: Fed bonds that 3 not prowide & srmidar quarantes, the adjusied
prncipal walse of the bond repaid a8 maturity may be bess than che ongingl
prircipal

Ie] Lean Participations. Assignments and Oviginations "ertain Funds may
imees in drect debl insnuments wiich arg inberests in amounts owed io
lendess o lending syrchcates by cotpesate, governmental, or ather boenowers
A Fund's investments an loans may be in the form of participations in loans o
assigremenits of all or a portion of Ioaes from thind parties or irvestments in of
enginations of laans by the Fund A boan is often administered by a bank or
other Enandal institution (the “lender”} that acts as agent for all holders. The
agent administers the terms of the koan, as spedhed in the loan ageement

A Fund may imeest in mubiple senes or franches of 2 loan, whach may have
waning terems and cammy differant assooated rcks. When a Fund purchases
assigrmenis from benders 15 acguires direct rights against the borowers ol the
loans. Thisse baars may indude pariopations in bindige koars, which ang loss
taken out by bodnowers far a short period (typically leis than one year)
pending arangement of more permanent finandng through, for example, the
wssuance af bonds, Trequenitly high yield bonds issued for the puspose of
BOUSTIonS

Thee types af loars and related mpestments in which the Funds may st
nclude, among others, seniot Kang, dbondndted loand {incdudng second
Tieny lnaeres, B-Mates and mezzaning kaans), whole laans, commencial real
estate and other commercial loans and structured Yoans. A Fund may
aniginate loans o aoquate dinect injenests in loars theough primany loan
destrbuticns andion in private bansactiors In the case of subordinated loans,
there may be significant indebitedness ranking ahead of the borower's
obligation 10 the holder of such a loan, indudeng in the seent of The

B ewer's insoheeny. Mezzaning laans are typecally seouted by a pledge of
an equity interest in the moetgage borrowwer that owns the real estate rather
than an interest in @ morgage

Ieveerarnints in boans may include unfunded boan commimments, which ane
contractual cbligations Bor funding. Unfunded loan commitments may include
revoiving credit facilibes, which may obligate a Fund 1o supply additional cash
1o the beereraer on demand Urdunded boan commitments regesent a future
ohligation in full, even thaugh a percentage of the commitied amount may
nat be utilized by the bormwer. When imeesting in a baan partiopation,

& Ford hag the raght 10 recehn: paymients af principl, mtensit and amy fess 10
whach it = entithed anly from the lender seling the loss agreement and only
upon receipt al payments by the lender trom the bomower. A Fund may
receive a commizment fee based on the wndravn parion of the undertying
lieee of ceedit porsan of a loan. In cenain arcumstances, 3 Fund may recene a
penaity lee upon the prepayment of a loan by a bomower. Fees eamed of
pand ane ceconded as @ componen of interest mcome of inberest TP,
tespectively, an the Slatements of Operaborn. Unfunded loan comermments
am reflected a5 a lisbdfity on the Statements of Assets and Leabditees

40 Mortgage Ralated and Other Asset-Backed Securitios Cettan Funds may
st in mortgage-related and cther asset-backed secunties that directhy o
mderectly represent a partiopation in, o are secured by and payable fram
foans on real property. Morigage-related securities are created from pools of
mesidential of commercial mongage lard, including morgage loans made by
sangs and loan imsticnions, morigege bankers, commercial banks and
others These sequrities provide a monthly payment which consists of both
ireresd and puindpal. Interest may be determined by foced or adjustable rates
The ate of prepayments on underyang merstgages wel affect the price and
yolatility of a mortgage-refated semty, and may have the efled of
shartening or extending the eflecive duration of the security relative 1o what
wirs anbopated ab the time of purchase. The timely payment of principal and
intenest of cemain mortgage-related securites & quarasieed waith the full Tath
and credit of the U 5. Government Poels created and guaranteed by mon-
geernmental ssuers, including government-sponsaned torporations, may be
supported by vanows Torms of insurance of quacantess, but there can be na
assurance that paivate insureds of quarantors can meet their obligations under
the insurance polices or guaraniee amangements. Many of the nisks of
Ievesing i morgage-related seournities secuned by commercial mangage
Toares refiect the effects of local and cther economic cenditions on real estate
matkets, the abiity of tenants to make lease payments, and the ability of a
property 1o amract and retden tenants. Thede secuntees miry be hek bguid and
may exhibat geeater price volatling than other types of marigage-related o
oiher asset-backed secunties. Other asset-backed secunties are created from
mnary types of asets, including, bat ot limited 16, aule kaans, acouns
recefvable, such as cedi card recetvablies and hospital account recervables,
home equity loans, student loars, boat loans, mobile home Joans,
recreationdl vebucle loans, manlaciured houng boans, areralt begdas,
compuier mases and syndicated bank loans. The Fund may mest in amy el
ol the capstal structure of an ssuer of merigage-badied or asset-backed
securities, inchuding the eguity or “lirst loss™ randhe

{nh Collateralized Mortgege Obligatiens (" CN0S" | are debit cbligabons ol a
Il éntity 1Rt ane colldenakned by whols mamgage leam of pinedle
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moerigage bonds and drvded it classes. CMOs ane strucheed into multiple
chisses, alten refermed 1o &% “ranchis”, with each dass beanng a different
stated maturty and entitled 1o a different schedule far payments of prinopal
and interest, inchuding prepayments. CMIDs may be less liquid and may exhibit
greater price valatlity than other types of mergage-related or asset-backed
sarurities

Ifl Sirippad Mortgage Backed Sacuritins [FSMES™ ) are denvatne muln-class
mirtgage secunties. SMBS are usually stnachared with two classes that receie
different proportions of the mterest and principat distributions on a pool of
mertgage dsets An SMES vall have one class that wall recene all of the
interest ik imtenest-only of "I0" diass), while the ather ass will recesve the
entire principal {the principal-cnly o PO dass). Payments recerved for 10s
ard included R s e on The Stalementd of Cpecanong, Becalse no
prancipal will be recerved at the magunty of an 10, adjustements ate made 1o
the cost of the security on a monthly basis untl maturity. These adjustments
are inchuded in in%erest incoe on the Statements of Operatices. Payments
receved fior PO ane treated as reductions to the ¢ost and par value of the
saCuribies.

Ig) Collataralired Debt Oblipations | C00:") snclude Collateraloed Bend
Obdigations ("CBOs™), Collateralzed Loan Obbgatiors {7 CLOs") and other
similay structured securties. CBO and CLOs ane types of asset-backed
secorities. A CBO is a trust which is backed by a diversified paol of high isk,
below imvestment grade fiwed income securites & CLO is a trust typically
cotlateal@ed by a pocd of lgans, which midry inglude, among others, domeilic
and borenyn seniol sevured aans, senier unsecured laans, and suboedinate
corporate loars, including boans that may be rated bebow imvestment gradse or
equivaient unrated loans. The ks of an evestment in 3 CDO depend Laigely
on the type of the collateral secunities and the dass of the CDO inwhidh

a Fund ireests. In addition o the normal risks assodabed with foed income
sequrities discussed elsewhere in this repert and the Funds™ Offering
Mesnarandum (eq, prepayment mk, credd nsk, lgediy rick, markes mik,
structural nisk, legal risk and inserest rate risk (which may be exacerbated il
the imlenest rate payable on a sinctured fnancing changes based on
mulEpies al changes i s ries of imseesely 1 charges in infedist
ranesh), CHOs, CL0s, and ather CO0s camy additional rigks induding, but not
limited ta, (i} the possiility that distrbutions from cofl ateral seourities will not
be adequate b make mberest o cther payments, (1) the guakty of the
collatesal may dechne in value or defaul, (in) the risk that a Fund may imest
in CAOs, CLOs, or other C0Os that are suboudinate to other dasses, and (W)
the comples structure ol the secoeity may nat e Tully undesstood at the tme
of eveestment and may produce deputes with the Bauer of unepected
imvestment nesuits

[l Paysseat bn-Kind Secuditien Centain Funds may invest in payment in-tind
securities (" PIKs™ ). PIEs may gree the ssver the oplion 38 each inferest
Py date o making intesest payments in dither cagh andios sddmional
debt securities. Those addibonal debit seouritses wsually huree the tame teems,
inclisding maturity dates and interest rates, and assooated nsks as the
enginal bonds The daily market quotations of the aaginal bonds may incudie
the accrued inbesest {refermed 1o 25 4 "dirty prace” ) and require a pro rata
adjustment from the unrealzed apgrecation or depreciation on imesiments
ta interest recetvable on the Statements of Assets and Liasbilines

[l Retricted Securitier Cevtan Funds may hold investments that are subgedt
1o degal or contractual restrichiond on resale. Thise securities may be sold
prevately, but may be required 1o be registered or exemnpted from such
regrstration before being sold to the public. Private placement seaunbies ase
ql,lllrm'iy eoreicered ta be reinetnd Dispeosal of festricied imaepiments mapy
imoghve ene-consuming regatiations and expendss, and prompd sale af an
acceptable price may be difficult to achieve Restricted investments. held by

tha Funds at Dctobier 31, 2021, a5 appficable, are dsdosed in the Notes 1o
Schedule of brrestments

0 Stractured Notes Certain Fumds may invest in stroctured nedes and ather
related instruments, which are prevately negotated debt abligations in which
the principal ard! of interest b determened by reference 1o the performance of
a benchmark assey, marked or interest rate (an " embedded ndex”), such &
sehecied securnities, an index of secunites o specified interest rates, o the
defferential perlormance of two assets of markets, such a5 indies reflecting
baonds. Struchared instruments may be issued by corporations, induding
banks, as well as by governmental agences. The terms of such structured
irstruments normally provide that their prncpal andfor infesest payments are
1o ke acusted upwards o dowmwands (hut ordinanly mat below pers) to
teflect changes in the embedded index while the struchured instnaments e
outstanding As a result, the intenest andior paintipal payments thal may be
made on & siructured preduct sy vary wadely, depending on a variety of
factors, induding the volablity of the embedded index and the effoct of
changes in the embedded index an prancipal andfor interest payments

&I US, Gavernmant Agesties ar Government-Speatarad Entarprise

Certain Funds may irvest in secusities of U S Government agendies o
government-spansored enterpreses. U5, Government secunities are
ahligatiors of and, in cetain cases, guaranteed by, the U 5. Government, its
agencies of instrumentaliies. Some U S, Geverrenent seountes, sudh as
Teeasury bills, rotes and bonds, and secunities quaranteed by the Govesnment
Naticnal Mertgage Assoaation ("GNMA” or “Ginnie Mae™), a1e supgported
by the Tidl fath and credha of the LS Goerrenent others, soch a4 thods of
the Federal Home Loan Banks, are supparied by the mght of the issuer to
bomow from the U.S. Department of the Treasury (the “U 5. Treasury™k and
athers, juch as those of the Federal Natianal I\.l"a::g.qt Assoaahon | FNMA®
of " Fareie Mae™). are supparted by the discetionary authority of the LS
Gavemment to purchase the agendy's chligations. U'S. Govemrement securities
may indude 2600 Coupan secuiibes, wisch do nol detnbute injenest on g
curtent basis and tend 1o be subject 1o a greater rak than intenest-paying
securities of simdar maturites

Government-telated guarantors (i e, ot backed by the bl Laith and cedit of
the U 5. Govemment) incude FMA, and the Federal Home Loan Mongage
Cewpoeaticn {"FHLMC™ or *Freddie Mac™). FRMA 5 a govemment-sponsored
corporation. FNMA purchades comventional {1.e, nat insuned or guaranteed by
Aty goreeirenent agency) residential momgages froemn a list of appeoved
sellarsfsanaicers which include state and federally chanered sxings and loan
assocatons, mubrl srvings banks, commencial banks and credit unions and
mgiigage bankers. Padg-through secuntses sisued by FRIMA are quarantisd o5
1o timely payment of prncipal and inerest by FNMA, but are not backed by
the full faith and credit of the U.5. Gowernment FHLME wssues. Particpation
Coertificates ("PCs™), which are pass-thisugh secunities, each reprssanting an
undiided interest in a pool of residental mongages. FHLMC guatantees the
timely payment of intevest and ultimate cofection of principal, but PCs are not
bascked by the Bull faith and coedit of the U %, Government

I bune 2009, FNALA and FHLMC started isguing Uniform Mestgage Baded
Securitses {"UMBS" ) in place of their curent alferings of THA-shgbde
secunties {the "Single Security Enitiatve™ ). The Single Security Initiatve seeks
1o support the overall bauidity of the THA market and aligns the
characteristics of FNMA and FHLMC cemficates The elfects that the Single
Security Inibative may have an the market for TBA and other mortgage:
backied seounibes ae yncerian

Redl-timing sirategies can be used where a Fund seeks to extend the
expitation o masunity of @ posrtion, wkchi 25 a TRA security on an underlying
assrl, by chofang oul thee poston l:r‘rl:l'l'l"lr.lr-llll:ﬁ and ppening & nisw
peosition wath respedt 1o substantally the same wnderhing Fsset with a lacer
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expiration date. TEA securities purchased or sold are reflected on the
Statements of Azsets and Liablities a5 an asset or kablity, respecinely

Ml When-lzsued Transactioas Certain Funds may purchase or sell sequrities
o & whirrisdued basis. Thise trandactsans ate made condiionally beciuse &
spcurity, altbough authorized, has not et been dsued in the markes
Transactions to purchase ca sell sequrities on a when-sssued basis imvolve

a commiteent by 3 Fund ta purchase or séll these seamties ke a
predesemingd price of yild, with payment snd delreny taking place beyond
the customary settlement pedicd A Fund may sell when-issusd sequrities
before they are delivered, which may result in a realized gain o loss

Im] Baak Dbligationa Bank chiligations in which a Fund may invest mclude
certificates of depost, bankers’ acceptances, and foed time depouts
Cetificates of deposit e negotiable cetificates msued against funds
depesited in a commercial bank for a definfte period of time and earning a
speabied retum. Bankers oeplances &g r@;pll.,ﬂ!r drafts or balls ol
exchange, rotmally drawn by an importes or exportes bo pay Tor speafic
merchandise, which are "accepted” by a bank, meaning, in effect, that the
bank unconditionally sgree 1o pay the Face value of 1B imtrument on
matunty Fived time depesies are bank obligations payable a1 a stated
maturity date and bearing interest at a fowed rate Fined time deposits may be
wathkimn on demand by the smestar, But miy be subjed 16 ealy
wathdiwval penaliies which vary depending upon market coadaions and the
remaining maburity of 1he obligation

|n} Pas{armance-Linked Mates Certan Funds invest in perfoemance-linked
nofes that aci issued by Credit Suisse International (the ™ Fee .l'l.gml'] and
spek 1o track the pedamande of the FIMOO Bermuda Ingoene Fund (M)

{ " Peaformance-Linked Motes™ ) In the case of the IFY Perlormance-Linked
Nortes isswed, the perfcsmande al such notes will be hedged 12 the lapanese
win by Credit Suse [nbamabdnal uiing d:llw'li‘l.r_."m-'luh A egplimned sh
greater detad in Note 9, the Fee Agent will finance the payment of platement
feas to certain Japarese destibatoss. In onder for the Fee Agent to hedge
certain of i3 epodates unde the Fee Ager Appasilment Agreement [
defined in Mote 9}, i is expected that from time to ime certain Classes of the
PINKCD) Bermunda incomse Fumnd E wall invest in Perfformance-Linked Nedes in an
AT ',p-l:~;_1||cd by the Fis Agient A1 1he teme af evintd raciuding, Bat mat
limited o, ary redemption of units of the PIMCO Barmuda Income Fund E
amd a step-tdown of the applicable Percentage Contingent Deferred Sales
Charge {"CD5C"), a5 defined m Note 9, the Pedorance-Linked Notes held
by the Fund will be parially redeemed accondingly in arder to mamiain the
total vatue of Perormance-Linked Motes in the Fund's investment portislio
equal b o below the amount of the COSC applicable ta th tespective
Classes of the Fund plus 0 20% muloplied by the AV of the respecve
Classes of the Fund Perdommance-Linked Motes are valued daly Thes value s
based on the pnor day WAY of the PIMCD Bermuda Income Fund (M) With
nespet o the vl of the &Y Perlormance-Linked Mates, a progpnetan
hedging formula is also appled The Fund carnot transfer the Perfoemance:
Linked Mobes to any other party aside from the Fee Agent without the prior
waitlen ageement af the Fee Agem

5. BORROWINGS AND DTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

The Tellgwang declosyres contain indormation on the Funds ability 1o bend of
borrow cash o securitses 1o the extent pesmitied under the Offering
Memorandum, which may be wiewed as boerowing or finanong transactions
by the Funds The location of these instruments 15 described below. For a
detaded detcnption of credit and counterpaety ks that can be ssocraied
wath bwmarwings and ather financing transactons, please see Note 7,
Prancipal and Oitheer Risis

fa) Repurchass Agresments Certain Funds may engage in reputchase
agreements. Linder the terms of a typical repurdhase agreement,

a Fand purchases an underhying debt cbqation (collateral) subject to an
ohligation of the seller to repurchase, and a Fund 1o tesall, the obligation at
an agreed-upon prce and time In an cpen matunty repunchase agreement,
thene is no pre-determmed repurchase date and the agreement can be
termnated by the Fund or coustempaty at any time. The market valioe of the
collateral must be equal to or euceed the total amount of the repuichase
ohbligatiors, induding interest Repurchase agreaments, induding accrued
imlenest, ade induded on the Statements of Asiets and Ligbilties. Intenest
eamned is tecorded a5 a companent of inberest imgome on the Statements of
Cperations. bn peniods of increased demand for collateral, a Fund may pay a
i fior receapl of eollaveral which may hisul] 10 Ingenest expenda o the Fund

%) Roverss Reporchase Agresmsats Cerian Funds may enter info reverse
tepurchase sjreements In a reverse epuschase sgreement, a Fund delners a
sequnty in exchange for cash to a finanaal instibution, the countesparty, wath
a simultaneous agreement 10 repurchase the same or substanbially the same
SECUnTy M an dietd upon pnoe and dase 1n B0 oDen MUy tEosehe
tepurchase agreement, there i no pee-determaned repurchase date and the
agreement £an be lerminated by the Fund or counderpasty at any tme

& Fumd 15 entrled b0 receive principal and intesest paymends, f amy, madi on
the secunity delvened 1o the countesparty duting the term of the agreement
Cath recesved in exchange for securities delvensd phus acoued inferest
paymins 0o be made t',l & Fund 8o counDecp artins e reflecied 25 2 Inablity
on the S1atemenis of Assets and Liabilnies. Imerest payenents made by a Fund
o countesparties are recorded & 3 component of inenest expense on the
Staverments of Operations In persods of increased demand for the security,

& Ford Ty fECENE & fise Teor e of the munr,lb'll the coumteipanty, which
may result in irterest income toa Fund A Fund will seqregate assets
determaned 1o be bgued by PIMCO or will cthenwise cover i chiigations
under tiverse repurchace agreements

feh Saln-Buybacks Crertain Funds may enter inta financing transactaom
refierted o as "sale-buybacks’. A sale-buyback finanong ransaction consists
of a sate of a security by a Fund to a finandial instituteon, the counteipaty,
with a smuianedus agreement 1o repurchade the sime of substannally the
same security &t an agreed-upon price and date. A Fund is rot entrtled 1o
eecedve prinopal and Enterest payments, if any, made on the securiy sold ta
the counterparty during the teim of the agreement The agreed-upon
preeed fod securitied to be repurchased by a Fund e reflecied a5  lakeity
an the $atemsents of Assets and Liabilities. A Fund will recognize net inoome
represented by the price differential between the price receved for the
trafsfered weounty and the agresd-upon repuichase prce This i commanly
eefieried to as the 'price drop’. & price diop corsests of (i) the laregone interest
and inflationary income adprstments, @ any, a Fund would have otherwise
el had the secunty nat besn sold and i) the nigolitied F.mrr:mq i
Esetvepen & Fund amd couserpany. Foregone intetet amd inflationary incoene
adjustments, if any, are recorded as components of interest income on the
Staterments of Operations. Intevest payments based upon negotiated financng
terms made by a Fund to counterparties ane recoeded a5 a companent af
imerest expense on the Statements of Operatons. [n peviods of inoeased
demand for the security, a Fund may recerve a fee for use of 1he security by
the countesparty, which may <ol in interest meome 1o 4 Fund A Fund all
segreqate assets determingd to be bguid by PIMCO or will othenwse cover its
obibgaticrs under sale-buyback trarsachions

) Sheet Salex Certan Funds may enter into short sales transactions. Short
Lake aie Haribchond n which the Fund 26lls 2 Socursty that it mdy not v
A Fund may make short sales of seountaes 1o () offset potential dechnes in
loeng positions. in semilar seouritees, (i) bo inrease the flewlility of the Fund
(i) for imvestment retum, (vl as part of a risk arbitrage strateqy, and i) as
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part of its overall portfolic management sirategies invabing the use of
dermaimve islruments. When b Fund engages in 8 Short sale, it may botow
the security sokd shoet and delrer it 5o the counteipay. The Fund wall
ordinanly hawe to pay a fee or premium to bomow a seauity and be obligated
ta repay the lender of the security amy dividend or interest that accrues on the
sacurity during the pezicd of the loan. Securities sold in sheet sale rantactons
and the dividend or interest payable on such secunities, if any, are reflected as
pryable lor shon saled on the Statements of Asiets and Lisbikties. Shor sales
expode the Fund 10 the risk that it will be required 1o cover its short patition
at a time when the security or ather asset has apprecated in vafue, ths
resitting in losses to he Fund A short sabe 15 " agamst the box” if

the Furd holdt in 4 portfelio or ki the right 10 soquire the seounty sold
shost, or securities identical 1o the seourity sold short, at no additicnal cost

A Fund will be sbgect to additional nsks to the exient that it engages in shoet
sales that e not " aosndt the box ™ A Fund's loss on a shom sale could
theeceetically be unlimited an cases where the Fund is unable, for whatever
reason, to dhose out its shart positon

{#] Lime of Credit FINCO Bermoda Bank Loan Fund (M) entered inso a 364
day sensor unsecured revobing credd agreement with the Bank of Tolyo-
Mirtsubigha UF), Lid {"MUFG"] and othés commenoal banks 1o be utlized for
temparany purpeses to fund Unitholder redemgitions of for sther shor-berm
liquidity purposes. MUFG serves a5 both a bank and as an agent for ather
banks that ane paties 1o the dredment FIMCD Beirmpda Bank Loan Fund
(M) pays Fenancing charges based on a combination of LIBOR-based vaniable
plus a credit spread. The Fund also pays a Tee of 0 275% per annum on the
unigied commament amounts. The syeement wad tendwed an August 21,
2021 and expires on Ausgust 21, 2022 unless exterdad of tenewed. There s a
maemum aealable commitment amount for PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan
Fund (4 equal to S45 000,000, Priod 1o .ﬁ.l.t.]u:.t 21, 2031, the maxesium
avaslable commitrmes amount for the Fund wars $55,000,000 and the Fund
paid a fee of 0 275% per annum on the unused commitment amounis.
Commitment, uplront and interest fees of 5236435 pasd by PIMCD Bermvuda
Bank Loan Fusd (M} e included s imenest spente i the S1aiemenls aof
Operatices

Dunrg the penod, thee were no bdmawengs on 1his hne of eredit

B. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The fellewing desclosures canain infsrmation on how and why the Funds ue
Tirancial desivative instruments and how fnancial dervate instruments
aflect the Funds” financial pasition, results of operations #nd cadh Tlows. The
location and Tar value amognts of these nstruments on he Statements of
Mssets and Liabilties and the nef realized gain (less) and net change i
unrealzed appreciation (depreciation) on the Statements of Opevations, sach
careganted by type of financial dervatiee contract and related risk expoture,
are ircluded in atable in the Notes o Schedule of Imvestments. The financial
derivative instruments cutstanding as of penod end and the amounts of net
realined gann {losd) andl et change in uregalzed appregation fdepreciation)
on financial dersvative instruments duting the periad, as declosed in the
Nodes o Schedde of Imvestments, serve a5 indicators of the vohame of
hingeecial demvative actiily Har the Funds

|s] Forvaard Foreign Currency Contraets Certain Funds may engage in
feewand I'un-:u;‘l CuTency COnleacts in canmection wath $emthng pl.a'mr\-:]
purchases or safes af sevunites, 1o hedge the curtency expasune assodated
wath some or all of a Fund's securities or a5 part of an investment strategy. A
forwsard foneign curiency canleact 15 an ageeement between tao partes 1o buy
and sell & currency at a et price on a fusure date. The market value of 2
Torwand foreign curency contract fluctuabes wath changes in foreign curiency
exchange rates. Foreard foveign cumency contracts are macked to market

dady, and the change in value & recoided by a Fund a5 an unnealized gain o
fos. Peafized quns o losses ate equal 1o the difference between the value of
the conteact at the teme it was opened and the value a1 the time i was dosed
and ane recoeded upan delivery or receipt of the curency. These contracts
mary imegrhe manket risk in emoess of the wreealzed gain or less refiected on
the Statements of Assets and Lisbdities In addition, a Fund could be exposed
1o risk if the counterparties are unable to meet the terms of the contracts or if
the value of the ourency changes ulavorably 1o the functanal currency, To
mitigate such sisk, cash or sequnties may be exchanged a2 collaberal pursuant
1o the terms of the underhying contracts

Certain Funds, having a hedged Class, may also enter inta feeward doneign
cuntency ceriracts designid to offset the effect of hedepng at the Fund leved n
ordiar to leave the hedged Class with an exposure 1o currencies other than the
functional curmency. These can be no guarantes that these Class speahc
Torevzed Sorelgn curency contracts will be saocessiul

) Futures Contrats Certain Funds many emtes info fuliees contacts A
fubures conbract is an agreement o buy or sell a seourity or other asseq for a
sed price on 3 future date and i traded on an exchange. A Fund may we
{utures coniacts o MaRgE i enpaiune bo The secutites markets of 10
miements in inerest rates and cuntency valses The primary risks associated
with the use of futures contracts are the impexfect comelation between the
chandge in martkiet walue of the secunties hedd by & Fund and the prices of
futures contracts and the possibility of am dliquid market Futunes contracts
ate valoed based upon their quoted daly setifement prices, Upon entering
e a Tutures contract, 3 Fund i reguired 1 dipost with its futures broker an
amount of cash, U5 Gowernment aed Agency Obligations, or seled sovereign
debit, in acoordance with the initial margin requirements of the broker or
euchange Futures contracts ane matked to market daily and hased on such
miermenis in the price of the contracs, an appropriace payable or recewvable
for the change invalue may be posted or collected by the Fund [ Futsres
‘Wariation Margin™ ). Futures Yariation Maegins, & any, ane dischiosed within
cenirally deaned financsl derrsatme instiurmenis on the Sarements of A
and Liablites. Gains of losses are reqogrized but not consadered reafized unbl
the contracts expire or Cose. Futures condracts involve, 10 vanying degrees,
sk of bogs in engess of the Futures Vatiation "v!.b'.]ln mcuded wathin
exchange traded or centrally deared finantial dervatie instruments on the
Saatemenits. of Assets and Liabikties

le} Optiona Coatraets Certain Funds may wnte or purchase options to
erMance relung of 1o hiddge an exisling positan or {utune irvestmend. Ceman
Furnds may weite call 2nd pus options on securites and financal detratie
imstruments they own or in which they may invest. Wiiting put options tends
o increase a Fund's expasune 1o the underkang instrament. Writing call
apticrs tends to decrease a Fund's exposure to the undethying snstrument
Whien a Fund wiites 3 cafl or pul, an amournt equal to the premium recewed is
recoeded and subsequently matked to marke] o fefiecy the curient value of
the option weriten These amounts aie induded on the Statements of Asets
and Liabditses Premiums receseed from wniting cptions which mipise are
treated s realeed gains. Premiures recerved from waiting options which are
exeicrbed of closed are added to the procesds o affse agarnt amounts paid
an the underying futunes, swap, secunty of cumenty transacton to determine
the reafed gain or boss. Certain options may be written wath premiums 1o be
deterraned on & futee date The premins for chise optians ane based upan
immphied velatiity pasameters at specilied terms A Fund as a weiter of an
opticen has no control over whether the underying nstrument may be sold
{"cal"}or purchassd {"put”™) and a5 a nesat bedrs the market cisk of an
unlavoratle change in the price of the instnament underhying the whitten
oplicn There is the risk a Fund may not be able to enter into a dosing
Tramsactian because of an digud market
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Cevtain Funds may abio purchase put and call eptioss. Purchading <all optians
Lends 10 arniee & Fund s exposune 0o the u:r:ll.':i',1rq rikliumens Furchang
put opons tends. to decrease a Fund's exposure g the underying instiument
A Fund pays a premium which is induded as an asset on the Statements of
Assets and Liobilgies and sabsequensly mardked 1o market 10 neflect the
cugrent vabue of the oplion. Premiums paid Tor punchasies optons which
expive are treated as realized bosses. Certain options may be purchased wath
premnan 5 b detemined ona future date. The pmiyms {or thase oot
are based upon implied volatibey paramebers a specified tems. The ek
assooated with purchasing put and call options is limited to the premium
paid Premiums paid for puschasing eptions which are exesosed or dased ane
added 10 the ameurts paid or alfeet againgt the procesds on the uedeing
imvestment transaction to desermine the realized gain or foss when the
underlying bransactcon is executed

Crwdit Dultault Swaptions Certasn Funch may weite or purchase cnedss defaut
swap laafrs. b hedage expasure 1o the credit sk of an imeiment withioul
making a commitment 1o the underlying instrument. & credit default swaption
is an cgrtion o sell or buy credit protection 1o a specilic reference by entering
itda pll'-nf'H' v Sovip agiesrent by Some e i dane en (ki litie

Foreign Curremey Options Certan Funds may wiite of puichase forean
fuerendy options 1o be used as a short of long hedge against possible
wariatices in foreign exchange rates o 1o Gain exposere 1o forsgn ourencies

Inflation-Capped Optiens Certain Funds may wiite or purchase inflation-
Capped opbang 8o ehhande hebutnd or o hedging cpportumtars The puposs
of purchasing indlation-capped opbioes is 1o protect a Fund from infation
eicson above a certain rate on 3 given notional exposure. A floor can be
used 30 gve downiide protection 10 imvestmens in nllatoe-linked products

Iminrmst Rate Swaptiens Ciitain Funds may wite of purchase inbisest rate
swap bans which are options 1o enser info a pre-defined swap agreement of
to shorten, extend, cancel or athersse modify an exsting swap sgreement,
by some specihed date in the Bubgre. The wniter of the swaption becomes the
counterparty 1 the swap if the buyer exercises The inferest rate swaptaon
agreament will specify whether the buyer of the swapton will be a fined-rate
recener of 3 fued-tate payer upon exendse

Dptions sn Exchanpe Traded Futures Contracts Cotan Funds may wile o
purchase optiors on exchange-traded futuees contracts {"Fufures Option”) to
hedge an existing positon or futune investment, for speculative pumoses or fo
manage expaiure b market movements. A Futures Option i3 an opbon
coeiract im which the underkang instrament is a single furtures contract

Dptions sn Securitins Certain Funds may weite of purchade apbors on
securities B0 enhanoe returrs of to hedge an esting pasition or fuhare
imnestment Anoplion on & seounty s @ specified secutily a5 the l..-,‘i:rhmg
instiument fat the opban cantract

[] Swinp Agresmswts Certan Funds may wrest in swap agreements Swap
agreements ane bilaterally negobated agreements between a Fund and a
CounEpay W ['Joqh.m.]-:-l:t Dwap icvestmen cash ficrass, assats, I'n'mqn
cusrenoses or market-linked requrns at specified, futwre intervals Swap
agreaments may be provately negotated in the OTC market or may be dearsd
thiroagh a thand paity, knoam a5 3 central counterparty or detivatioes Clearing
GOgantatan :'crnl-'alh cleaned soaps” ) A Fund iy Bnber inbo asiet, oredi
default, cross-camency, mfenest rate, total return, vanance and other forms of
SWap agreements 1o manage its exposuee o cedil, curmency, inberest rate,
commodity, equity and inflation fidk In conmection with these dgreements,
securines of cash may be identified as collateral or mangsn in accondance with
thee terms of the respective swap apeements o provide assets of value and
recourss @ the event of defadh o hank ngiopirsohningy

Centrally cleared swaps are marked o market daily based upon valuaticss a5
derermaned from the undiedying contract of in scoandance with the
requiremsenis af the central counterparty of derrabives cleareng erganizatsan
Changes in market value, if any, are reflected as a component of net change:
n unnealied appreciation [depreciation) on the Statements of Operatices
Diady chanyes in vahuation of centrally deared swiaps (™ Swap Vanaton
Margin®}, if any, are dsclosad within centrally deared finandial derivative
wntruments on the Strements of Assers and Labilimes QTC S Pyt
recetved ar pand at the beginning af the measusement petiod ate incuded on
the Statements of Assets and Lishdities and repeesent premiums paid oo
received upon entening o the swap ageeement 10 compensate fos
diffsrences betaenn the stated teims ol the swap Speement and prevailng
market conditions [redit spreads, oumency exchange rates, interest rates, and
ather relevant factors). Upfent premiums recerved (paid) are inttially reconded
a5 liablinies (arigets) and subdequently matked to market o reflecy the ourent
value of the swap These upfromt premiums ase reconded s realzed gars or
hoessies: on the Statements of Operations upon termination o maturity of the
pwap. A liquidation payment recerned of made ot thee erminatich af the L
i recorded &5 realized gain o less on the Statements of Operations, e
pevindic paymenss recesved o paid by a Fund ase induded as part of realized
gars of losses an the Statemants of Dperations

For pusposas of apphong certain of a Fund's imestment policies and
restrictions, swap agreements, libe other derrateve instruments, may be
vilued by a Fund a1 market vabae, notional value o Tl eposyee value En the
case of & coedi defisult swap, in applying cenam of the Fund's imestment
palicies and restrictions, the Fund will valuwe the redit default swap at its
notional value or its full exposure value {ie, the sum of the notional amount
o [he cantise Pl the market valuel, but iy o the et delimlt fEE L]
at market value for purpases of apphying certain of the Fund's other
irmestment polbicies and restrictions. For exampla, the Fund may valee credit
dedault yovaps at Tull expasure value fo putpedes ol the Fund's enedie qualing
quidekres {if any) becatse such value i general begter reflects the Fund's
actual economac exposure during the term of the credit default swap
agredment As o eetult, a Fund may. ot imes, have notional expasune 16 30
Frusirf clarss (befone petting) that & greater of lesser than the stated limit o
restriction noded in the Fund’s Offering Memorandum. bn ths context, both
the notional amaunt and the market value may be posatiee or negative
depending on whether the Furd r sellng or buying pretection thicugh the
crecht default swap. The manmer in which certain secunites ar other
wrstruments ane valued by the Fund 13 pupohr al m'\_rng imisiment
policies and restictans may differ fram the manner in which thee
ervestments ae valued by other types of mwvestods Entering inba swap
agreements invabves, fo vaning degrees, elements of imterest, credit, market
and documentation risk in excess of the gmounts recogniped on the
Statermenis of Assats and Liabiktes Such risks imvolve the posshiley that
there will be no boguid market for these agreements, that the counterparty 1o
the agreements may default o its chdgation S0 perform or disagree as to the
mieaning of contraciual teims i the agreements and that thene may be
unfavorable changes in intenest rates oo the values of the asset upon which
Tha s i based

A Fund's maamum risk of borss from countedpaty credit risk i the deoowned
el value of the cash flows 1o be received from the counterparty over the
contract's remaining lile, 10 the extent that ameount is pasitive: The risk may
ke mnitigated by hening & mastes netting aerangement between a Fund and
the counterparty and by the posting of collaterat 1o a Fund to cover a Fund's
exposure to the counferparty

To the extent a Fund his a policy to ks the nel amount avwed 10 or 10 be
recened fram a Single countespany under exsling Secp agreementd, such
lirmitation only appfies 1o counterparties bo OTC swaps and does nat apply to
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cenirally cleared swaps where the counterparty is a central counterparty or
derates [Ic,:lun; gangation

Cowdit Dafuult Swap Agreemests Cestan Funds may enter inbo credt defact
Swaps anh cofporate, baan, sovereign, US mummopal of U5 Treadury ssues to
provide a measure of protection aganst defautis of the issuers {i e, o reduce
nisk where a Fund coms or has msposure 1o the referenced cbligation] or to
rake an sctive long of shait podition with regpect o the Ekelihood of a
particuiar fssuer's defaul Creda default swap agreements mmobe ong party
making a stream of payments. (refemed to as the buyer of protection) to
ancther paity (the selle of pratedtion) = echange fee the nght 1o fecese 2
specfied rebum in the event that the referenced entty, obfgation cr index, as
specified i the swap agreement, undergoes a certam redit event. As a seller
of prefection on credit delault swap agreements, a Fund will generally recene
Tram the busser of protection a fiowed rate of income througheut the teem of the
swap pervided that these is ro credit event As the seller, a Fund would
effectroaty 53d leverage to s partlolio becae, in addition ta its total net
assets, the Fund would b subjisct 1o maestnint sxpodure on the notional
amount of the swap

I 3 Fumed i 3 seller of protection and a oedit event oours, & defined undes
th tererg of thas partcdas swap agreement, 2 Fond wall ether () pay 19 the
buyer of protection an amount equal to the noticnal amaunt of the swap and
take delivery of the referenced cbligation, other debverable cbligations o
underknng sRcuntss comphding the el e i ce {ub fulry & e
setlement anount in the form of cash of secuntes equal o the rotional
ameut of the swap less the recovery value of the referenced cbdgation o
||ru:cr.‘pnq SeCUntiEs compeising the rederenced index IF 3 Fund i a bruryer af
pratection and a credit event ooqurs, 2 deflined under the tenms of that
partiodiar swap agreement, a Fand wall either (1} recesve from the saller of
protecion an amount equal to the national amouns of the swap and dilner
the referenced cbhgation, other defverable cbligations o urderlying
sacurities compreng the referenced index or (i) recesve a net setthement
ameunl in the farm ol cah or securities equal 3o the netsonal amount of the
sl heas thee recovery vialue af the relerenced obligation or underhang
sacurities compresing the referenced indiex. Recovery valses are estimated by
markes makers considering eitter industry standard recoveny rates or entity
speafic factors and considerations untd a credit event oocurs If @ credil event
has acomred, the recovery value is determined by a laciltated suchon
wherelry a minimum number of dlowable broker bads, together with a
-.-L:l:'n;l.‘r-dv.llu.l'.-:u method, &0 wied o calculate the seitbement value The
ability to delver sther abiligations may eesult i 2 cheapen-1o-delver aptica
[the buyer of protection’s right to choose the deliverable obligation with the
lewwest vialue following a credt event)

Credin default swap agreements on credit indoes wrecive one party making a
stream of payments to another party in exchange for the right to receive a
spedfied rebum in the event of a write-down, primcipal shostfall, interest
shortlall o delault of 2l of pan of the referenced entities compriung the
credit indax. A cradit index is a basket of credit instrumennts of exposutes
designed 10 be representatee of some part of the credat market as a whale
Thesse ndices are made up ol refenence credits that ane judiped bry & po af
dealers 1o be the mest liguid entities in the oedit default swep market Basad
on the secior of the index. Components of the indices may indude, but e
nof limited B, mvesimen geade securities, hegh 5'.1'."||1 i, fisel-hacked
sacurities, emerging markets, andioe vanous cedit ratings within each sectos
Credit indices are traded using credd default swaps with standardized terms
inclading a fimed spreaed and andacd masunty dates. An index crisdit delault
sweap rederences all the mames in the shdex, snd if there i a default, 1he aedit
event is settled based on that name’s weight in the index. The composition of
the mdices changes penodically, usually every six months, and for met
indices, each name has an equal weight in the index & Fund may use credit

default swaps on credin indices 1o hedge 2 pontfolic of aredit default swaps or
bands, whech 14 less expensive than & would b 10 buy macy credit default
waps b achieve a similar eflect Credit default swaps on mdices are
instruments for protecting investors cwring bonds against default, and
Tradeds use them 1o speculabe on changes in credit guality

Imphied credht spseads, represered in absolute terms, wiilzed in determereng
the market value of oredit default swap agreements on (omorate, loan,
sovgresgn, LS municps o U 5 Treasuny iS5 a5 [:I'pt\'lm'.cr\d_ i ary, ahe
desclosed im the Motes 1 Schedule of Imvesteents. They sere as an mdicatol
of the ourrent status of payment/performance risk and repsesent the fkelhood
arrisk of delaulr for the relerenced entity. Fhe mpled credit spread of a
paiticular referenoed entty rellects the cost of buyingseling protecion and
may indude upfront paymens required 1o be made to enter it the
agreement Wider credit spreads represent a deterioration of the relerenced
eritity's ceedit soundreds and a greater ibelihood or nik of defauly or ot
cred event pocuring as defined under the terms of the agreement. For credit
delault swap agresments on asset-backed securities and credit indices, the
quobed maket proes and tisulting vidlues seoee o the indicator of the current
starus of the paymentiperdormance rek Increasing market values, in absolute
1emns when compared 1o the notional amownt of the swap, represent a
deteniceation of the relerenced entity’s oredit soundness and a geeater
Rkelihood o ik of defautt o cther credit event ocourting as defined under
the terms of the agresment

The manmum potertial amount of future payments (undiscounted) that

& Fund a5 & selfer of protection could be requined 1o make under a creda
delault swap agreement equals the notional amount of the agreement
Motional amounts of each inderidual credit delault sevap agreement
outstanding i of peiiod end Tos which a Fund is the seller of protection e
disclosed in the Motes 1o Schedule of Imvestments. These patential amounts.
would be partially oifset by any recovery values of the respectave refesenced
obligations, upfiont paynents fecened upon entenng into the agreesent, o
e ammounts Tecerved Trom the settlement of buy protection cedit defauht
Swap agreements enteved inkg by a Fund for the same relerenced entity o
e

Intarest Rate Swap Agroaments Cesnan Funds ane subjec to intenest rate
risk exposure in the momal course of pursuing their imestment, objectves
The value of the fued rate bonds that a Fund holds may decease if interest
st fise To help hedge agendy this figk v 19 mainkaEn i ability 1
generate income af prevailing market rates, a Fund may enter indo intesest
rabe swap agreements. Interest rate swap agreements emobve the exchange
by a Fund with ancither party Sor their epspectoe commitrent 4 pay or
FEcEnE meiEs] on the notional amocnt of Fr.:k.'|||.1| Coradn foems af intesest
rabe swap agreemants may include: (i} interest rate caps, under which, in
retuan for a premium, gne party agrées o make payments ta the other o the
extent that intenest ranes excesd a speafred rate, or “cap”, (i) intenest rae
floors, undee which, in return Tor @ premium, one paity ageees o make
payments b the ather o the extent that interest rates Fall below 2 speafied
rate. ar “flooc®, {in] et cate collars, under whech 3 ety sl i cap and
purchases a foor or vice versa in an atiempt to protect dsell against intedest
rate movements axceedang given minimum of magmum levels, {iv] callable
inenesd rate swaps, under which the buyer pays an upfrant fee m
consideration Tor the right 1o early terminate the swap transaction in whake,
at zern cost and at a predetesmined date and time prior 1o the matunsy date,
() spreadiacks, whech allow the iraeest rate SWD Lt 00 ook in the
forevaed differential (or spread) bepasen the interest :ave Swap rate and a
spedified benchmark, or () basis swaps, under which two parties can
exchange variable inenest rates baved on different segments of money
kel
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Tetal Aeturn Swap Agrewssseats. Cetain Funds may enter into total returm
Swg agreements o gain of mitigate exposut to the underbying reference
Total retan fanp dyneements imahe oommitments whine tinghe o smultphe
cash flows are enchanged based on the price of an underfing reference asset
and on a fed or variable terest rate. Tofal retuin swap agreements may
imecber cosmmilmienas ta pay milenest in exchanos for & market-linked return
One countesparty pays out the total reeen of a speofic underking relerence
asset, whith may inchade 3 single security, a basket of secunities, or an index,
and in eenatn eocenes 3 Tooed of vadiable rate A2 the mabstity date, & net cash
T i3 exchanged whese the wotal retuin is equivalent oo the retum of te
underkning reference asset bess a financeng rate, if any. As a receiver, a

Fund would recenve payments based an any positive tolal retum and would
v payenents i the event of @ negatie total retuen. As the payer, a

Fund veodd cwve paymenis on any positive 1otal retum, and would recenve
payments in the event of 3 net negative total retum

7. PRINCIPAL AND OTHER RISKS

|a] Primeigad Riake In the normal couese of business, the Funds (o Acguered
Fund(s], if applicable} erade financial instruments and enter into financial
pansacions where ik of potenis loes it due 1o such th figh a6 chandges
in the market {market rek) or failure or inability of the other party to a
transaction o perform (credit and countenparty risk). See below for a detailed
deseription of select principal raks

Fund of Fands To the éxténg that cectien Funds imses! wiatantially al of thair
respectve assets i Acquired Fund{s), the risks assocated wath investing in
these Funds will be dosely eelated to the risks assooated with the securities
and other imeegtments hidd by the Acquined Fundish The ability al the Funds
to achieve their respectnee investment objectives may depend upon the ability
of the Acquired Fund{s) 1o achieve ther respective imestment objectives
Thesres can b o Ssurance that the imsistment obpsctie of army dusquined
Fund(s] wall be achieved The NAY of an Acgaring Fund will Ruciuse in
respanie to changes in the respective NAY of the Acgured Fund(s) in which it
ImisTs

In ghee normal coume of b, Argued Fundls] trade fnanaal ingsnamens
and enter inta finandial transactions where nisk of potential loss exists due to
thanges in the market {market isk), or failure or inabafity of the other party 1o
2 trarvaction 10 peefoem (credi and courterparty nisk)

Parformance Linked Notes Risk To the extent sach of the B-1 1605 [IPY), B
1605 (USD), B-1 1609 (IPY], B-1 1609 (USD), B-) 1642 (IPY) and B-) 1612
{USD) Classes of the AIMCO Berrmwda Income Fund E imest in Pedfomance-
Linckef Bl e, Thaiy wall f-;ul:"-iD gt imastment oppaitunities, which fould
neqatrely impact the performance of such Class. In addition, such
Perlprmance-Linked Nates are unsecwed cblgations of Credd Suisse
Insernasanal and 1o the Cladies ae expased to the credd nak of Credht Suisse
Inpernatsanal Fuherrmate, the Performance-Linked Notes will be adversely
affected in the event of a default, reduced credit rating, or deterioration in the
sty Ol Criddl Surise Infematianal

Maskoet Risdy & Fund's svestments m hinancial detmvatree instruments and

other Enandial instruments expase the Fund to vasious risks such as, but ot
limitad %0, interest rate. foreign [non-U S } curvency, equity and commexdity

ik

Interest rabe nsk is the nsk that Toced ncome secuntses and other mstruments
held by a Fund may dedine invalue because of an ingrease ininterest rates. If
nominal infenest rates rive, the value of comain fooed income secunties hakd by
3 Fund weidkd fb.rh' deciede A nomingl InDeEt A0 i be Selonbed 25 1he
sum of a real interest rate and an expected inflation rate Interest rate
changes can be sudden and unpeedictable. and a Fund may lose money o

these changes ace na! antopated by Fund management. & Furd may not be
e 1o hedge dganst changes @ nlenest rabes Of may chioode not o do o e
o4t of other reasons. Im additicon, any hedges may not watk as inended

Dwration is 3 measure used to determine the sersithity of 4 seourity’s price to
changes i intenest rates that mconponaties 3 secunty s yield, coupon, fnal
maturity and call features, among other charactenstics. Comexily 5 an
additicnal measure wed 1o understand a secunty’s of Fund's interest rate
senisnaty that measunes the rate ol :ha'nql'ul'dmn:nu 10 rEEpondE 10
chaniges i interest rates. Fioed moome secunties wah longer durations terd
1o b more sersitive 1o changes in inferest rates, wually making them moee
velatde than securites with sharer durations. A wide vatiety of factors can
cause inbetedt rases of yiekds of U S, Tressury securties [or yelds of other
typess of bonds) to rise 8 g, central bank monetary polices, inflation rates,
general economic condibions, ete ) Thes is espacially tree under curent
conditions because interest rates and bord pelds are near histoncally low
fevels Thus, the Funds currently face a heightensd bevel of risk associated
with resing interest rates andicr bord yiekds. This could be driven by a vanety
of factors, *'-clmluu] bt mat himited 10 cintral bank maneany policies,
chandging anflaten of teal growah rates, general ecanomic condithars,
increasing bond issuances or reduced market demand for ow weiding
irrvestments. Furthes, wiile U5 bond markets have steadily grown oves the
parst three decades, dealer "market making™ abibty has remaimed relatively
stagnant. Given the importance of intermediary " market makang ™ in creating
a robarst and active market, foed income seombes: are currently

{acing shereaded volatding and baudny ssks All of thede lactars, collectraly
andfor individually, oould cause a Fund to bosevaloe I the Fund lost enough
value, the Fund oould fade inceased Unitholder redemplicns, which could
{urther ifmpair i85 |:r.:1‘.¢r'11.l."||;|:' Alig, the Fund may be sdvertily afected
when a lange Unitholder purchases or redees lange amounts of units, which
can oocur at any tme and may impact the Fund in the same marmer as a high
wolume of redemplion nequeats. Laige Unithalder transschions may impact
the Fund's biquidity and ret asset value. Such transactions may also moreae
the Fund's transaction casts or otherwise cause the Fund to perform

d 1||:'n:n'.h".hun infindisd. Moriover, thé Fund o subpsct to the figk Ehat

ather Unithalders may mate imvestment deceans based on the cholces af 3
Laege Linitholder

A Fund may have signhcant miporure to issuens in the United Kingdam. The
United Kingdom s withdimval fram thee Eurapean Linion iy rmpact Fund
retns. This decision may cause substantial velathity in foreign exchange
markets, lead to weakmess in the exchange rate of the British pound, resuit in
& sustaned pencd of market uncerfanty, and destabilize some or 4 of the
ather Eurapean Union member countries and'or the Eurczone

Foreign (pon-U0.5 ) secunties i thes ieport aee dassfied by the country of
TROparation ofa holding In cectan Evgiandes, & Wounty’ s Sountny af
imcorparation may be difierent from its countny of economic exposure

B a Fund irmvests directly im fonesgn {noneL 5 | ooerenecies or in securities that
trade in, and eecene pevenued in, foresgn (ron-U1 S ) currencies, of in Bnancial
detheative instraments thal prowide expasure 1o fonengn {Roa-U 5§ 1 cemeedies,
it will e subject to the risk that those currencies wall decline in valse relatve
10 the e cureency of the Fund, ar, in the case cf‘u’ﬂg:ﬂu portations, that
the Fund's base cumency will dedine invalue relatie to the qurrency being
hedged. Currency rates in Soreign countnes may Hucheate signibcantly over
shart periods of time for 2 number of reasons, including changes i interes!
rabes, intervention (o1 the fallure 1o imervene) by U5 o faregn govennenents,
central banks or supranational entities such as the Internatonal Monetary
Furd, o by the impagiion of cumendy controls of ciher political developments
i1 ke Uenitind States of sbroad. Ad  redly, 3 Fund's imvestments in Sareign
curtency-denaminated securfties may teduge the Fund's returms
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The market values of equsties, such 25 common stocks and prefiered securites
of Bquity related smestmints such i lures and optiong, hind Bestorically
resen and Fallen i periodic opcles and may decline due to general marker
conditions which are not specifically related to a particular compary, such as
redl oo peroened adverse ecanemic condting, changes n the general
outlook for comperate earnings, changes in interest o outrency fates, public
health emergendes, such as the spread of infectious iness or disease, or
o imoesice sentienent genetally Thiy may aso deching due 1o factors
which affect a particula indusiny o industnies, such as labor shortages or
increased production costs and competitve conditions within an sndustry
Different types of equity secunities may react differently to these

dissel opamnitl. Equity Securitied ans equity telasd imestmints ety ks
greater market price volatility than fiwed income sequnties

The Funds may imeest in gedain instruments that rely in some fashion upon
LB0R LBOR 15 an fverage slenest rate, detemined by the ICE Benchmark
MAdministration, that banks change one anather for the use of shodt-term
meney The United Eingdom's Financial Conduct Authonty, which reguiates
LIEGR, hag announced plans 1o utimately phase out the use of LIBOR Thee
remaien uncertainty reqandeng future utilzaten of LIBOR and the nature of
amy replacement rate (e g, the Secured Overmight Finanding Rate, which is
intersded 1o replace U 5. dollar LIBOR ard measures the cost of overnight
borrowings theoisgh repusthiase agreament transactions collateralined with
LS. Treasury securities) Any potential effects of the transition away from
LIBOR on a Fund or on oertan estruments in which a Fund imsests can be
difficult 16 asceian, and they may vary depending on & vasiety of factors The
transiton may aloa result in a reduction in the vafue af oevtan irstruments
hald by a Fund o a reduction in the effectiversss of related Fund tramsactions
sich i hediget .ﬂurr,'-_.ml'. il of the trasdimon oy Tran LIBOR, & well
as other unforeseen effects, could result on Josses to a Fund

Begreirg in lanuary 2020, global finencad markets have expenienced and
may contmue 1o expersence sgnificant volanlity resulting feom the yeead of a
nowvel coronavieus known a3 COVID-19. The outherak of COVID-19 has
resutied in travel and border restrictions, quarantines, supply chain
disruptnoes, kovweer consumid demand and gineral marked uncertenty. The
global ecanamy, the economies of cenain nations and indnadual Bsuers hae
been and may continue 1o be adversely affected by COVID-19, particularly in
light of the interoemectivity between ecoromies and financial markets, all of
which may negatively impact the Funds” peformance. In addiion, COVID-19
and grvemnmental responses to COVID- 19 may negatively impact the
rapabalitiess of the Funds' senvce providers and desnmt the Funds’ cperations

Cawdit and Countorparty Risks A Fund will e saposed o credif sk 1o
parties vath whir i irsdes and will aleo bear the ik of semlement defauh

A Fund mandmizes concentrations of credit nsk by undertaking fransadions
with a Lege number of oustomens and counteipasties on recognized and
reputable enchanges, where applicable, OTC dernathe transactions ane
subject to the risk that a counteparty to the transaction will ot fulfill its
contractual obligatioes to the other party, 2= many of the pratections aflorded
o centrally cheared demvatve fransactions maghl pal be aanlasle foe OTC
derivatve fransacthions. For demvatives traded on an ewchange or theough a
ceniral counterparty, credd sk resides with 1he areditworthiness of

thar Furnsd's chearing braket, or the |:|r:.1||n]hm|w|::,l:-{_ rathed than wath a
coanterparty inan OTC dervatree transaction. Changes in regulation relsting
ter 2 Fund's use of dervatives and related instruments could petentially limit
of impact the Fund's ability 1o ameesit an dermeatress, imit the Fund's atubty 1o
employ cenam strabeges that e derncatives and'on adversely afiect the value
or periamance of dervatives and the Fund A Fund could kese money if the
issuer of quaranter of a fived scome secufizy, of the counterparty to a
findrcial dervatne indtruments contract, repurchase aEpeemint of & ban of
portiolio senurities, is unable or umwiling to mabe timely principal andfor

infterest payments, of 1o otheratse honer its oblgations. Secunties and
financryl derivatem inSLuments are subject 10 wanying degries o credit ek,
which may be reflecied in cradit ratings

Similar to credit sk, a Fund may be exposed to counterparty sk, or the risk
1hat an ingtitation o other entity wath which a Fund has unsetthed oF Gpen
transactons will defaule FIMCO, as the Manager, minimizes countesparty
risks to the Funds through 3 reenber of wiays. Prior to enbering info
Trafsactions with & niw counlepaity, the FIMDD Counderparty sk
Commitiee conducts an extensive credit review of such counterpay and muss
approve the use of such counterparty. Furthermore, pursuant 1o the terms of
thar unededtying condfadt, to the extent that unpad amounts owed 1o a Fund
exceed o predetermined thiethold, such counepary shall sdvance collaers
1z a Fund in the form of cash or secunties equal in vafue 1o the unpasd
amouni owed to a Fund. A Fund may invest such collateral in secufities of
ather imstuments and wil fypically pay intesest 1o the countesparty on the
collateral recened If the unpaid amount ewed ta a Fund subsaquenthy
decreases, 3 Fund would be tequired to retum 1o the counterparty all or a
pamtion of the collaeral plh'mal','mju'mltrd PINECLD'S aTtempls Lo minimide
courteiparty sk may, howevet, be unsucoesshul

Caontingent comvertible secusities [ Colos™ ) are a form of hybrid debt security
erund primaiily by ner-ll S, msuers, which have loss abrsorption mechanisms
Biuitt into theie terms. Colios have no stated maturity, have fully dsoebonary
coupons and ate typically ssued in the form of subcedinated debt
truments. Colos ginerally sither ormen inlg equity of the s or have
thetr princpdl weitten down upan the ocourrence of cerain (gRening events
{"miggers”) kelked 1o requlatory capital thresholds or regulaiogy actions
relating to the isser’s continged viability. As a result, an imvestment by a
Fund in CoCos if subject 1o the ik that coupon (e, interest) PanyTrborls. My
ke cancelled by the issuer or a regulatory autharity in order fo help the issuer
akrsorb losses. An imvestment by @ Fund in CoCos i5 2850 subject bo the nsk
that in the event of the liquidason, desoluion of winding-up of an msuer
peior to @ trigger event, a Fund's rights and claims wall genesally rank junioe
1o the dlaims of bolders of the issuer's other debt obligations. In addition, if
CoCod hid by a Fund ane conesited into ke i’ -Jfll:ll,'lh'.'q Uity
secunties fellowing a treager evenit, the Fund's holding may be furthe:
subordinated due to the comversion from 3 debt to equity instrument In
ceitain soenaios, investors in CoCos may suffer a loss of capital ahead of
equity halders or when eguity holdess do not Thene = no guaranfes that a
Fund wil receree a return of prncipal on CoCos Any indication that an
automalic write-diwm of comversion event may ooour can be expected {0 have
an adverse effect an the market price of CoCos. Colos ane often rated below
enestment grade and are subject to the nisks of high yeld securities. Because
Colos are moued prenaily by financial institutions, CoCos may presen
substantally increaded ruks at tmed ol frnarcal tuemail, which could alfect
finanoal institutions morne than companies in other sectors and industnes
Further, the valse of an investment in CoCos i unpredictabde and wall be
influenced by many factors and risks, inchding interest rate risk, credit risk,
mnarket risk and bpusdery risk. An imvestment by @ Fund in CoCos may resultin
Tersses bo the Fund

AR rrasactions in hsted securities are settbedipaid for upon delivery uung
approved counterparties. The sk of default is considered minimal, as delvery
ol sequrites sold is oofy made coce 8 Fund has recerved payment. Payment is
made on a purchase once the secunities have been defreerad by the
courdespasty. The trade will Tail if either party Tails 1o meet its chligaton

&) Othar Risks In genesal, each Fund may be subjec o addivonal nisks,
mcluding, but not fimited o, nisks related to govermment regulation and
imlenvienhicn in financal markets, operational risks, ks asscciated wath
financial, economic and global market desuptions, and oyberecuting miks

il it | Oessba 3. 2071 i
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Please reder so each Fund's offenng decuments for 2 more detailed
description af the msks of irvestng n the Fund

Madknt Disruptions Risk The Funds e subect no imeestment and
operational risks associated with financial, economic and other global market
dewelopments and disrupbions, induding thase ansing from war, terronism,
marke maripulation, government imerventoed, defaolis and shutdawns,
politcal changes o dpfamatic developments, pubibe health emegendes
{such as the spoead of infectious deeases, pandemics and epidemics) and
naturalferraronmental dsasters, which can all |:r:|].1l."v|.".‘r imypect the secusilins
markess, miededs fa%es, aucnons, secondary trading, ratings, credi msk,
inflation, deflation and ather factors relating to the Fund's imvestments oo the
Manage:'s operations and case a Fund to kose vaiue. These events may have
advesse long-tem efiects on the U S, and world economéss and markets
generally. These events can also impair the technology and ather cparational
systems upon which a Fund's senice providers, inchuding PIMKCO as the
Funds’ imestment advisar, fely, and could othemwise disnupt & Fund's seaice
providers’ ability to fulfill thesr ohligatans to the relevant Fund. For example,
the spread of an infectious retpiratony Bness caused by 3 novel strain ol
e (ongvan d COVID-19) ks Caimad wolatdity, sbveit macked
dislocations and Hquidity corstraints in many markets and may adversely
affect a Fund's imvestmenits. and operations.

Goverament Interveation in Finaneial Markets. Fedenal, state, and other

g nimerts, Ther eequlatody agencuss, oF wlf-mq;'.a:m-,-:r:].mum:m ay
take actions that affect the regulation of the Estruments in which a Fund
imvests, o the issuers of such nstruments, in ways that are unfoceseeabde
Legiskation oe nequlation may alse change the way in which a Fund itsetl is
regulated. Such legilation o regulation could limit or prediude a Fund's
ability to achieve its iwestment objectve Furthermese, volatile finandial
markets can egpose a Fund 1o greater macket and hiquadity nik and patential
difficulty in valung portfiola mstruments held by the Fund The value of 2
Fund’s holdings is abo generaly subject to the risk of fubwe local, naticeal, or
global econamic desturbances based pn unknown weaknesses in the mackets
i whnch & Fund imvess Bn addiidn, il ob ol ceman that the U 5 Govednment
wall irrlervene in response bo a futuse market disturbance and the effect of any
such future ntervention cannat be predicted. It is difficult for sssuers o
prepate for the impact of fusure financial downturns, although compasees can
spek 1o dentify and manage Tusure uncertainties through risk manapement
programs

Regelatery Rlsk Financal entities, such as imvestment companies and
imngsdment adveiers, oo gencrally subject 10 extendive govemmient regqulation
and infervention Govemment regulation andicr intervention may changs the
wiy 3 Fund is requilated, aflect the expenses inoumed dinectly by a Fund and
the value of it meesiments, and limit andfor preclude a Fund's abilty 1o
achieve il mvestiment obpecine. Govemment requiation may charge
frequently and may have signiicant adverse consequences Momover,
goveinment regulation miy have unpredictable and unintended effects

Dparational Risk An imeetment in & Fund, hle any fund, can rrole
operational rsks ansing from factors such as processing enroes, human erors
inadequate of Tailed internal or external processes, failures in systems and
technology, chinget in perbonnel and engis cauted by thed-pary senice
proders. The eccurrence of any of these Faluces, errors or bresches could
resut in a loss of mformation, requiatony scruting, reputational damage o
othes events, any of which could have a material adverse effect on a Fund
Whitlie & Fund feeks to mifembe such ewhls theough contiok and vk,
there may shill be faifures that coubd cause ksses to the Fund

Cybae Sacarity Risk As the use of technology has become maore prevalent in
the coursie of Businisss, the Funds have become potentially more sustepible
Lo operationsl and imloematicn security tisks resulting from bresches in cyfber

secunty. & breach in oyber secunity relers 1o bath intenticnal and
unifilgndional oyber evens that may, among ather thangs, caube a Fund to
lerse propristary inforeation, sufler data coemuption andier destnuction of ke
operational capacity, result in the unauthorized release or ther misuse of
confidential informatsan, or othenwse disrugt namal Business opeasans
Cyber secunity Balures or breaches may result in fimancial kosses to a Fund and
its Urithclders. These failures or breaches may afso result in disruptions to
brusiness opbratanns, potentiathy resultang in hnancial losses; mieference with
& Fund's ability to calouiste s net et vilue, process Unstholder
transactions of othenwise ransact business with Unithalders; impedements 1o
trading: vialations of applcabile privacy and other laws; regulatory fines;
pirialtie; reputational damage; reimbussement of ather compintaten oodls
additonal compliance and oybser security risk management costs and other
adverse consequentes. In addibon, substantial costs may be inourned in onder
1 prevent amy cybet incaients in the fulure

8. MASTER NETTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Funds may be subject to vanious neting arangements [ Maste
Agreements™) with select counterpartes. Master Agreements govem the
terms of certan transactions, and are ntended 1o reduce the counterparty risk
asocated with releant transactions by :.p-c'~:.-!',1r|r, credil protechan
mechanisms and peovedang standardization that is intended to imgrowe legal
ceitainty. Each type of Master Agreemsent govems certain types of
transactions. Diflerent types of transactions may be traded out of di¥lerent
fegal ertities or affifases of & pamicular onganization, resulting in the need for
multiple agreements with a single counterparty. As the Master Agreements
e speade ta unique cperations of different st types, they alow aFund 1o
chose o and net it total expasune 1o & countepanty in the event of & delault
with respect 1o 3l the transactions governed under a anabe Masber
Agreement with 3 countesparty. For mandial reporting purposes the
Saatermerits of Assets and Lighdnes qenerEly present demvatoe asets and
habulities on @ gross basis, which reflects the full nsks and expasurnes priot to
netting

Magter Agreemints can 40 help ke countesparty nisk by ecafong
collateral postng arangements at pre-arcanged exposure levels. Under morst
Master Agreements, collaberal is routinety fransferred if the total ret expasure
16 certan tramactions (nel of exsting collateral already in phate) govened
under the relevant Madter Agreement with 3 counberparty in 8 qhen socount
exmeeds a gpecified threshold, which typscally ranges Trom zero to 5250,000
depending on the countemarty and the type of Master Agreement United
Snabes Teeasury Bils and U5, doflar cash ane gemerally the prefiesned foome of
collateral, althcugh other securities may be used depending on the terms
outlined in 1he apphicable Master Agreement Secuntes and cath pledged as
collateral are reflected & msets on the Stanements of Agsets and Liabilies &
either a companent of Imestments at value (securiies) of Deposits with
coundexparty. Cash collateral received is not typscally held in a segregated
aceeant a0 a5 such 1z reflected a5 a labilty on the Statements of Assets and
Liahilities as Deposits from coynteparty. The market value of any seoatites
received as collateral is nod reflected 3s a component of MAY. The Fund's
oeerdl eposure to counterparty risk can change substantially within a shonl
peviod, & it is alffecied by each rarsacnon subject to the pebevant Master
Agresment

Magter Repurchase Agreements and Globa Mastes Repurchase Agreements
{indnaciualy and collectrvely °Murster Repo Agreements” ) govern repurchise,
reverse repurchase, and sale-buyback ransactions between the Funds and
sedect counberparties. Master Repo Agreements maintain provisioers foe,
among other thirgs, iniation, income payenents, events of delauly, and
maintenance of collateral The market value of ransactions under the Master
Repo Agreement, collateral pledged or received, and the net exposure by

il et | Dessba 3. 2071
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B. FEES AND EXPENSES

1 is. sushgec folloraang annual rates {stated as a percerdage of the average daflly net assets of each Fund, o Class, if
2, taken sep
Fors

Fund Manapssant Advisary _Administrative Apeacy Destribution
MMCO BEsrmuda Emerging Markats Boad Fund |1

= st PN 0N Rl

= lagl JJFY, Hedged) - 035% 0% -
PIMCO Bermuda Globsl Aggregets Ex-Japsn Bond Fund (M) - 0% 02% - -
MMCO Brrmveda Income Fend &

= FUPYi -

« FUSD) - - - - -

= JLPT

= JjuS0) - - - - .

- K B0

w W UPY Advinary | [ TE% - 01

& W USDh Advianyd 0T5% - BI5% DES%

= WUPM

= WEn) - — - - -

= NS0 -

L | DEE% UB5%

= QUFT - - - - -

= RUPT

= 5 UM - — - -

s T e 0 70%

w U R 0L70%

= WUED) - ili=p ] 020 % - -

= AUPN 0ED%

= ¥ uEm - - - -

- YR

= ¥ B0 - - - - -

. TUPY) - - - -
PIMCO Eermada Merigage Dpportenitios Fund

= lnst LPY Hedged) a5y - - -

. JiPY

= JRSD - = = = ~

= Us0 - -
PIMCO Bermuda U.5. High Yeeld Fand I i) B35% LH%
PIMCO Core Incemas Corporate Bend Fuad 2020-10

& US0 [&0% 010% OE5%
FIMCEO Short-Term Mortgage [scoma

= [UR [&5% r . 005% [0t

«  J1PY. Hedgadi

- JPY D458 40%

& WSO 05 - - 005% 050%
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Fund Manap 1 Adwitary Administrati Agrnty Diigeta ibeisti o
PIMCD World High kncema 0T0% 0010 055%

o
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Years Since of Each Class Puicentaps COSC
| macheding frst yew anneversaryh 300
2 nackediog sicead paic swivaiiany] T4
3 achediog Uhd yeit arsiverin) 1.60%
4 inciading foarth yar smniveesany 1.20%
B lmacheding Iifth yaar soni il 1553
Tharealter 0007

With tespect ta the calodatgn of the COSC. the walye of the redempsian amount will be the ther-gumment KAy of the units btsng repurchased. Furthermong, sy
applicable CD5Cs wall be deducted from the repurchase proceeds and wall be payable to the Fee Agent For the year ended Octabe 31, 2021, the B-1 1605 (IFY), B-I
1605 (USDY, B-) V609 (PY), B-) 1609 (LSO, B-1 1642 UPY). and B- 1612 (USD) Classes of the PR4CD Bermuda Income Fund E paid W117,397, 118 in ABSC and
¥14.519,404 in CO5C to the Fee Agent

The Funds tar Classes thereal, a5 applicable) may bear ather experses related to their operation that ate not covered by the management, advesary, admirestrat e,
agency or distribubion fees, induding bat not limited toc (i} taxes and govesnmental fees; (i) brokerage fees and commissions and other portlolio trarsattion expenses;
{in} costs of bomowing money, induding interest epense; (w) extraordnary expensies, including costs of Bigation and indemnification expenses; and (v} any experses
allocated of alfocable 10 & gpecifc Chass of units. PIMCO has pand the cegamzational expenses assoctated with the creation of the Trust, except far PRACO Sha-Term
Mangage Income. PIMCO has paid the onganzatonal expenses assadated with the meation of the Trust AIMCO has paid the arganizatonal expenses asocabed wath
PIMCO Core ntome Corporate Bond Fund 2000-10% initial set-up, except for the formation epenses associated with PIMCO Cone Income Corporate Bond Fund
2020-10° initial pubi offening of Uniss and related Secunties Registranon Statement Bings, which include costs of prsling the prospecius and the sakes materials
that are ralated 1o the FIMCO Coee Income Cotpoeate Bond Fund 2020-107s sale of Units n Japan Such fermabion expenses e reflected as Organizatian Casts in the
Statement of Opesations

The Trustes and the Manager have apponted Credit Suisse Intemational a5 the agent ot the PIMCD Bermusda income Fund E Tor purposes ol Sinancing placement foet
to be paid to certain detrbutoes. Under a fee agent appointment ageement entered ic amang the Trustee, the Manager, and Credit Sursse Inbernational {the °Fee
Agent Agpointment Agreement” ), Credit Suisse knternational has been appointed to: (1) elfect payment of certain distnbution fees to the lapanese dstnbutors in
acoondare with the Fee .ﬁ.-;qn'l Apegintrment Agteemint and the e of vanous II|"".ID1| fee legiers, and (u) make all cakoslancns and determenations required 10 be
made under the Fes Agent Appoiriment Agresment

FIMCE) andfor s affiliates will intially advance to the PIMCO Bermuda Ircome Fund E begal expenses inoumed in connection with executing the Fee Agent
Appointment Agreement and assocated legal agreements for the B-1 1605 (IPY} and B-1 1805 (USE) Classes of units of the FIMCD Bermada Income Fund E (the “Fee
Agent Legal Expenses™). AL the end ol these Clisses’ initall afferng perads, the Fund vall be requered toc () reimbuzse to PINCO andior igs aflikates the greates of (a)
W0 millian o {b) 0 20% of the aggregate amaonts rvested in swch Classes during their initial offering penicds (such @mount not 1o excead the Fee Agerd Legal
Expenses advanced), and (i) amortize such Fee Agent Legal Expenses to the relevant Class over the first fiscal year of #s opesations. All or a porticn of the remairing
Fee hgern Legal Expenses achvaniced may be expensed 1o Tuture B share dasses added 10 and offered by any senes of the Teust, FIMCO Bermuda Toust, AMCO
Bermuda Trust IV, PIMCO Cayman Trust andior PIMCOD Cayman SPC Limited withen one year fiom the end of the iretial offering periods of the B-F 1605 [IFY] and 8-1
160% (LIS0) Classes of units of the AMCD Bermada Income Fund E of sisdh other peviod of time that the kneestment Adviser determines in its discretion

In addetion, PRACD andior its alfdiates wall initially advance 1o the AIMCD Bermuda Ingome Fund E legal expenses inturned in conrection with emecuting the Fee Agent
Appoiniment Agreement and mtodated begal agreements fee the B-0 160 [1F7) and B-1 1605 (USDD Classes of units of the FIMCD Bermoda Income Fund E (20 2
part of the Fee Agent Legal Expenses) At the end of the B-1 1609 (IPY) and B-1 1609 (USD} Classes’ mitial offening penods, the FIMCO Bermizda Incoene Fund E wall
be requaed &o; (i) reimbarse te FIMCD and'or s athhiates the greater of; (a] ¥10 million oo (b) 0 20% of the aggregate amounts imvested in such Classes duning their
initial effering pevieds (such ameurt not to exceed the total of the Fee Agent Legal Expenses advanced and the unseimbursed portion of anry Fee Agent Legal Experdes
prevously advanced in connectson with the creation of any B share class of any senes of the Trust, PIMEO Bermuda Trust, PIMCO Bermuda Trust IV, PIMCO Cayman
Trust andfor PIMCO Cayman SPC Limited within oee year from the respectve ends of the initial ofering or such other period of time that the Investment Adviser
detecmings in 15 decenon), and (i) amomine such Fee .!uj:-r.'. I,ﬁ'_,,].! Expaenes 10 Ehe nedewant Cliss over The frsr Trcal Yo of it aperatians Al o a poetion of the
remasrery Fee Ageen Legal EBxpenses advanced may be expensed 1o fubwe B share dasses added 10 and offeted by any senes of the Trust, PIMEO Besmuda Truse
PIMCD Bermunta Trust IV, PIMICO Cayman Trust andior PBMCO Cayman SPC Limited within one year from the respectsve ends of the mitial offesing periods or such
other period of time that the frvestment Adviser detenmines in its distretion

FMCO andlor its affiliates will @l initially advance 1o the PINCO Bermuda income Fund E legal expenses incumed in connection with execsting the Fea Agent
Appointment Agreement and assodated legal agreements for the B-1 1612 (IPY) and B-1 1672 (U80) Classes of units of the FIMCO Bermuda Income Fund E (a0 a
part of the Fee Agent Legal Expenses) At the end of the B-1 1612 (IPY) and B-1 1612 (USD} Classes’ matial offering periods, the FIMCD Bermuda Income Fund E will
be resqueted 50: () reimbarse 1o FIMCO andlor ins sffikates the grester of: (2} ¥10 million ee (8] 0 20% of the agqregate amaunts imvested in such Classes during the
initial oflenng periods (sudh amount not 1o exceed the total of the Fee Agent Legal Bxpenses advanced and the urreimbursed portion of any Fee Agent Legal Expences
previously advarced in connection with the creation of any B share diass of any series of the Trust, PINCD Bermuda Trust, PIMCO Bermucs Trust IV, PIMCO Cayman
Tt ardfor PIMCO Cayman SRC Limited within oo yea from The pestpectse ends of the mitial [:.‘!l,':llu] of sch other poeiod of e 1hae the investment Aduiser
determines in it discreton], and (i) amartize such Fee Agent Legal Expenses 1o the relevant Class over the first iscal year of its operatons. All oe a portion of the
remarirg Fee Apent Legal Bxpenses advanoed may be expensed to fubwe B share dasses added to and ofered by any series of the Trust, PIMCO Besmuda Trust,
PN Bermusda Teust 1V, PIMACO Cayman Trust andlor PIMCD Cayman SPC Limited within one year from the respectave ends.of the initial alfering periods o wch
other period of time that the | mestment Adviser detemmanes in its discretion. For the year ended Ooober 31, 2037 these wene no more Fee Agent Legal Expenses
Iemaring
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da Encome Fund A {the
H High Incame pry on-go

A IPY Bvisony) and M [USD Advisoey) Clases), PIMICO Shart-Term .‘.’n"..].]:jr Incgme {the ELUE, 17Y, and USD Classes) and
a ol gheir ]

10, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The In
disclersed i

Astet Mana
5 of Assets

1 AG. Fees paid 10 the relas

il arey, ane

Salerns

Alliarg Asset Management AG, a related party of the Trust, swned 0.006% of the net assats of FIMCO Bermuda Dynamic Multi-Asset Strategy Fund, 0.0059% of the

net assets ol FIMOD Beimiada !\'-'\-::.].xp: Dpportunities Fund and 0 835% of the net assets of PIMCO Short-Tem Morigage bncomee as of Qctaber 31, 2021

Cetain Funds are permatted 1o purchase o self secunties Trom o to cenain related afffiated furds under speaiied condtions cutlined in peocedures adogried by the
Imvestmend Adviser. The perocedures have been desigred o ensure that any pusthase of sabe of secunites by a fund from or 1o another Tund that is o could be
cocvadiing a0 all y wirtize ol Kamang @ common advmer (o alluabed smiesiment adwi o eidied Oictobd
i1, 2021, the Fund(s) bedow engaged in purchs

4 ellected at the ¢

al maket paice. Duiing th

4 andl sales of sequrities among afilated funds [asounts in thousand:)

Fund

3

PN Bk Bk Lioan Fund | § 6z 358
PRMCD Bormuy Emprgeng Markets Bond Fund |M 5,540
orpryg bariots Sond Fund Il 1[N

Buavrriuct Global Agregaoe Ex-Sapas Bond Fund |MI

PEMRLL Bermca income Fond (6 L] ) k]
PN Barmuhy Loww Duraion incoese Fund Z
ML Bermuda Merigage Dpportun ]
PAMCE) B 11 S Hagh Yedd Fordd (M) 28 10
PANIC) Biormcada L 5. High Yiedd Fond B (4 T

MDD Cons income Cosporate Bond Furd A120-00
PIMCT Emanging Eand Incormes fusd (M

1. GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATIONS

Under the Trust's ceganizational documents, certain parties including the Trustee and PIMCO) ae indemnifed agaimst certain labdities that may arise cut of
performance of ther dutses 10 the Funds Addibionally, in the normal <ourse of business, heF oy o endemnification dasses
The Funds” manomism exposure under these amangements is unknoven as this veould invoive fun unds that have mot yel
oomured. However, the Funds have not had pries daims of losses pursuant 1o these contracts

12. UNITS OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST

The Trust may issue up to SO0, 000,000,000 units. The Funds may have a significant concentration of risk, as certaim Unithodders own more than ten percent of the net
assets of each respective Fund Such concentration of Unitholders' interests could have a material effect on the Funds in the event these Unitholders request to
withdkaw substantial amounts of ¢ apital at the same tme Subsonpions and redempions of units of the Funds aie denominated in the Funds” NAY ouren oy and
coerenied bo the Funds' funchonal umency a1 the spot rate on the transaction date. Urets of each Fund are issued witheut par value. The Trustee, wath the consent of
the Manager, may in the Tuture create and ofler an additional Fund o Clas o Classes of units

Changes in unitt af beredcaal wenesy veere a4 Jollows (unis and amounts i theusands®)

Yo Ended Your Endnd ——y Tour v
Detmber 31, 2021 Detsber 31, 2021 Dessber 1, 2001 Oeteber 31, 201

141 % 188N Al NIk Kk R Wik WA
ik Wik L Nk L ] n Hi4 Hid
Mik Hi 15 L 108 KA R Mik Wik
Hih WA 1 LiH] LI KA MIA Hi&
Hi Hi\ ] 1 0E7 KX KA Hik Hik
Hid i ] i ik i Wik WA
ik L L NIk 1 -] Hid Nk
Kik WA L] L 4 a7 NI KiA
Wik HiA iz a8 L LY HiK HIK
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Yoar Eried Yoo Endad Yo Ended Yoar Endad
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] Kik [T} Wik LT Wik Wik
M Wik TR T T WA HiA
N KA MR MK 18 | v 8 MiA WA
m Wik [ m 03 138 Wik HiA
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[T Hid Wik 5 148 ik [ WA NIk
¥ NN Wik ik L) ok H 10 ] Wik Wik
] Hik [ M NIk 145 7] Wik Wik
ik Hik [T} NIk 18 o Wik Wik
Hik Wil 13 aEN Wik m Wik Hik
17,55 951,760 [ NI Wik [ WA WA
Hik [ [T [T 1,09 5L T Wik
m Wik 251 (453 ik WA ) WA
M WA i (1547 Wik WA HiA HIA
NiA HA [ | Fe] A5 [ WA HIA HIA
Rk WA L] NIk 1] R Kk Wik
M Wik [T} Wik {341 0655 Hik m
Nid [ [T} ] Wik [ 8501 [
HiA A o (HET fid [T MK Hid
M A LAY Rk [ ] 4,147 WA HIA
Hih Wik [T [T} 53] 118,23 Wik Hik
Hih [T [T Wik im 8,003 Wik Wik
¥ |UED] Wik Wik [ [0 Wil oA WA WA
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Yiae Erded " Paried Ended Yo Ened Yo Erdied
Detober 31, 2571 Dstober 31, 2071 Dessber 31, 2001 Octsbar 31, 2071
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2022 10
e e
225,082 29,366,449
1,322 172,481
223,760 29,193,967
2,355,929
94.98 12,392
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150,000

150,000
1,250,000

2019 156,055,242
2020 606,851,577.58
2021 778,167,993.64
2022 807,608,901.74
2023 798,537,475.45
Managing Member
limited liability company
agreement
2023
L

Adam Gubner

Adam Shukovsky

(Alejandro Kersman)

Alessandro Gandolfi

Alfred T. Murata

Andrew Balls

Andrew R. Jessop

Anna Dragesic

Ayman Hindy
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Brett Condron

Caleb Pitters

Whitten, Candice Stack

(Cathleen M. Stahl)

Chris Dialynas

Craig A. Dawson

Daniel H. Hyman

Daniel J. Ilvascyn

David L. Braun

David Fisher

David C. Flattum

David Hammer

Dirk Manelski

Elizabeth Cantrill

(Emmanuel Roman)

Eric M. Sutherland

Erin Browne

(Eve Tournier)

Frank Witt

Geraldine Brigliadori-Walsh

Greg E. Sharenow

(Gregory W. Hall)

Harin de Silva

Jamie Weinstein

Jamil Baz

Jason Mandinach

Jason R. Steiner
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Jerome M. Schneider

John Devir)

J
(John J. Kirkowski)

John W. Murray

John J. Studzinski

Jonathan L. Horne

Joshua Anderson

Joshua Davis

Julie Meggers

Kimberley Korinke

Lorenzo Pagani

Mangala V. Ananthanarayanan

Marc P. Seidner

Marcellus Fisher

Mark R. Kiesel

Mathieu Clavel

Michael Chandra

(Michael A. Cudzil)

Mohit Mittal

Nadia Zakir

Nicolas Granger

Patrick Feigley

Peter G. Strelow

Philippe Bodereau

Pramol Dhawan

Qi Wang

(Rene Martel)

275/378



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
ooooodoooiooooooodod

(Richard Clarida)

(Richard Colasuonno

Richard R. LeBrun

Rick Chan

Robert English

Robert Mead

Robert 0. Young

(Robin C. Shanahan)

Russell Gannaway

Ryan P. Blute

Ryan Korinke

(Sachin Gupta)

Sharad Bansal

Sonali Pier

Stephen Chang

Stephen A. Rodosky

Stuart T. Graham

Sudi N. Mariappa

Sung Hee Suh

Thibault Stracke

Tiffany Wilding

Yacov Arnopolin
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1971
1940

60

PIMCO
PIMCO
BMA
BMA

2023 336
728,990,289,310

118 437,089,313,555

21 14,026,292,980

15 20,142,357,723
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70 174,266,625,547
9 8,048,065,719
30 18,342,792,643
36 18,614,823,651
15 22,677,551,066
4 812,290,767
5 2,336,004,508
13 12,634,171,152
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2020 12 31 2021 12 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2023 31
130.47

279/378



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 2020 12 31

2021 2020
2(c) 721,198,092 94,094,715 670,905,056 87,532,983
2(d),3 29,741,057 3,880,316 30,870,470 4,027,670
2(e) 993,957,179 129,681,593 798,701,996 104,206,649
2(e) 317,540,465 41,429,504 314,822,326 41,074,869
47,497,769 6,197,034 45,702,592 5,962,817
2(e) 21,577,432 2,815,208 23,912,871 3,119,912
2().,7(c) 32,250,845 4,207,768 19,755,282 2,577,472
6 33,463,658 4,366,003 17,306,918 2,258,034
54,848,716 7,156,112 64,128,683 8,366,869

2,252,075,213 293,828,253  1,986,106,194 259,127,275

2021 12 31
230,285,768 2020 12 31
213,677,355 2(0),4 111,294,054 14,520,535 121,111,682 15,801,441

2(1),9 173,842,283 22,681,203 195,322,419 25,483,716
2(j).7(c) 1,140,825,289 148,843,475 855,055,452 111,559,085

2(h) 30,865,176 4,026,980 30,865,176 4,026,980
2(9),5 32,984,825 4,303,530 35,265,467 4,601,085
2(b) 36,988,617 4,825,905 14,710,139 1,919,232

8 61,620,430 8,039,618 51,541,356 6,724,601

1,588,420,674 207,241,245  1,303,871,691 170,116,140

3,840,495,887 501,069,498  3,289,977,885 429,243,415
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2021 2020
444,187,520 57,953,146 398,802,753 52,031,795
7(c) 301,432,498 39,327,898 216,289,372 28,219,274
81,689,779 10,658,065 122,043,872 15,923,064
2(i).9 31,437,762 4,101,685 33,157,779 4,326,095
6 95,602,945 12,473,316 37,379,146 4,876,857
2(r),7(c) 32,250,845 4,207,768 19,755,282 2,577,472
10,676,405 1,392,951 4,928,294 642,995
997,277,754 130,114,829 832,356,498 108,597,552
2(r),7(c) 1,140,825,289 148,843,475 855,055,452 111,559,085
2(i),9 182,746,288 23,842,908 204,137,201 26,633,781
7(c) 138,931,408 18,126,381 152,799,181 19,935,709
4,046,469 527,943 4,306,979 561,932
1,466,549,454 191,340,707  1,216,298,813 158,690,506
2,463,827,208 321,455,536  2,048,655,311 267,288,058
850,000 (6,433,247) (839,346)  (103,214,782)  (13,466,433)
150,000 1,333,506,696 173,982,619  1,308,035,518 170,659,394
2021 12 31 74,205
2020 12 31 58,608 69,610,604 9,082,096 43,399,986 5,662,396
2021 12 31
102,231 2020 12 31 148,726 7(a) 32,693,374 4,265,505 37,843,422 4,937,431
2(0) (52,708,748)  (6,876,910)  (44,741,570)  (5,837,433)
1,376,668,679 179,613,963  1,241,322,574 161,955,356
3,840,495,887 501,069,498  3,289,977,885 429,243,415
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2021 2020 12 31

2021 2020
2(e) 4,520,575,834 589,799,529 4,012,403,139 523,498,238
2(e) 1,166,893,208 152,244,557 1,095,151,513 142,884,418
2(e) 1,272,072,660 165,967,320 1,155,727,878 150,787,816
2(e) 350,424,117 45,719,835 360,487,808 47,032,844
2(e) 32,477,418 4,237,329 46,057,465 6,009,117
7,342,443 ,237 957,968,569 6,669,827,803 870,212,433
7 2,695,488,619 351,680,400 2,283,500,614 297,928,325
666,590,135 86,970,015 777,771,809 101,475,888
2(s) 633,462,121 82,647,803 605,822,180 79,041,620
233,154,167 30,419,624 235,901,474 30,778,065
4,9 179,499,423 23,419,290 168,804,503 22,023,924
2(n) 105,285,247 13,736,566 108,835,693 14,199,793
47,627,284 6,213,932 43,316,136 5,651,456
48,672,649 6,350,321 44,512,301 5,807,520
4,609,779,645 601,437,950 4,268,464,710 556,906,591
2,732,663,592 356,530,619 2,401,363,093 313,305,843
126,921,569 16,559,457 52,168,123 6,806,375
2(i), 9 (5,545,277) (723,492) (6,676,919) (871,138)
2(b) (1,327,780) (173,235) (1,321,069) (172,360)
2,852,712,104 372,193,348 2,445,533,228 319,068,720
8 107,478,838 14,022,764 103,991,820 13,567,813
2,745,233,266 358,170,584 2,341,541,408 305,500,908
2(0) (7,967,178) (1,039,478) 13,877,124 1,810,548
2,737,266,088 357,131,107 2,355,418,532 307,311,456
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2021 2020 12 31

2019
12 31
850,000  (683,902,349) (89,228,739) 150,000 1,288,040,853 168,050,690 48,876 28,952,832 3,777,476
1,694,470,162 221,077,522 520,315,348 67,885,543 126,755,898 16,537,842
(1,133,305,426) (147,862,359) (500,320,683) (65,276,840) (116,146,639) (15,153,652)
12,785,179 1,668,082
PINMCO
6,737,652 879,061 3,837,895 500,730
2020
12 31
850,000  (103,214,782) (13,466,433) 150,000 1,308,035,518 170,659,394 58,608 43,399,986 5,662,396
1,942,092,906 253,384,861 614,678,821 80,197,146 188,461,539 24,588,577
(1,861,825,611) (242,912,387) (589,207,643) (76,873,921) (171,157,203) (22,330,880)
8,451,432 1,102,658
PINCO
8,062,808 1,051,955 8,906,282 1,162,003
2021
12 31
850,000 (6,433,247) (839,346) 150,000 1,333,506,696 173,982,619 74,205 69,610,604 9,082,096
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2019 12 31
PIMCO
2020 12 31
PIMCO
2021 12 31

2021 2020 12 31
153,400 32,591,945 4,252,271 (58,618,694)  (7,647,981) 607,064,587 79,203,717
2,341,541,408 305,500,908
(1,749,772,748)  (228,292,850)
12,785,179 1,668,082
15,827,024 2,064,952 15,827,024 2,064,952
(10,575,547)  (1,379,792)
13,877,124 1,810,548 13,877,124 1,810,548
148,726 37,843,422 4,937,431  (44,741,570)  (5.837,433)  1,241,322,574 161,955,356
2,745,233,266 358,170,584
(2,622,190,457)  (342,117,189)
8,451,432 1,102,658
11,819,042 1,542,030 11,819,042 1,542,030
(16,969,090)  (2,213,957)
(7,967,178)  (1,039,478) (7,967,178) (1,039,478)
102,231 32,693,374 4,265,505  (52,708,748)  (6,876,910)  1,376,668,679 179,613,963
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2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020
2,745,233,266 358,170,584 2,341,541,408 305,500,908
11,600,078 1,513,462 15,508,853 2,023,440
65,880,266 8,595,398 65,464,604 8,541,167
5,545,277 723,492 6,676,919 871,138
1,327,780 173,235 1,321,069 172,360
1,665 217 12,114 1,581
29,028 3,787 (44,308) (5,781)
4,206,963 548,882 14,256,907 1,860,099
15,036,589 1,961,824 15,010,423 1,958,410
(13,788,912) (1,799,039) (11,695,316) (1,525,888)
(108,645,764) (14,175,013) (146,673,050) (19,136,433)
(5,545,277) (723,492) (6,762,761) (882,337)
(194,961,547) (25,436,633) (130,819,174) (17,067,978)
(18,406, 245) (2,401,463) (25,708,793) (3.354,226)
180,065, 741 23,493,177 103,679,079 13,527,009
63,479,303 8,282,145 10,538,563 1,374,966
2,751,058, 211 358,930,565 2,252,306,537 293,858,434
(144,367) (18,836)
6,500,203 848,081
(17,229,114) (2,247,883) (7,078,726) (923,561)
(4,902,545) (639,635) (13,730,247) (1,791,385)
(23,500, 150) (3,066,065) (18,000) (2,348)
(45,776,176) (5,972,418) (14,326,770) (1,869,214)
337,000,000 43,968,390 416,000,000 54,275,520
(337,000, 000) (43,968,390) (644,000,000) (84,022,680)
(2,622,190,457) (342,117,189)  (1,749,772,748)  (228,292,850)
8,451,432 1,102,658 4,984,931 650,384
(33,282,796) (4,342,406) (30,720,464) (4,008,099)
(2,647,021,821) (345,356,937) _ (2,003,508,281) _ (261,397,725)
(7,967,178) (1,039,478) 13,877,124 1,810,548
50,293,036 6,561,732 248,348,610 32,402,043
670,905,056 87,532,983 422,556,446 55,130,940
721,198,092 94,094,715 670,905,056 87,532,983
2,547,664 332,394 1,300,045 169,617
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2021 2020 12 31
AAM LP
PIMCO
AAM LP 850,000 150,000
AAM LLC
AAM Holding 250,000
PIMCO
2021 12 31 74,205
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM Holding
PIMCO PIMCO Pl
LLC
Pl LLC PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
Pl LLC 1934
FINRA
2021 2020 12 31

0.00319 0.00206
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PIMCO

PGA

FINMA
PIMCO 2021
PEG
PIMCO
AREO0A
1ASB IFRS

IFRS
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2022 25
PIMCO
PIMCO
AAM LP
2021 2020 12 31 323.9 347.1
2021 2020 12 31 807 2.3
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FDIC
FDIC

PIMCO

PIMCO
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IFRS

PIMCO

2021 2020 12
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IAS 19

292/378



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

IFRS
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
2021 2020 12 31 29.7 30.9
2021 2020 12 31
NAV
2021 2020 12 31
2019 12 31 49,845,420 88,261,081 1,021,436 139,127,937
8,445,092 1,289,112 50,174 9,784,378
(12,114) (12,114)
(16,946,736) (10,841,783) (27,788,519)
2020 12 31 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
11,894,806 5,334,168 140 17,229,114
(1,665) (1,665)
(15,475,576) (11,569,501) (27,045,077)
2021 12 31 37,749,227 72,473,077 1,071,750 111,294,054

293/378



2021
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2021

PIMCO

2021
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PIMCO
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31

90
PIMCO
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2020 27.0 27.8
5,711,545 23,520,000 793,103 100,000 30,124,648
13,838,448 13,838,448
(5,879,698) (2,080,000) (637,931) (100,000) (8,697,629)
13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 35,265,467
4,902,545 4,902,545
(4,948,015) (2,080,000) (155,172) (7,183,187)
13,624,825 19,360,000 32,984,825
2020 7.2 8.7
AAM LP AAM LLC
2020 23.6
AAM LP AAM LLC
2021 2020 12
21.5 8.6
LIBOR 0.2
AAM LP PIMCO 2021 2020
AAM LP
PIMCO 2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2021 2020 102 373
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2021 12 31 10
2020 822.6
2021 2020 55.9
52.4
PIMCO
2021 2020
7.3 7.8
PEG
PEG PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
2021
PEG 400.4 2020 147.3
PEG 41.6 2020 55.1
PEG 2021 PEG 85.8
2020 41.3
2021 12 31 26.2 2020

13.5 PEG 74.1 2020 28.8 PEG

AAM LP 2023 11
600.0 LIBOR LIBOR 20

2021 12 31 0.264
LIBOR LIBOR

AAM LP PIMCO
2021 2020 12 31
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PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
AAM LP
PIMCO
PIMCO
250,000 2020
2021 2020 12 31 102,231 148,726
74,205 2021 12 31
2021 2020
2020
17,806
3.84
25.1

11.1
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0.6
2021
2020
2019 12 31 153,400 153,400 13,492
29,802 29,802 17,806
27,775 (27,775)
(27,775) (27,775) 11,567
(6,701) (6,701) 14,416
2020 12 31 148,726 148,726 14,674
41,017 (41,017)
(41,017) (41,017) 12,967
(5,478) (5,478) 15,218
2021 12 31 102,231 102,231 15,330
2021 12 31
2021 12 31 11,804 17,806
1.99
20,924 2021
17,806 2020 2021 41,017
2021 31 2021 28
15,597
2021 12 31 73,774 431
AAM LLC
2020 27,775 2020 30
9,732
2021 2020
11.6 15.5

2021 12 31 2025 12 31
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12.7
AAM LP
401
100
2021 2020 59.1
55.1
AAM LP
1974 201 301
401
2021 2020 12 31
12 874.8
12 31
2021 2020
81,038 29,332
3,988,116 3,432,731
115,094,758 121,394,722
119,163,912 124,856,785
(11,685,074) (20,864,965)
(11,685,074) (20,864,965)

107,478,838 103,991,820
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32.8 23.2
2021
54.8 44.8 2021
285 247

12 31

2021 2020

31,256,186 29,593,350
5,443,382 6,304,014
312,947 240,983
578,204 376,312
1,319,717 2,179,123

35,796,969
37,499,114
23,189,168
34,006,401
33,302,410
69,700,751

233,494,813

(19,310,763)

214,184,050
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22,087,757
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96,750,859

261,441,267
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2021 12 31 2021 12
31

P1 LLC

11

PIMCO

2020 CovID 19

covib 19
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2021 2020
3.3 731
12 31
2021 2020
2,408,685,532 582,606,016
567,143 222,021
13
2022 25
38,253 PIMCO
2022 31
16,727
2022 LIBOR

SOFR

2022
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets
Note 2021 2020
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2(c) $ 721,198,092 670,905,056
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 2(d), 3 29,741,057 30,870,470
Investment advisory and administrative fees receivable:
Pooled funds 2(e) 993,957,179 798,701,996
Private accounts 2(e) 317,540,465 314,822,326
Prepaid expenses 47,497,769 45,702,592
Distribution and servicing fees receivable 2(e) 21,577,432 23,912,871
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j), 7(c) 32,250,845 19,755,282
Receivables from affiliates 6 33,463,658 17,306,918
Other current assets 54,848,716 64,128,683
Total current assets 2,252,075,213 1,986,106,194
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $230,285,768
and $213,677,355 at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively 2(f), 4 111,294,054 121,111,682
Right-of-use assets 2(i), 9 173,842,283 195,322,419
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j), 7(c) 1,140,825,289 855,055,452
Goodwill 2(h) 30,865,176 30,865,176
Intangible assets 2(9), 5 32,984,825 35,265,467
Investments in associates 2(b) 36,988,617 14,710,139
Other noncurrent assets 8 61,620,430 51,541,356
Total noncurrent assets 1,588,420,674 1,303,871,691
Total assets $ 3,840,495,887 3,289,977,885
Liabilities and Capita
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 444,187,520 398,802,753
Accrued compensation 7(c) 301,432,498 216,289,372
Commissions payable 81,689,779 122,043,872
Lease liabilities 2(i), 9 31,437,762 33,157,779
Payables to affiliates 6 95,602,945 37,379,146
Deferred compensation 2(r), 7(c) 32,250,845 19,755,282
Other current liabilities 10,676,405 4,928,294
Total current liabilities 997,277,754 832,356,498
Noncurrent liabilities:
Deferred compensation 2(r), 7(c) 1,140,825,289 855,055,452
Lease liabilities 2(i), 9 182,746,288 204,137,201
Other accrued compensation 7(c) 138,931,408 152,799,181
Other noncurrent liabilities 4,046,469 4,306,979
Total noncurrent ligbilities 1,466,549,454 1,216,298,813
Total liabilities 2,463,827,208 2,048,655,311
Capitdl:
Class A members (issued and outstanding 850,000 units) (6,433,247) (103,214,782)
Class B members (issued and outstanding 150,000 units) 1,333,506,696 1,308,035,518
Class M members (74,205 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2021
and 58,608 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2020) 69,610,604 43,399,986
Class M unit option holders (102,231 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2021 and 148,726 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2020) 7(a) 32,693,374 37,843,422
Cumulative translation adjustment 2(0) (52,708,748) (44,741,570)
Tota capital 1,376,668,679 1,241,322,574
Total liabilities and capital $ 3840495887 3,280977,885

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
Y ears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Revenues: Note 2021 2020
Investment advisory fees:
Pooled funds 2(e) $ 4520575834 4,012,403,139
Private accounts 2(e) 1,166,893,208 1,095,151,513
Administrative fees - pooled funds 2(e) 1,272,072,660 1,155,727,878
Distribution and servicing fees 2(e) 350,424,117 360,487,808
Other 2(e) 32,477,418 46,057,465
Total revenues 7,342,443,237 6,669,827,803
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 7 2,695,488,619 2,283,500,614
Commissions 666,590,135 777,771,809
General and administrative 2(s) 633,462,121 605,822,180
Professional fees 233,154,167 235,901,474
Occupancy and equipment 4,9 179,499,423 168,804,503
Marketing and promotional 2(n) 105,285,247 108,835,693
Subadvisory and subadministrative services 47,627,284 43,316,136
Other 48,672,649 44,512,301
Total expenses 4,609,779,645 4,268,464,710
Operating income 2,732,663,592 2,401,363,093
Other income, net 126,921,569 52,168,123
Finance costs 2(i), 9 (5,545,277) (6,676,919)
Equity in loss of associates 2(b) (1,327,780) (1,321,069)
Net income before income taxes 2,852,712,104 2,445,533,228
Income tax expense 8 107,478,838 103,991,820
Net income 2,745,233,266 2,341,541,408

Other comprehensive (loss)/income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustment 2(0) (7,967,178) 13,877,124

Comprehensive income $ 2,737,266,088 2,355,418,532

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital
Y ears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Cumulative
Class M unit option
Class A members Class B members Class M members holders trandation Tota
Units Amounts Units Amounts Units Amounts Options Amounts adjustment capital

Balances at December
31, 2019 850,000 (683,902,349) 150,000 1,288,040,853 48,876 28,952,832 153,400 32,591,945 (58,618,694)$ 607,064,587
Net income 1,694,470,162 520,315,348 126,755,898 - - 2,341,541,408
Distributions (1,133,305,426) (500,320,683) (116,146,639) - - (1,749,772,748)
Contributions 12,785,179 - - - - 12,785,179
PIMCO Class M unit
equity plan:

Compensation

expense - - - 15,827,024 - 15,827,024

Reallocation of basis

on vested options 6,737,652 - 3,837,895 (10,575,547) - -
Other comprehensive
income - - - - 13,877,124 13,877,124
Balances at December
31, 2020 850,000 (103,214,782) 150,000  1,308,035,518 58,608 43,399,986 148,726 37,843,422 (44,741,570) 1,241,322,574
Net income 1,942,092,906 614,678,821 188,461,539 - - 2,745,233,266
Distributions (1,861,825,611) (589,207,643) (171,157,203) - - (2,622,190,457)
Contribution 8,451,432 - - - - 8,451,432
PIMCO Class M unit
equity plan:

Compensation

expense - - - 11,819,042 - 11,819,042

Reallocation of basis

on vested options 8,062,808 - 8,906,282 (16,969,090) - -
Other comprehensive
loss - - - - (7,967,178) (7,967,178)
Balances at December
31, 2021 850,000 $ (6,433,247) 150,000 ¢ 1,333,506,696 74,205¢ 69,610,604 102,231 ¢ 32,693,374 $ (52,708,748)$ 1,376,668,679

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Y ears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income 2,745,233,266 2,341,541,408
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity compensation 11,600,078 15,508,853
Depreciation and amortization 65,880,266 65,464,604
Finance costs 5,545,277 6,676,919
Equity inloss of associates 1,327,780 1,321,069
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 1,665 12,114
Unrealized and realized net loss/(gain) on investments carried at fair value
through profit and loss 29,028 (44,308)
Contingent consideration fair value adjustments 4,206,963 14,256,907
Proceeds from sale of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 15,036,589 15,010,423
Purchases of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (13,788,912) (11,695,316)
Income taxes paid (108,645,764) (146,673,050)
Interest paid (5,545,277) (6,762,761)
Change in operating assets, liabilities, and income tax expense:
Fees receivable (194,961,547) (130,819,174)
Receivables from affiliates, prepaid expenses, and other assets (18,406,245) (25,708,793)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses, commissions payable, accrued
compensation, and income tax expense 180,065,741 103,679,079
Other liabilities and payablesto affiliates 63,479,303 10,538,563
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,751,058,211 2,252,306,537
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for business acquisition, net of cash acquired (144,367) -
Cash acquired through acquisition - 6,500,203
Purchases of property and equipment (17,229,114) (7,078,726)
Purchases of intangible assets (4,902,545) (13,730,247)
Purchases of investments in associates (23,500,150) (18,000)
Net cash used in investing activities (45,776,176) (14,326,770)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings from affiliates 337,000,000 416,000,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings from affiliates (337,000,000) (644,000,000)
Distributions paid (2,622,190,457) (1,749,772,748)
Contributions received 8,451,432 4,984,931
Principal elements of lease payments (33,282,796) (30,720,464)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,647,021,821) (2,003,508,281)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (7,967,178) 13,877,124
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 50,293,036 248,348,610
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 670,905,056 422,556,446
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 721,198,092 670,905,056
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition, net $ 2,547,664 1,300,045

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(D) Organization and Business

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC (PIMCO or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company
and subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management of AmericaL P. (AAM LP), the Managing Member, is a registered
investment adviser, headquartered in Newport Beach, California. The Company manages a variety of
predominately fixed-income portfolios for a wide range of investors located throughout the world. Investors
include public and private pensions and retirement plans, educational institutions, foundations, endowments,
corporations, financial advisers, individuals, and others through the use of private accounts and pooled funds.

Capitalization

AAM LP owns al 850,000 Class A units of the Company. There are atotal of 150,000 Class B units, which are
owned by Allianz Asset Management of AmericaLLC (AAM LLC) and Allianz Asset Management U.S. Holding
Il LLC (AAM Holding II). The Company has authorized 250,000 nonvoting Class M units for issuance and
options on Class M units have been granted to certain employees of PIMCO. As of December 31, 2021, 74,205
Class M units have been issued and are outstanding. Class B units have priority over Class A and M units with
respect to income and distributions.

AAM LP, AAM LLC, and AAM Holding Il are indirectly wholly owned by Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a global
financial services provider predominantly in the insurance and asset management business.

Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

PIMCO, as the primary investment adviser, has several wholly owned subsidiaries including PIMCO Investments
LLC (PI LLC) aswell asinternational subsidiaries that are included in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:

Pl LLC is a registered broker/dealer with the Securities and Exchange Commission that is the primary
distributor and provides shareholder services to ingtitutional and retail mutual funds (PIMCO Mutua Funds)
and exchange-traded funds that are managed and advised by PIMCO (collectively, PIMCO Funds). Pl LLC
is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) that is subject to the Uniform Net
Capital requirements under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which requires maintenance of certain
minimum net capital levels.

StocksPLUS Management, Inc. (StocksPLUS) owns approximately 0.00319% interest and 0.00206% interest
in, and isthe general partner of, StocksPLUS L P. as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

PIMCO Europe Ltd (PIMCO Europe) is aregistered investment adviser in the United Kingdom.

PIMCO Japan Ltd (PIMCO Japan) is aregistered investment adviser in Japan.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

PIMCO Australia Pty Limited (PIMCO Australia) is aregistered investment adviser in Australia.
PIMCO Australia Management Limited is aregistered responsible entity in Australia.

PIMCO AsiaPte Ltd (PIMCO Asia) is aregistered investment adviser in Singapore.

PIMCO AsiaLimited (PIMCO Hong Kong) is aregistered investment adviser in Hong Kong.

PIMCO Globa Advisors (Resources) LLC (PIMCO Resources) provides certain global payroll services to
PIMCO and its subsidiaries.

PIMCO Canada Corp is aregistered investment adviser in Canada.
PIMCO Globa Holdings LLC isthe holding company for PIMCO Canada Corp.

PGA Global Services LLC is a holding company, with branches in the United Kingdom, Hong Kong, and
Ireland.

PIMCO Globa Advisors LLC is aholding company, with abranch in Argentina.

PIMCO (Schweiz) GmbH provides certain services to PIMCO Europe in Switzerland and is a registered
distributor with Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

PIMCO Latin America Administradora de Carteiras Ltda. is aregistered investment adviser in Brazil.
PIMCO Global Advisors (Ireland) Limited provides management services to certain international funds.
PIMCO Globa Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A. (PIMCO Luxembourg) administers and manages investment
funds under the laws of Luxembourg. On July 1, 2021, PIMCO purchased Allianz Investment Real Estate
Solutions S.a r.l, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of PIMCO Europe GmbH (PEG), which was
immediately merged into PIMCO Luxembourg as the surviving entity.

PIMCO Taiwan Limited is aregistered investment advisor in Taiwan.

PIMCO Investment Management (Shanghai) Limited is an investment advisor in China.

Gurtin Municipal Bond Management LLC is aregistered investment advisor in the U.S.

PIMCO Services LLC provides avariety of transaction-related and other services to certain PIMCO sponsored
private accounts.

Allianz Real Estate of America LLC (AREOA) is a captive real estate investment and asset manager.

Third-party assets managed in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Company and are not
presented in these consolidated financial statements.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(2 Significant Accounting Policies
(@) Basisof Preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which are in compliance with standards and interpretations approved by either the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the IFRS Interpretations Committee or their predecessors. The accounting
policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as well as a going-concern basis
using the historical cost convention modified for certain financial assets that have been measured at fair value.
After reviewing the Company’s current plans and forecasts, the Managing Member considers that the Company
has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future.

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Managing Member on April 25, 2022.
(b) Basisof Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of the other entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Management
must make judgments when it assesses these various elements and all related facts and circumstances to determine
whether control exists.

Investments are classified as associates when it is determined that PIMCO does not control these entities;
however, the Company has significant influence. The Company accounts for investments in associates under the
equity method of accounting. An investment in an associate is recorded at its initial cost and adjusted thereafter
for the post acquisition change in PIMCO'’s share of net assets of the investee. The equity income or loss
primarily represents the Company’s proportionate share of the unrealized and realized gains and losses from
changes in fair value of the investments held by these associates.

In evaluating its involvement with, and exposure to, interests in structured entities, as well as the requirement as
to whether or not any identified interest in a structured entity should be consolidated, the Company considers
factors including the nature of the Company’s investment (if any), the nature of the fees earned by the Company
from the structured entities, powers held by other entities associated with the structured entities, including the
power to direct or control operations, and the rights and restrictions of the investors in the structured entities.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting and similar rights are not the dominant factor
in deciding who controls the entity, for example, when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only, and

key activities are directed by contractual agreement. Structured entities often have restricted activities and a
narrow and well defined objective.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(c) Cashand Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all liquid financia instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents may include cash on deposit with financia institutions, nonaffiliated
money market accounts, and cash deposited into a cash pool, through AAM LP, administered by Allianz SE.
There was $323.9 million and $347.1 million invested in nonaffiliated money market accounts at December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively. Cash equivalents deposited in the cash pool with Allianz SE totaled $807 thousand
and $2.3 million at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Management considers investments in money
market accounts to be cash equivaents for purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows. These
investments are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. The Company maintains its remaining
cash and cash equivaents in various federally insured banking institutions. The account balances at each
institution generally exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation’s (FDIC) insurance coverage (or similar
federal foreign programs), and as a result, there is a concentration of credit risk related to amounts in excess of
FDIC insurance coverage.

(d) Investments Carried at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss represent financial assets in the held for trading business
model. Investments held for trading consist primarily of investments in PIMCO pooled funds with a short-to-
moderate term duration objective. Investments held for trading are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value
are recognized directly in other income, net in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
Transactions in these investments are recorded on a trade-date basis.

(6 Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue as it transfers services to customers at an amount that the Company expects to
be entitled to in exchange for those services.

Investment Advisory and Administrative Fees

Investment advisory and administrative fees are recognized as the services are performed. These fees are earned in
exchange for investment advisory services and, in many cases, providing or procuring administrative services for
the customer including audit, custodial, portfolio accounting, legal, transfer agency, and printing costs. The
performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day that are substantially the
same. Such fees are primarily based on percentages of the fair value of the assets under management and
recognized for services provided during the period, which are distinct from services provided in other periods. As
the investment advisory and administrative fees are primarily based on a percentage of assets under management,
the consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to the dependence on unpredictable
asset values. Revenue is recognized once the constraint is removed which is generally once these values can be
determined.

Private accounts and pooled funds may also generate a fee based on investment performance. The Company may
also receive carried interest from certain alternative investment products that exceed performance hurdles. Such
fees are recognized when it is no longer probable that there will be a significant reversal.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Distribution and Servicing Fees

Distribution and servicing fees are ongoing fees that the Company receives for completing the performance
obligation of distribution and servicing activities on behaf of PIMCO Mutual Funds. For distribution and
servicing fee revenue, the performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day
that are substantially the same. This revenue is earned ratably over time to match the delivery of the performance
obligation each day over the life of the contract. As the distribution and servicing revenue amounts are based on
percentages of the average daily net assets of the PIMCO Mutual Funds, the consideration for this revenue is
variable and deemed constrained due to dependence of unpredictable asset values. The constraint is removed
once these val ues can be determined.

Contract assets and liabilities

Receivables related to investment advisory and administration revenue are included in investment advisory and
administrative fees receivable in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. Receivables
related to distribution and servicing fees revenue are included in distribution and servicing fees receivable in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. There was no impairment of any receivables
recognized during the year related to revenue from contracts with customers. There are no contract liabilities
related to these contracts.

() Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Office egquipment,
furniture, and fixtures are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three to
five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining terms of the related
leases or the useful lives of such improvements, whichever is shorter.

The assets useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial period-end and adjusted if
appropriate. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the asset, calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income in the year the item is sold or retired.

(g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of computer software and assets acquired in a business combination which include
customer relationships, developed technology and trade name. Computer software is amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three to five years. The fair values of the acquired assets were
determined using the multi-period excess earnings method for the customer relationships; the replacement cost
method for the developed technology; and the relief-from-royalty approach for the trade name. The intangible
assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which range from 18 months to three years, using the
straight-line method. Certain contracts to manage funds without a specified termination date are classified as
indefinite-lived intangible assets.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(h) Goodwill

On an annual basis, management assesses certain qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of the Company’s reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. This assessment is
performed as of September 30th or sooner if events or circumstances exist that indicate that it is more likely than
not that a goodwill impairment exists. No impairment charges have been recorded during 2021 or 2020.

(i) Leases

The Company’s leases consist of leases for real estate for corporate offices and other facilities. The Company has
measured the lease liability using its estimated incremental borrowing rate and the index or market rate of variable
lease payments at commencement date. Any subsequent changes to the index or market rate result in a
remeasurement of the lease liability and adjusted against the right-of-use asset. The portion of lease liabilities that
is expected to be extinguished over the next 12 months has been classified as a current liability in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

Certain leases contain an option for the Company to extend the term of the lease. We have included options to
extend the lease term to the extent we are reasonably certain to exercise the options after considering all factors
that create an economic incentive for the Company, including significant leasehold improvements.

We recognize the finance cost of lease payments in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income on a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability each period.
The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term and is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low values assets
and short-term leases that have alease term of 12 months or less. Lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Interest in Non-consolidated Deferred Compensation Trust

The Company elected the fair value option under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for the interest in the non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust.

(K Income Taxes
The Company is not subject to U.S. federal income tax as it is organized as a limited liability company and is
taxed as a partnership. Ultimately, the members of PIMCO are responsible for taxes on their proportionate share

of the Company’s taxable income. The Company is subject to state taxes in certain jurisdictions in the United
States.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Certain consolidated entities are subject to federal, foreign, state, and local income tax, and file separate tax
returns and account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This method gives recognition to
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized
for al taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis.

(I) Distributions

Although there is no contractual requirement, PIMCO generally distributes its operating income (as defined in the
Company’s Limited Liability Company Agreement) for each calendar quarter no later than 30 days after the end
of such quarter. At the Company’s discretion, distributions can be reduced in an amount reasonably necessary or
appropriate for the Company to conduct its business in the normal course.

(m) Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for share-based payment arrangements by determining the value of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of the share-based
award. The cost of employee services is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase to capital, over
the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based payment award. As the
Company’s equity instruments have no publicly traded market price, fair value is determined by the Company’s
management based in part on a comprehensive analysis of trading values of comparable public entities, discounted
cash flows, market transactions of comparable entities, and consideration as to the Company’s historical and
forecasted financial performance.

(n) Marketing and Promoational

The Company incurs marketing expenses to promote its products to retail and institutional investors by creating
marketing materials and supporting third party intermediaries. The Company expenses marketing and
promotional fees asincurred.

(0) Foreign Currency Trandation

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries have been translated into U.S. dollars at the current rate of
exchange existing at year-end. Revenues and expenses are translated primarily at the exchange rate on the date on
which the transactions are recognized. The effects of translating the results of operations of subsidiaries with a
functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are included in other comprehensive income or loss. The cumulative
trandlation adjustment of translating the balance sheet of subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the
U.S. dollar is included as a component of capital in the consolidated statements of financial condition as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(p) Useof Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the
amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liahilities, reported amounts of
revenues and expenses, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. These estimates and
assumptions are based on management’s best judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on
an ongoing basis using historical experience and other known factors, including the current economic
environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management adjusts such
estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects cannot be
determined with precision, actual results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in those
estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the financial
statements in future periods as they occur. Management believes that the significant areas where judgment is
necessarily applied are those which relate to the:

Measurement of share-based payment arrangements, which includes estimates of fair value of the Company’
s membership units. These estimates can be particularly sensitive to assumptions in regards to the Company’
sfuture earnings; and

Assessment of provisions.

Critical judgments have been made by management in applying accounting policies. Those that have the most
significant effect on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements include the following:

Evaluation of the measurement criteria associated with the recognition of revenues associated with
performance fees (as discussed in note 2(€)).

Evaluation of control associated over entities (as discussed in note 2(b)), and the impact to consolidation of
such entities.

(@ Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount
recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Future events that
may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision where there is
sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Where some or al of the expenditure is expected to be
reimbursed by insurance or some other party, and it is virtually certain, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset on the consolidated statements of financial condition, and the amount is recorded in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(r) Deferred Compensation

The Company accounts for its deferred compensation liability in accordance with IAS 19 and adjusts the carrying
value of the liability for changes in the fair value of the interest in the non-consolidated deferred compensation
trust in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(s General and administrative

General and administrative expenses are mainly comprised of costs related to performance obligations under the
administrative fees contracts that do not meet the criteria as costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. The Company is
considered the principal in these arrangements and recogni zes these costs on a gross basis.

(3 Fair Vaue of Financia Instruments

IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments carried at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial
condition are classified into a three-level hierarchy depending on the valuation techniques used and whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable in the market.

Level 1 - Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities are classified into this category. A financial instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with
any significant input being based on observable market data (observable inputs), are classified into this
category.

Level 3 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with at
least one significant input not being based on observable market data (nonobservable inputs), are classified
into this category.

The Company has evaluated its investments carried at fair value through profit and loss totaling $29.7 million and
$30.9 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and determined that based on the unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets used to determine fair value that the investments are classified as Level 1
instruments.

The underlying investments of the non-consolidated deferred compensation trust consist of mutual funds and
equity securities which are classified as Level 1 instruments, and investment partnerships which are measured at
net asset value (NAV) of the respective investment partnership at December 31, 2021 and 2020.

There have been no changes to the Company’s valuation policies during the year ended December 31, 2021 or
2020.

The fair value of investment advisory fees and administrative fees receivable, distribution and servicing fees
receivable, receivables from affiliates, and payables to affiliates has been deemed to approximate their carrying
value through reference to their short maturity as well as low credit risk. The fair value of short-term borrowings
from affiliates is based upon the Company’s comparison to current market rates available to the Company for
comparable debt. It isthe Company’s intention to hold such instruments until maturity or collection.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(4) Property and Equipment

The major classifications of property and equipment are as follows:

Office
equipment,
furniture, and Leasehold
fixtures improvements Art Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2019 $ 49,845,420 88,261,081 1,021,436 139,127,937
Additions 8,445,092 1,289,112 50,174 9,784,378
Disposals (12,114) - - (12,114)
Depreciation and amortization (16,946,736) (10,841,783) - (27,788,519)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
Additions 11,894,806 5,334,168 140 17,229,114
Disposals (1,665) - - (1,665)
Depreciation and amortization (15,475,576) (11,569,501) - (27,045,077)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2021 $ 37,749,227 72,473,077 1,071,750 111,294,054

The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $27.0 million and $27.8 million during 2021
and 2020, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income.

(5) Intangible Assets

The major classifications of intangible assets are as follows:

Computer Customer Developed Trade
Software Relationships  Technology Name Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2019 $ 5,711,545 23,520,000 793,103 100,000 30,124,648
Additions 13,838,448 - - - 13,838,448
Disposals - - - - -
Amortization (5,879,698) (2,080,000) (637,931) (100,000)  (8,697,629)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 - 35,265,467
Additions 4,902,545 - - - 4,902,545
Disposals - - - - -
Amortization (4,948,015)  (2,080,000) (155,172) - (7,183187)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2021 $ 13,624,825 19,360,000 - - 32,984,825

The Company recorded amortization expense of $7.2 million and $8.7 million during 2021 and 2020,
respectively, which is included in other expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(6) Related-Party Transactions

PIMCO and its subsidiaries reimburse AAM LP and AAM LLC for certain overhead, administrative services, and
occupancy costs, including short-term lease costs, that are allocated based on time and usage factors. These
expenses generally consist of rental costs and salaries and related benefits for legal, internal audit, and other
general and administrative services. The amount charged for such services totaled $23.6 million and $24.7 million
during 2021 and 2020, respectively, which is a component of general and administrative and occupancy and
equipment in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The payable to affiliates includes
a liability to be paid to AAM LP and AAM LLC in connection with these services, as well as payables to other
affiliates in connection with services they have provided to PIMCO and for expenses that have been paid on
behalf of PIMCO over the ordinary course of business, totaling $21.5 million and $8.6 million as of December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively.

From time to time, short-term interest-bearing advances are granted between AAM LP and PIMCO for generaly
less than 90 days, at arate of overnight LIBOR plus 0.2% to cover short-term operating cash needs. During 2021
and 2020, PIMCO borrowed and fully repaid several of these short-term cash loans from AAM LP to cover its
operating cash needs. At December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, PIMCO had no outstanding short-term
loans. During 2021 and 2020, PIMCO incurred $102 thousand and $373 thousand, respectively, in interest
expense on loans, which is included in other expenses in the consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

The Company earns investment advisory fees, administrative fees, and distribution and servicing fees from
affiliated fund complexes, which comprise substantially all of the amounts included in the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income as investment advisory fees - pooled funds, administrative fees - pooled
funds, and distribution and servicing fees, respectively. As of December 31, 2021, the Company had $1.0 billion
(2020: $822.6 million) in related receivables from affiliated fund complexes.

The Company manages private accounts for certain affiliated subsidiaries of Allianz SE. Investment advisory fees
earned on these accounts totaled $55.9 million and $52.4 million during 2021 and 2020, respectively, which are
primarily included in investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

Allianz Life Insurance of North America, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, provides certain
services on behalf of the Company to certain variable annuity and/or variable life insurance contracts invested in
PIMCO Funds. The total fees paid for these services by the Company were $7.3 million and $7.8 million during
2021 and 2020, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses and marketing and
promotional expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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For certain advisory contracts with institutional clients, the Company shares the responsibility of fulfilling such
service contracts with PEG and its branches, a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management GmbH,
who in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE. PEG, together with all of the PIMCO subsidiaries, are
subject to PIMCO’ s Global Transfer Pricing Policy (Transfer Pricing Policy) for shared management services that
are provided by al PIMCO entities. Shared management services provided include portfolio management, account
management, and business management and administration. Revenues earned from third parties for shared
management services are alocated in accordance with the Transfer Pricing Policy. In 2021, the revenue earned
from third parties for shared management services allocated to PEG was $400.4 million (2020: $147.3 million)
and the revenue allocated from PEG was $41.6 million (2020: $55.1 million) and are presented within investment
advisory fees - pooled funds and investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. In addition, costs for performing other shared services are
allocated to PEG based on headcount and estimated time and usage factors. During 2021, costs allocated to PEG
were $85.8 million (2020: $41.3 million) and are included as a reduction of compensation and benefits and
general and administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
As of December 31, 2021, the Company had a $26.2 million (2020: $13.5 million) receivable from PEG and a
$74.1 million (2020: $28.8 million) payable to PEG, which are included within receivables from affiliates and
payablesto affiliates, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

AAM LP has a $600.0 million revolving credit facility with Allianz SE to cover short-term operating cash needs,
which expires in November 2023. The facility permits short-term borrowings at a floating rate of interest of
LIBOR plus 20bps (interest rate of 0.264% as of December 31, 2021) until LIBOR has ceased to be quoted, at
which time the parties of the agreement shall determine in good faith and in line with market practice the
successor rate of LIBOR. To the extent necessary, AAM LP could draw on this revolving credit facility on behalf
of its subsidiaries, including PIMCO. There were no amounts outstanding under this agreement at December 31,
2021 and 2020.

Managing Directors and certain other executive officers are considered to be key members of management.
Management believes that these individuals provide significant contributions to the Company. In return for their
service, they receive remuneration, which management believes to be in line with its select group of peers. In
addition to an annual base salary, key management participates in certain benefit plans, some of which are
discussed in note 7. Total compensation of key members of management comprises the majority of compensation
and benefits included in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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(7) Benefit Plans
(@) ClassM Unit Equity Participation Plan

PIMCO has established a Class M Unit Equity Participation Plan (the M Unit Plan) for certain individuals
providing services to PIMCO and certain of its affiliates. Participants in the M Unit Plan are granted options to
acquire M units, which vest in one third increments on the third, fourth, and fifth anniversary of the option grant
date. M unit options are converted to M units based on the appreciation of fair value of the M unit over the related
vesting period. At the exercise date, vested options will be automatically exercised in a cashless transaction unless
the participant has elected to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan. As disclosed in note 7
(©), participants can defer their M units into the AAM LP Executive Deferred Compensation Plan. If, at the time
of vesting, the PIMCO Class M unit estimated fair value is less than the exercise price of the option award, no
Class M units will be issued. Class M units are nonvoting units of PIMCO and entitle the holder to receive
quarterly distributions in accordance with the Company’s Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability
Company Agreement. Those participants electing to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan
continue to receive quarterly distributions.

A maximum of 250,000 M units were originally authorized for issuance under the M Unit Plan. During 2020, the
M Unit Plan was amended to stop the granting of options to acquire M units and resulting in no M units being
issued, except pursuant to the exercise of options that were outstanding prior to the plan amendment. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, 102,231 and 148,726 M unit options, respectively, were outstanding and 74,205 M
units have been issued from the exercise of options as of December 31, 2021.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option pricing model.
The model requires management to develop estimates regarding certain input variables. A third-party valuation
was completed to assist management in determining the fair value of a Class M unit. The dividend yield was
estimated based upon the historical Operating Profit Available for Distribution to M unit holders. Expected
volatilities are based on the average historical and implied volatility of a select group of peers using the Merton
Method. The expected life was calculated based upon treating the three vesting tranches (one third in years 3, 4,
and 5) as separate options.

No M unit options were granted during 2021. The following table provides the assumptions used in calculating the
fair value of the M unit options granted during 2020:

2020
Weighted average grant date fair value $ 17,806
Assumptions:
Expected term (years) 3.84
Expected volatility 25.1%
Expected dividends 11.1%
Risk free rate of return 0.6%

A summary of the activity in 2021 and 2020 related to the number and weighted average exercise price of the M
unit options outstanding and exercisable is as follows:
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Weighted
average
Number of options grant date
Vested Nonvested Tota fair vaue
Outstanding at
December 31, 2019 - 153,400 153,400 $ 13,492
Changes during the year:
Granted - 29,802 29,802 17,806
Vested 27,775 (27,775) - -
Exercised (27,775) - (27,775) 11,567
Forfeited - (6,701) (6,701) 14,146
Outstanding at
December 31, 2020 - 148,726 148,726 $ 14,674
Changes during the year:
Granted - - - -
Vested 41,017 (41,017) - -
Exercised (41,017) - (41,017) 12,967
Forfeited - (5,478) (5,478) 15,218
Outstanding at
December 31, 2021 - 102,231 102,231 $ 15,330
Exercisable as of
December 31, 2021 - - - 3% -

The M unit options outstanding as of December 31, 2021 have an exercise price between $11,804 and $17,806
and aweighted average remaining contractua life of 1.99 years.

The weighted average fair value per unit at the date the options were exercised was $20,924 for 2021 and $17,806
for 2020. M unit options totaling 41,017 vested during 2021. On March 31, 2021 and September 28, 2021, these
vested awards exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance
of approximately 15,597 M Units. As of December 31, 2021, 73,774 M units are owned by current and former
employees and 431 M units are owned by AAM LLC.

M unit options totaling 27,775 vested during 2020. On March 30, 2020, these vested awards exercised under the
cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 9,732 M units.

The fair value of M unit option awards is amortized to compensation expense on a graded vesting attribution
method over the related vesting period of each separate tranche. The total number of M unit option awards
expected to vest is adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized under the M Unit Plan
during 2021 and 2020 was $11.6 million and $15.5 million, respectively, and is included in compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. As of December 31,
2021, the total estimated compensation cost related to nonvested M unit option awards, net of estimated
forfeitures, expected to be recognized in future periods through December 31, 2025 is $12.7 million.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(b) Savingsand Investment Plans

AAM LP isthe sponsor of adefined contribution employee savings and retirement plan covering substantially all
employees of the Company and subsidiaries. The plan qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code and allows eligible employees to contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, as defined, and is
subject to a maximum dollar amount determined from time to time by the Internal Revenue Code. Employees are
generally eligible to participate on the first day of the month following their start date. After the completion of one
year of credited service, the Company matches an amount of annual compensation, subject to Internal Revenue
Code limits, contributed by the employees. In addition, certain subsidiaries can contribute an additional amount to
the plan of eligible compensation to the retirement plan. The amount expensed by the Company related to this
plan during 2021 and 2020 was $59.1 million and $55.1 million, respectively, and is included in compensation
and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(c) Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

AAM LP has anonqualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which a portion of the compensation accrued
by the Company and subsidiaries and otherwise payable to certain eligible employees may be deferred at the
election of the employees. The plan is maintained primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation
for a select group of management or highly compensated employees, within the meaning of Sections 201(2), 301
(a)(3), and 401(a)(1) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Amounts deferred
under the plan are invested in marketable securities and M units or other investment partnerships as directed by
the employees and are held in a grantor trust. The assets held in grantor trust are not available to fund ongoing
activities of the Company and only would be available to the Company’s creditors in the event of insolvency.
Total investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents held in trust and the related liability at December 31,
2021 and 2020 was $1.2 hillion and $874.8 million, respectively, and are included in interest in non-consolidated
deferred compensation trust and deferred compensation on the accompanying consolidated statements of financial
condition.

(8) IncomeTax
The provisions for income tax expense (benefits) are as follows:

Year ended December 31

2021 2020
Current:

Federal $ 81,038 29,332
State 3,988,116 3,432,731
Foreign 115,094,758 121,394,722
Tota current 119,163,912 124,856,785

Deferred:
Foreign (11,685,074) (20,864,965)
Total deferred (11,685,074) (20,864,965)
Total provision $ 107,478,838 103,991,820
(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

The differences between the reported amount of income tax expense and the amount that would result from
applying the federal corporate statutory tax rates to pretax income arise primarily from the Company’s status as a
partnership for U.S. tax purposes as well as the effects of state and international taxes and nondeductible expense.

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, income taxes payable amounted to $32.8 million and $23.2 million,
respectively, and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition. Additionally, at December 31, 2021 and 2020, deferred tax assets amounted to
$54.8 million and $44.8 million, respectively. Deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2021 and 2020, amounted
to $285 thousand and $247 thousand, respectively. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are included in
other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements

of financial condition.

(9) Lease Arrangements

The following table represents lease costs that are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of

income and comprehensive income:

Depreciation of ROU asset

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Variable lease cost

Short-term lease cost

Expenses of leases of low value assets

Y ear ended December 31

2021 2020
$ 31,256,186 29,593,350
5,443,382 6,304,014
312,947 240,983
578,204 376,312
1,319,717 2,179,123

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, total cash outflow for leases amounted to $40.9 million and

$39.8 million, respectively.

The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities as of December 31, 2021:

Year ending December 31
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter

Total operating lease payments
Lessimputed interest

Present value of lease liabilities

$ 35,796,969
37,499,114
23,189,168
34,006,401
33,302,410
69,700,751

233,494,813
(19,310,763)

$ 214,184,050

(Continued)

323/378



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities as of December 31, 2020:

Year ending December 31.

2021 $ 38,461,023
2022 34,822,467
2023 36,457,152
2024 22,087,757
2025 32,862,009
Thereafter 96,750,859
Total operating lease payments 261,441,267
Lessimputed interest (24,146,287)
Present value of lease liabilities $ 237,294,980

(10) Financia Risk Management
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

Market Risk
Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. Management continually monitors the
Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s

activities. Management reports its significant activity to the Risk and Controls Committee of Allianz Asset
Management GmbH, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.

(@ Credit Risk

Credit risk isthe risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to afinancial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, bank
deposits, and investment securities.

Investment advisory and other receivables: The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Company’s client base, including the default
risk of the industry and country in which client operates, has less of an influence on credit risk. However,
geographically there is no concentration of credit risk, and no single customer who is individually material to the
Company’s operations.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

The creditworthiness of customersis assessed as part of new client acceptance procedures. The Company does not
require collateral in respect of trade or other receivables, but monitors the assets under management for each
customer in relation to their outstanding receivable balance. The Company has an excellent history of collection
on outstanding receivables and establishes an allowance for impairment only when an individual customer has
been identified as at risk for collection.

Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks: The interest bearing deposits with banks are due from major institutions.
The Company reviews the creditworthiness of such banks and does not deal with such institutions if it is not
satisfied with the institution’s financia strength.

Investments: The Company’s investments are within investment vehicles, which it manages subject to detailed
investment guidelines. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure that the individual vehicles operate within
their applicable credit and liquidity risk limitations.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The mgjority of non-derivative financial
liahilities have a contractual maturity of less than six months at December 31, 2021.

The Company seeks to actively monitor its cash flow requirements. Typically, the Company ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financia obligations;
this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural
disasters. In addition, the Company has accessto AAM LP's line of credit with Allianz SE as discussed in note 6.

(c) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financia instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

Currency risk: The Company is exposed to currency risk on revenues, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The magjority of the Company’s
transactions are in U.S. dollars, but transactions in foreign currencies also occur on a more limited basis by the
Company’s international subsidiaries.

The Company considers its exposure to currency risk to be limited, and currently does not actively employ any
hedging or other techniquesto limit such risk.

Interest rate risk: The Company is subject to interest rate risk only to the extent of its borrowing arrangements
with affiliates, al of which are short term in nature. As management considers this risk to be minimal, no active
hedging or other strategies are employed to limit such risk.

(Continued)

325/378



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Other market price risk: Market price risk arises from investment securities held within the investment funds the
Company holds and manages, each of which are subject to specific investment guidelines. Material investments in
such funds are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are made in accordance with client
guidelines or the funds governing documents.

In monitoring the Company’s exposure to market risks, management evaluates the Company’s sensitivity to
changes in currency rates, interest rates, and other market risk factors. As of December 31, 2021, there were no
changes in such factors that were deemed reasonably possible that would have resulted in any material differences
to members capital as of December 31, 2021 or the reported comprehensive income for the year then ended.

(d) Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor, creditor, and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. There were no changes in the Company’s approach
to capital management during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, with the exception of Pl
LLC (see note 1) and certain foreign subsidiaries, are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(11) Provisions

The Company is subject to various pending and threatened legal actions as well as regulatory inquiries, which
arise in the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters currently
pending and threatened will not have a material adverse effect on PIMCO and its subsidiaries financia position,
results of operations, or cash flows. Management believes that they have made appropriate estimates for
provisions in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The Company expenses related legal fees as
incurred.

In early 2020, the existence of a new coronavirus (COVID-19) was confirmed which spread across a significant
number of countries leading to disruption to economic activity and globa markets. Given the inherent
uncertainties, it is not practical to determine what impact COVID-19 will have on the Company in the future.

(12) Interest in Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Company manages a number of structured products and other funds for the purpose of investing monies on
behalf of the Company’s clients in a range of investment strategies. In most cases investment vehicles managed
by the Company have substantive removal or liquidation rights. Investment vehicles for which substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist have been identified as structured entities. The vehicles are separate
legal entities, and are financed by investments made by the Company’s clients. The Company is paid for the
investment management services it provides to the vehicle directly from the vehicle.

The Company earned $3.3 million and $731 thousand in investment advisory fees from structured entities during
2021 and 2020, respectively, which is included in investment advisory fees - pooled funds and investment
advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying statements of income and comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes both the size of the unconsolidated investment vehicles where substantive

removal or liquidation rights do not exist and the Company’s interests in those vehicles:

(Continued)
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December 31
2021 2020
Net assets of unconsolidated structured
entities $ 2,408,685,532 $ 582,606,016
Investment advisory fees
receivable - pooled funds and private accounts 567,143 222,021

The Company’s maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated structured entities is limited to the investment
advisory fees receivable.

(13) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring after the date of the consolidated statements of financial condition
through April 25, 2022, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued to determine
whether any subsequent events necessitated adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,
noting the Company has identified the following events to disclose:

PIMCO M unit options totaling 38,253 vested subsequent to the date of the consolidated statements of financial
condition. On March 31, 2022, these vested awards were exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided
inthe M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 16,727 M units.

On February 1, 2022, the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) has replaced LIBOR for AAM LP's
revolving credit facility with Allianz SE (as discussed in note 6).

In late February 2022, Russia commenced a military attack on Ukraine. The outbreak of hostilities between the
two countries could result in more widespread conflict and could have a severe adverse effect on the region and
global supply chains. In addition, current and future sanctions imposed on Russia by the global community could
have a significant adverse impact on the Russian and global economy. The extent, duration, or repercussions of
such military actions are impossible to predict, but could result in significant market disruption. As a result of
such events, the Company has experienced negative portfolio returns on managed assets, but the events have not
resulted in a material adverse impact to the Company. Given the inherent uncertainties, it is not practical to
determine the overall impact to the Company or to provide a quantitative estimate of any future impact.
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30

1,117,718,214 145,828,695
22,187,248 2,894,770
583,419,002 76,118,677
296,058,867 38,626,800
48,191,354 6,287,526
16,822,230 2,194,796
24,264,674 3,165,812
32,472,086 4,236,633
86,134,876 11,238,017
2,227,268,551 290,591,728
102,056,187 13,315,271
158,562,406 20,687,637
1,006,816,397 131,359,335
30,865,176 4,026,980
29,986,888 3,912,389
32,907,785 4,293,479
58,124,696 7,583,529
1,419,319,535 185,178,620
3,646,588,086 475,770,348
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419,088,130 54,678,428
578,771,182 75,512,276

64,870,656 8,463,674

33,834,936 4,414,444

81,830,157 10,676,381

24,264,674 3,165,812

4,490,265 585,845

1,207,150, 000 157,496,861

1,006,816,397 131,359,335

164,933,641 21,518,892

115,010,504 15,005,420

3,615,936 471,771

1,290,376,478 168,355,419

2,497,526,478 325,852,280

850,000 (133,718,082) (17,446,198)
150,000 1,281,455,256 167,191,467
90,933 71,204,614 9,290,066
60,434 21,195,975 2,765,439
(91,076, 155) (11,882,706)

1,149,061,608 149,918,068

3,646,588,086 475,770,348
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2022 30

1,918,013,768 250,243,256
538,043,676 70,198,558
607,567,041 79,269,272
150,045,251 19,576,404

20,791,015 2,712,604

3,234,460,751 422,000,094
958,156,841 125,010,723
239,330,399 31,225,437
321,577,100 41,956,164
117,015,533 15,267,017

90,846,357 11,852,724
55,319,442 7,217,528
17,426,195 2,273,59%
21,870,339 2,853,423
1,821,542,206 237,656,612
1,412,918,545 184,343,483

(175,838,837)

(22,941,693)

(2,646,132) (345,241)
(4,080,832) (532,426)
1,230,352,744 160,524,123
49,153,693 6,413,082
1,181,199,051 154,111,040

(38,367,407)

(5,005,796)

1,142,831,644

149,105,245
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2022 30
2021 12
31
850,000  (6,433,247) (839,346) 150,000 1,333,506,696 173,982,619 74,205 69,610,604 9,082,096
820,500,299 107,050,674 263,510,464 34,380,210 97,188,288 12,680,156
(954,645,277) (124,552,569) (315,561,904)  (41,171,362) (105,822,415) (13,806,650)
2,254,593 294,157
PIMCO
4,605,550 600,886 10,228,137 1,334,465
2022
30

850,000 (133,718,082) (17,446,198) 150,000 1,281,455,256 167,191,467 90,933 71,204,614 9,290,066
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2022 30
2021 12 31
102,231 32,693,374 4,265,505  (52,708,748)  (6,876,910)  1,376,668,679 179,613,963
1,181,199,051 154,111,040
(1,376,029,596)  (179,530,581)
2,254,593 294,157
PINCO
3,336,288 435,285 3,336,288 435,285
(14,833,687)  (1,935,351)
(38,367,407)  (5,005,796) (38,367,407) (5,005,796)
2022 30
60,434 21,195,975 2,765,439  (91,076,155)  (11,882,706)  1,149,061,608 149,918,068
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2022 30

1,181,199,051

154,111,040

3,290,743 429,343
35,746,934 4,663,902
2,646,132 345,241
4,080,832 532,426
1,007,455 131,443
13,890, 086 1,812,240
(7,530,911) (982,558)
(73,464,851) (9,584,959)
(2,646,132) (345,241)
436,774,977 56,986,031
(27,259,715) (3,556,575)
284,964,118 37,179,268
(20,389,461) (2,660,213)

1,832,309,258

239,061,389

(5,216,311) (680,572)
(636,025) (82,982)
(5,852,336) (763,554)
579,000,000 75,542,130

(579,000,000)

(1,376,029,596)
2,254,593

(17,794,390)

(75,542,130)

(179,530,581)
294,157

(2,321,634)

(1,391,569,393)

(181,558,059)

(38,367,407) (5,005,796)
396,520,122 51,733,980
721,198,092 94,094,715

1,117,718,214

145,828,695
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PIMCO

PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
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2021 12
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PIMCO Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
2023 798,537,475.45 1,041 8,518
1971
1940 PIMCO
PIMCO

Maples

Trustee Services Bermuda Limited

2023 25 3,262

2016

Brown Brothers Harriman and Company

2023 10 6,000 1,382 9,820

Brown Brothers Harriman Luxembourg S.C.A

2023 1,209 15 7,738

1989
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Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
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2006

IF
31

1,040.00
1,040.00
1,870.00
1,250.00
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust |1

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of each of the funds listed in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of October 31, 2022, and the related statements of operations and of changes in net assets for each of the
periods indicated in the table below, including the related notes, and the financia highlights for each of the periods
indicated therein (collectively referred to asthe "financial statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to below present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of each of the Funds indicated in the table below as of October 31, 2022, and the results of each of
their operations and the changes in each of their net assets for the periods indicated in the table below, and each of the
financial highlights for each of the periods indicated therein, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States of America.

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) ¥

PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund (M)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A

PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund 11 (M)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund B

PIMCO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10
)

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund C @

PIMCO Emerging Bond (Y en-Hedged) Income Fund
()

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund D

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund @)

PIMCO Bermuda Dynamic Multi-Asset Strategy Fund
(€

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund (M) )

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) )

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund |1 @

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund |1 @

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund 111 @

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan (Y en-
Hedged) Bond Fund @)

PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage Income @

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond
Fund @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond
Fund (M) ¥

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund 11

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund (M) @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund 11 )

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund D @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Low Duration Income Fund @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund 11 ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Mortgage Opportunities Fund @)

PIMCO World High Income @
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Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (US GAAYS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Funds and to meet our other ethical responsihilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
materia misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for one
year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financia Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audits.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on atest basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audits in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Funds
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audits, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audits.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, MA
January 31, 2023
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Management of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
and its subsidiaries (the “ Company”), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial condition as of December
31, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, of changes in capital
and of cash flows for the years then ended, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated
financia statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAYS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsihilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation

of consolidated financia statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern for at least, but not limited to, twelve months from the end of the reporting period,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic aternative but to do so.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
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detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the

judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on
atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e FEvauate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise

substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for areasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during

the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Los Angeles, California
April 25, 2022
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust |1

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of each of the funds listed in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of October 31, 2021, and the related statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the
financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table below. These financial statements and financia highlights are
hereafter collectively referred to as"financia statements'.

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund (M) @) PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund (M) @

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund A PIMCO Bermuda U.S. High Yield Fund 11 (M) Y

PIMCO Core Income Corporate Bond Fund 2020-10
©)

PIMCO Emerging Bond (Y en-Hedged) Income Fund
@

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund B

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund ¢

PIMCO Bermuda Bank Loan Fund D @ PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund @

PIMCO Bermuda Dynamic Multi-Asset Strategy Fund
@

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund (M) @)

e

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) @

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund |

PIMCO Bermuda Emerging Markets Bond Fund |1 @

PIMCO Emerging Bond Income Fund 111 @)

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan (Y en-
Hedged) Bond Fund

PIMCO Short-Term Mortgage Income @

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond

Fund @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Global Aggregate Ex-Japan Bond
Fund (M)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield (Yen-Hedged) Fund 11 ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund (M) @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund A &)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Fund 11 Y

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund D @)

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund ¥

PIMCO Bermuda Income Fund E @

PIMCO U.S. High Yield Strategy Fund 11 Y

PIMCO Bermuda Low Duration Income Fund @

PIMCO World High Income @

PIMCO Bermuda Mortgage Opportunities Fund @)

31, 2021

@) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the year ended October

(@) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the period from
October 30, 2020 (inception date) to October 31, 2021
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@ Statements of operations and of changes in net assets for the year ended October 31, 2021, and the
financia highlights for each of the periods indicated therein

@ Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financia highlights for the period from October
15, 2020 (inception date) to October 31, 2021
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financia
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Funds internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financia position of
each of the Funds indicated in the table above as of October 31, 2021, and the results of each of their operations, the
changes in each of their net assets and each of their financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
January 25, 2022
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